
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, May 4, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 

Electronic Meeting 

 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order 
 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
 
3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 
 
 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 
 
Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as printed / amended. 
 

 
5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 
 
 
6. Review and adoption of Council Minutes 

 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 
 
Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 
 
 
a) Special meeting of Council – April 15, 2021; and 
 
b) Regular meeting of Council – April 20, 2021. 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 2 
 
 
7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 

Statutes 
 
None  
 
 

8. Question and Answer Period 
 
 
 
9. Presentations / Delegations 
 
 

a) Nicole Guertin, Director - Northeastern Ontario Consortium (CNEO) 
 
Re: Cultural Crossroads: 101 Experiences 

 
 

10. Communications 

 
a) Mr. Fredric MacKewn and Mrs. Carman MacKewn, Residents 

 
Re: Request to Purchase Municipal Land, 2021-04-13 
 
Reference: Referred to the Municipal Clerk for processing in accordance with 
the Disposition of Land By-law 2015-160 
 
 

b) Mr. Mario McLean - 3rd-year Laurentian Student (former resident of Earlton) 
 
Re: Laurentian University Needs Your Help – It Affects Your Community, 
2021-04-15 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

c) Chantal Menard-Cote, Resident 
 
Re: Petition in Opposition to Zack’s Crib Location at 183 Broadwood Avenue, 
2021-04-19 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 3 
 
 

d) Herb Villneff, Director, Northeast Operations -Ministry of Transportation 
 
Re: Organizational Changes Update, 2021-04-16 
 
Reference: Received for Information   
 
 

e) Danielle Manton, City Clerk – City of Cambridge 
 
Re: Support Resolution – Request for Paid Sick Leave, 2021-04-21 
 
Reference: Received for Information   
 
 

f) Chief and Council, Timiskaming First Nation 
 
Re: Chief and Council Respond to Covid-19 Provincial Checkpoints, 2021-04-
21 
 
Reference: Motion presented under New Business   
 
 

g) Gord Krieger, Project Manager – D.M. Wills Associated Limited 
 
Re: Notice of Study Commencement, MTO Group C Class Environmental 
Assessment for the Detail Design Study and Production of a Contract 
Document for Highway 65 at the Future Grant Drive Extension, 2021-04-23 
 
Reference: Referred to the Manager of Transportation Services   
 
 

h) Carol Schofield, Manager, Legislative Services/Clerk – Town of Fort Erie 
 
Re: Support Resolution - Province Investigating and Updating Source Water 
Protection Legislation, 2021-04-27 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

i) Tanya Daniels, City Clerk – City of Brantford  
 
Re:  Support Resolution - Province of Ontario withdraws its prohibition on 
golfing and any other outdoor recreational activities 2021-04-30 

 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 4 
 
 

j) Kaline Woods, Chair - Haileybury Heritage Museum  
 
Re:  Great Fire of 1922 Centennial Recognition, 2021-04-30 
 
Reference: Referred to the Economic Development Officer for a Report to 
Council  
 
 

k) Jordan Kemp, Clerk-Treasurer – Township of Hudson 
 
Re:  Support Resolution – Support for Fire Departments, 2021-04-30 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt  
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  to 
10.k) according to the Agenda references. 
 
 

11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 
 
a) Minutes of the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board 

meeting held on February 17, 2021; 
 

b) Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Bord meeting held on March 
24, 2021;  
 

c) Minutes of the Temiskaming Transit Committee meeting held on April 13, 2021; 
and 

 
d) Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board meeting held on April 

19, 2021. 
 

 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 5 
 
 
12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 

 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen  
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 
 
a) Minutes of the Recreation Committee meeting held on April 12, 2021. 

 
 

13. Reports by Members of Council 
 

 
 

14. Notice of Motions 

 
 
15. New Business 

a) Proclamation - Emergency Preparedness Week 2021  
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by: Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by: Councillor Hewitt 

 
Whereas Emergency Preparedness Week is an annual event that takes place 
each year during the first full week of May and is an opportunity to encourage 
all residents to take concrete actions to be better prepared to protect 
themselves and their families during emergencies; and  
 
Whereas the City of Temiskaming Shores through the Office of the Fire Marshal 
and Emergency Management and all our Emergency Management Partners, 
assists the City of Temiskaming Shores to identify community risks, mitigate 
those risks, prepare for, respond to, and recover from disasters and 
emergencies; and  
 
Whereas the City of Temiskaming Shores is doing everything it can to prepare 
for disasters, and realizes residents also have an important role to play in 
ensuring their own safety during an emergency; and 
 
Whereas emergency preparedness is a shared responsibility and all individuals 
can reduce the risk we face by better understanding what could happen and 
learning how to better prepare ourselves, our families and our community; and 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 6 
 
 

Whereas each individual must understand the risks inherent to where we live 
and work and undertake actions that reduce those risks in an effort to limit the 
extent to which an emergency may affect us. 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that the Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores, proclaims the week of May 2-8, 2021 to be “Emergency Preparedness 
Week” in the City of Temiskaming Shores and encourages all citizens to 
participate in educational activities during Emergency Preparedness Week and 
throughout the year. 
 
 

b) Support – Timiskaming First Nation – COVID-19 Provincial Checkpoints 
 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by: Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by: Councillor Foley 
 
Whereas provinces and territories across Canada are taking steps of 
establishing checkpoints or closing the borders in an attempt to contain the 
spread of the COVID-19 virus; and 
 
Whereas the temporary restriction in movement is supported by the Provincial 
Health Directors and the medical professionals in general; and 
 
Whereas Ontario has specifically identified the practice of an Aboriginal or 
Treaty right a valid reason to cross the checkpoint; and 
 
Whereas Timiskaming First Nation Community members have expressed 
concerns that the provincial checkpoints, currently enforced by Ontario and 
Quebec, may prevent them from exercising their Aboriginal rights; and 
 
Whereas in response to these concerns, the Chief and Council of the 
Timiskaming First Nation have provided a letter to the Premiers and Attorney 
Generals of both Quebec and Ontario requesting that checkpoint staff are clear 
in their roles and responsibilities, and receive appropriate training/education. 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby support Timiskaming First Nation in their request to:  
 

• Ensure that checkpoint staff are clear on their roles and responsibilities; 
 

• Respect community members who are asserting their Aboriginal rights 
such as hunting, fishing, trapping, harvesting of plants and medicines, 
attending ceremonies, funerals or other cultural practices and allow 
them to pass through the checkpoint without incident; and 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 7 
 
 

• Train and educate all checkpoint staff to ensure the above noted 
information is properly applied to Timiskaming First Nation members 
seeking to cross the border; and 

 
That further that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Honourable Doug Ford, 
Premier of Ontario; the Honourable François Legault, Premier of Quebec; the 
Honourable Sylvia Jones, Solicitor General for Ontario; the Honourable Doug 
Downey, Attorney General for Ontario; and the Honourable Simon Jolin-
Barrette, Attorney General of Quebec. 
 
 

c) Memo No. 018-2021-CS – Interim Building Services Agreement 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 018-2021-CS; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
Agreement with the City of Timmins for Interim Building Services, for 
consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 
 

d) Memo No. 019-2021-CS – Funding Request from the Tri-Town Ski and 
Snowboard Village   

 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 019-2021-CS; and 
 
That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approves the request from 
the Tri-Town Ski and Snowboard Village to sponsor their funding application to 
the Frog’s Breath Foundation in the amount of $50,000 for their equipment 
storage garage project.     
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 8 
 
 

e) Memo No. 020-2021-CS – Amendment to By-law No. 2021-005 (FedNor 
Funding Agreement – 2021 PDAC Conference) 

 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 020-2021-CS; and 
 
That Council direct staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law No. 
2021-005 regarding the Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada 
(PDAC) Convention for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council 
meeting. 
 
 

f) Administrative Report No. CS-019-2021 – Outdoor Patio Policy 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-019-2021; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to adopt an Outdoor 
Patio Policy to allow and regulate patios on City owned property for 
consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting.   
 
 

g) Administrative Report No. CS-020-2021 - Part Lot Control Exemption: 

2373775 Ontario Inc. 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere  
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report PW-020-2021; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to remove part lot 
control on the lands described as Part of PIN 61339-0754, Part of Block C Plan 
M79NB, Part 5 Plan 54R-6121; Temiskaming Shores; District of Timiskaming 
for consideration during the by-law portion of the May 4, 2021 Regular Council 
meeting. 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 9 
 
 

h) Administrative Report No. PW-012-2021 – ICI Water Meter Program 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen  
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report PW-012-2021; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Neptune Technology Group for the supply and installation of 
water meters for the ICI sector in the amount of $ 93,899 plus applicable taxes, 
for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting; and 
 
That Council directs Staff to release the Initial Stakeholder Communication 
Letter and to host a virtual stakeholder meeting on Wednesday June 9th, 2021 
at 10:00 am for ICI establishments affected by the new ICI Water Meter 
Program. 
 
 

i) Administrative Report No. CS-021-2021 – Water/Sewer Rates  

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-021-2021; and 
 
That Council approves the following water/sewer rate methods across the 
municipality: 
 

• Multi Unit Properties: full residential water/sewer rate per unit; 
 

• Hotels: applicable Commercial water/sewer rate times the number of 
rooms times 35% 

 

• Day cares: charged on a per student/staff rate; and 
 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to implement the 
new rate methods in future water/sewer rate by-laws effective January 1, 
2022. 
 

 
  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 10 
 
 

j) Memo No. 012-2021-PW – National Public Works Week Proclamation  
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly  
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen  
 
Whereas Public Works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and 
services that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities 
and to the public health, high quality of life and well-being of the people of 
Ontario; and 
 
Whereas these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided 
without the dedicated efforts of Public Works professionals, who are engineers, 
managers and employees at all levels of government and the private sector, 
who are responsible for rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation’s 
transportation, water supply, water treatment and solid waste systems, public 
buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and 
 
Whereas it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in 
Ontario to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive interest and 
understanding of the importance of public works and public works programs in 
their respective communities; and 
 
Whereas the year 2021 marks the 61st annual National Public Works Week. 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that Council for The Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores hereby proclaims the week May 16 – 22, 2021 as 
National Public Works Week, in the City of Temiskaming Shores and urges 
all our residents to join City representatives to recognize our public works 
professionals, technologists, technicians, engineers, managers and dedicated 
front-line employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they make 
to protecting our health, safety, and quality of life.  
 
 

k) Administrative Report No. PW-011-2021 – Emergency Water Main 

Relocation – Highway 11 Crossing 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report PW-011-2021;  
 
That as outlined in By-law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10, 
Council approves waiving the tendering procedure and directs staff to prepare 
the necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen Construction 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 11 
 
 

(2013) Inc. for the Emergency Water Main Relocation – Highway 11 Crossing 
in the amount of $ 158,850 plus applicable taxes for consideration at the May 
4, 2021 Regular Council meeting; and 
 
That Council approves the utilization of the Environmental Reserve to finance 
the Emergency Water Main Relocation. 

 
 

l) Administrative Report No. RS-010-2021 – Haileybury Fire Hall Tender 

Award 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley  
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report RS-010-2021;  
 
That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approves an increase in the 
2021 Capital Budget for the Haileybury Fire Station from $1,680,000 to 
$2,513,000;  
 
That Council agrees to fund the increase in the revised Haileybury Fire Station 
Capital Budget as follows: 
 

• Use $604,895 in Gas Tax Funding for the Roads Program 

• Reallocate $604,895 from the Roads Program to the Fire Hall project 

• Defer the New Liskeard Marina Building repairs and reallocate the own 
purpose revenue ($108,000) to the Fire Hall project 

• Utilize Community Development Reserve in the amount of $120,105 for 
the Fire Hall Project; and 

 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with CGV Builders Inc. for the award of the Haileybury Fire Station 
Design-Build as detailed in Request for Proposal RS-RFP-002-2021, for a total 
upset limit of $2,090,000 plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the May 4, 
2021 Regular Meeting of Council. 

 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 12 
 
 
16. By-laws 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt  
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that:  
 
By-law No. 2021-073  Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2019-018, as amended 

to appoint community representatives to various Committees 
and Boards for the 2019-2022 Term of Council  

 
By-law No. 2021-074 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with the City of 

Timmins for Interim Building Services 
 
By-law No. 2021-075 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2021-005 (FedNor 

Contribution Agreement for the Virtual Northern Ontario Mining 
Showcase at the 2021 Prospectors and Developers Association 
of Canada International Convention Project No. 852-512885 – 
Amendment No. 1) 

 
By-law No. 2021-076 Being a By-Law to Adopt an Outdoor Patio Policy for the City 

of Temiskaming Shores 
 
By-law No. 2021-077 Being a by-law to remove Part Lot Control from Part of Block 

C, Plan M79NB, Temiskaming Shores (Roll No. 54-18-010-
008-007.03) 

 
By-law No. 2021-078 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Neptune 

Technology Group Canada Co. for the Supply and Installation 
of water meters for the Industrial, Commercial, and 
institutional (ICI) sector in the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 
By-law No. 2021-079 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen 

Construction (2013) Inc. for the Highway 11 Emergency 
Casing and Watermain Installation Project 

 
By-law No. 2021-080 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with CGV Builders 

Inc. for the Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build 
 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 13 
 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly  
 
Be it resolved that: 
 
By-law No. 2021-073; 
By-law No. 2021-074; 
By-law No. 2021-075; 
By-law No. 2021-076;  
By-law No. 2021-077;  
By-law No. 2021-078;  
By-law No. 2021-079; and 
By-law No. 2021-080 

 

 
be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate 
seal affixed thereto. 
 
 

17. Schedule of Council Meetings  
 
 

a) Regular – Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

b) Regular – Tuesday, June 1, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

 

19. Closed Session 
 
None 

 

 

20. Confirming By-law 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

 
Be it resolved that By-law No. 2021-081 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its 
Regular meeting held on May 4, 2021, be hereby introduced and given first and 
second reading. 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 5, 2021 Page 14 
 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

 
Be it resolved that By-law No. 2021-081 be given third and final reading, be signed 
by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 
 
 

21. Adjournment 
 

Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that Council hereby adjourns its meeting at _______ p.m. 



 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, April 20, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 

Electronic Meeting 

 

Minutes 

1. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kidd at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
Council: Mayor Carman Kidd; Councillors Jesse Foley, Patricia Hewitt, Doug 

Jelly, Jeff Laferriere, Mike McArthur and Danny Whalen 
 

Present:    Christopher Oslund, City Manager 
Kelly Conlin, Deputy Clerk 
Shelly Zubyck, Director of Corporate Services 
Mathew Bahm, Director of Recreation 
Steve Langford, Fire Chief 
Brad Hearn, IT Administrator 
Steve Burnett, Manager of Environmental Services 
Mitch Lafreniere, Manager of Transportation Services 
Jennifer Pye, Planner 
Laure Lee MacLeod, Treasurer 

 
Regrets: 

 
None 

 
 

3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 
 

Mayor Kidd requested the first Question and Answer Period follow Presentations. 
  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 2 
 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

Resolution No. 2021-175 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as amended. 
 

Carried 
 

 
5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

 
 
 

6. Review and adoption of Council Minutes 
 
Resolution No. 2021-176 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 
 
Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 
 
a) Regular meeting of Council – April 6, 2021. 

 
Carried 

 
 

7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 
Statutes 

 
None. 

 
 

8. Presentations / Delegations 
 
 

a) Yves Paille, Chair/ President and Lianne Paille, Vice-President/ Co-chair of Zack’s 
Crib 
 
Re: Temiskaming Shores and Area Safe Bed Facility - Offering support to 
individuals dealing with homelessness 

 
 Yves and Lianne Paille shared a brief background on how the idea for Zack’s 
 crib, a Safe bed facility came to be.  Following the introduction, Kelly Howard and 
 Renee Godmaire provided Council with details on the different types of 
 homelessness, facility operations, resources and capacity.  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 3 
 
 
 Throughout the presentation, the Zack’s Crib representatives answered 
 questions from members of Council such as; concerns about location, hours of 
 operation, and the other vulnerable populations in the area. 
  

9. Question and Answer Period 

Shelly Zubyck, Director of Corporate Services presented both Council and Zack’s 
Crib Representatives with the questions from the public regarding safety of the 
other vulnerable populations in the area, the possibility of changing locations of the 
facility. 
 
Mayor Kidd clarified to the public that the City has no control or say about the 
location or day-to-day operations of this facility; and the purchase of the building 
and operations are a venture between Zack’s crib and the District of Timiskaming 
Social Services Administrative Board (DTSSAB). 
 
 

10. Communications 

 
a) Mr. Brad Sauve, Resident 

 
Re: Request to Purchase Municipal Land, 2021-03-27 
 
Reference: Referred to the Municipal Clerk for processing in accordance with 
the Disposition of Land By-law 2015-160 
 
 

b) Nathalie Grenier-Ducharme, Direction 
 
Re: l'ecole catholique Sainte-Croix, 2021-03-31 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

c) Mintu John, Director of Operations  
 
Re: Transit Proposal Intercitv/ Intercommunitv Service, 2021-04-01 
 
Reference: Received for Information 
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 4 
 
 

d) Mr. Robert Ritchie, Resident  
 
Re: Support for Zack’s Crib Facility at 183 Broadwood Avenue in New 
Liskeard, 2021-04-06 
 
Reference: Received for Information   

 

e) Mr. Hugo Rivet, Resident  
 
Re: Sidewalk Extensions in Downtown Areas, 2021-04-09 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

f) Northdale Manor Resident Petition  
 
Re: Petition in Opposition to Zack’s Crib Location at 183 Broadwood Avenue, 
2021-04-12 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

g) Kirby and Judy Seymour, Residents  
 
Re: Petition in Opposition to Zack’s Crib Location at 183 Broadwood Avenue, 
2021-04-16 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 

Resolution No. 2021-177 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt  
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 
 
Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  to 
10.g) according to the Agenda references. 
 

Carried 
11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 5 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-178 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 
 
a) Minutes of the Business Improvement Area Board of Management meetings held 

on January 18, 2021 and on March 15, 2021.  

Carried 
 

12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 
 
None 
 

 
13. Reports by Members of Council 

 
Councillor McArthur indicated that construction of the Rotary Splash Pad is 
underway. 
 
Councillor Jelly informed Council of a presentation at a recent Police Services 
Board meeting from Tyler Twarowski, regarding the Mobile Crisis Response 
Team which is a formal partnership between Canadian Mental Health and the 
OPP.   
 
Mayor Kidd provided an update in regards to the 2 plus 1 Highway 11 initiative. 

 
 

14. Notice of Motions 

 
None. 
 
 

15. New Business 

a) Notice of Motion - Ontario Provincial Police Detachment Boards 
(Councillor Whalen) 

 
 Resolution No. 2021-179 

Moved by: Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by: Councillor Jelly 

 
Whereas the Temiskaming Detachment of the Ontario Provincial Police 
provides service to 19 municipalities and supports 1 First Nation Police Service 
in its coverage area representing 20,200 residents; and 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 6 
 
 

Whereas the Ministry of the Solicitor General initiated consultations on OPP 
Detachments Boards in January/February, 2020; and 
 
Whereas the Ministry of the Solicitor General sent a letter to all Heads of 
Council and First Nations Chiefs dated March 18, 2021 requesting that 
municipalities and First Nation communities receiving direct and/or 
supplemental services from an OPP detachment submit one proposal 
indicating the composition of their board and, if needed, a rationale for multiple 
boards and the composition of each additional board; and 
 
Whereas the deadline to submit completed proposals to the Ministry is Monday, 
June 7, 2021; and 
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board was formed in 2004 
with hybrid municipal and OPP police service; and 
 
Whereas the municipal police service was disbanded in September 2007 in 
favour of an OPP contract for the entire municipality with the preference that a 
Police Services Board be maintained; and 
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board represents almost 
one-half of the population covered by the Temiskaming Detachment of the 
Ontario Provincial Police (9,920 residents); and 
 
Whereas the City of Temiskaming Shores desires to maintain a Police Services 
Board in order to ensure effective and accountable police governance for its 
residents. 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
petitions the Minister of the Solicitor General to maintain the Temiskaming 
Shores Police Services Board as a separate entity from any proposed 
Detachment Board(s);  
 
That the City of Temiskaming Shores respectfully requests support from the 
municipalities and First Nation covered by the Temiskaming Detachment of the 
Ontario Provincial; and 
 
Further that Council directs the City Manager to contact each of the 
municipalities and Temagami First Nation in an effort to develop a joint proposal 
and rationale for multiple boards for the Temiskaming Detachment of the 
Ontario Provincial Police. 

 
Carried 

 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 7 
 
 

b) Support - Town of Kingsville – Bill C-21, An Act to amend certain Acts 
and to make certain consequential amendments (firearms) 
 
Resolution No. 2021-180 
Moved by: Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by: Councillor Hewitt 
 
Whereas municipalities have never been responsible for gun control laws in 
Canada; and 
 
Whereas law-abiding Temiskaming Shores residents who own legal handguns 
have already been thoroughly vetted through the CFSC, PAL and ATT 
applications; and 
 
Whereas illegal gun owners and smugglers do not respect postal codes; and 
 
Whereas if one municipality enacts a ban and not a neighbouring municipality, 
this will create a patchwork of by-laws; and 
 
Whereas a municipal ban would be difficult to enforce and easy to get around. 
 
Now therefore be it resolved that The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby supports the Town of Kingsville’s opposition to the adoption of 
any by-laws restricting the possession, storage and transportation of legally 
obtained handguns; and 
 
Be it further resolved that this resolution be forwarded to the following public 
officials: The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, Prime Minister of Canada; 
The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario; Andrea Horwath, Leader of 
the Official Opposition; The Honourable Erin O'Toole, Leader of Official 
Opposition; The Honourable Anthony Rota, MP Nipissing-Timiskaming; and 
John Vanthof, MPP Timiskaming—Cochrane.  
 

Carried 
 
 

c) Memo No. 017-2021-CS – 2021 Tax Ratios  
 

Resolution No. 2021-181 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 017-2021-CS; and 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 8 
 
 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-laws utilizing the Starting 
Ratios for 2021, for consideration at the Regular Meeting of Council on April 
20, 2021. 
 

Carried 
 

 
d) Administrative Report No. CS-018-2021 – Site Plan Agreement: Lawrence 

Coulis, 522 Georgina Avenue 

Resolution No. 2021-182 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-018-2021;  
 
That Council agrees to enter into a Site Plan Agreement with Lawrence Coulis 
for the property at 522 Georgina Avenue; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a Site 
Plan Agreement with Lawrence Coulis for the property at 522 Georgina Avenue 
for consideration at the April 20, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 

Carried 
 

 
e) Administrative Report No. PPP-001-2021 – Volunteer Firefighter 

Appointment 

Resolution No. 2021-183 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report No. PPP-001-2021; and 
 
That Council hereby appoints Denis Gosselin as a Volunteer Firefighters to the 
Temiskaming Shores Fire Department in accordance with the Recruitment and 
Retention Program. 
 

Carried 
 

 
  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 9 
 
 

f) Memo No. 011-2021-PW - By-law Amendment – Sidewalk and Curb 

Repairs 

Resolution No. 2021-184 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 011-2021-PW; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law No. 
2020-047 to extend the agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. to 
October 31, 2021, for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Concrete 
Sidewalk and Curb Repair Services at various locations within the City, for 
consideration at the April 20, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 

 

Carried 
 

g) Administrative Report No. PW-009-2021 – Loader Tender Award 

Resolution No. 2021-185 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report PW-009-2021;  
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with J.R. Brisson for the supply and delivery of a Loader, including 
an extended warranty, winter tires and an auto greaser, in the amount of 
$225,924.00, plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the April 20, 2021 
Regular Council Meeting; and 
 
That Council approves the purchase of appurtenances for the above vehicle 
with an upset limit of $2,000.00 plus applicable taxes. 
 

Carried 
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 10 
 
 

h) Administrative Report No. PW-010-2021 – Granular M Tender Award 

Resolution No. 2021-186 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere  
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report PW-010-2021; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Miller Paving Limited, for the supply and delivery of Granular 
“M” (12,000 t) in the amount of $88,200 plus applicable taxes for consideration 
at the April 20, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 

Carried 
 
 

i) Administrative Report No. RS-009-2021 – Riverside Farmers Market Lease 

Agreement 

Resolution No. 2021-187 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Administrative Report RS-009-2021; and 
 
That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a lease 
agreement with Riverside Farmers Market for the use of Riverside Place for the 
purposes of a Farmers Market on various dates from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 
2026, for consideration at the April 20, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 

Carried 
 

16. By-laws 

Resolution No. 2021-188 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Be it resolved that:  
 
By-law No. 2021-064  Being a by-law to establish Tax Ratios for 2021 
 
By-law No. 2021-065 Being a by-law to adopt the 2021 Water and Sewer Service 

Rates 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 11 
 
 

By-law No. 2021-066 Being a by-law of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores to authorize the borrowing upon serial debentures in 
the principal amount of $3,712,026.83 towards the cost of 
west road culvert, water projects, 2020 roads program, fleet 
replacement plan, recreation projects, IT upgrades, HLBY 
STP digester rehabilitation, firefighting equipment, and 
Haileybury Medical Centre upgrades 

 
By-law No. 2021-067 Being a by-law to authorize the execution of a Site Plan 

Control Agreement with Lawrence Coulis for 522 Georgina 
Avenue Roll No. 5418-030-002-025.00 

 
By-law No. 2021-068 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2020-047 (Agreement 

with Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for the supply of 
labour, equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services) 

 
By-law No. 2021-069 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with J.R. Brisson 

Equipment Ltd. for the Supply and Delivery of one (1) 
Articulated Four-Wheel Drive Front-End Loader 

 
By-law No. 2021-070 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller Paving 

Limited for the Supply and Stockpile of Granular “M” 
 
By-law No. 2021-071 Being a by-law to enter into a lease agreement with the 

Riverside Farmers Market for the use of Riverside Place for 
the purposes of a Farmers Market on various dates from April 
1, 2021 to March 31, 2026 

 
be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 
 

Carried 
 
Resolution No. 2021-189 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 
 
Be it resolved that: 
 
By-law No. 2021-064; 
By-law No. 2021-065; 
By-law No. 2021-066; 
By-law No. 2021-067;  
By-law No. 2021-068;  
By-law No. 2021-069; 
By-law No. 2021-070; and 
By-law No. 2021-071; 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 12 
 
 

be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate 
seal affixed thereto. 
 

Carried 
 
 

17. Schedule of Council Meetings  
 

a) Regular – Tuesday, May 4, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

b) Regular – Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

 
 

19. Closed Session 
 
Resolution No. 2021-190 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that Council agrees to convene in Closed Session at 7:08 p.m. to 
discuss the following matters:  
 
a) Adoption of the April 6, 2021 – Closed Session Minutes; and 
 
b) Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Personal matter (identifiable 

individual) – Interim Building Related Professional Services. 

Carried 
 
Resolution No. 2021-191 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 

 
Be it resolved that Council agrees to rise with report from Closed Session at 7:16 
p.m. 
 

Carried 
 
 

  



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 13 
 
 

Matters from Closed Session 

Adoption of the April 6, 2021 Closed Session Minutes 
 
Resolution No. 2021-192 
Moved by: Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by: Councillor Foley 
 
Be it resolved that City Council approves the following as printed: 
 
a) Closed Session Minutes from the Regular meeting of Council on April 6, 2021. 

 
Carried 

 
Professional Building Services 
 
Resolution No. 2021-193 
Moved by: Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by: Councillor Laferriere 
 
Be it resolved that Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into 
an agreement with the City of Timmins for the provision of Interim Building Services 
at the May 4, 2021 Regular meeting. 
 

Carried 
20. Confirming By-law 

 

Resolution No. 2021-194 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

 
Be it resolved that By-law No. 2021-072 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its 
Special meeting held on April 15, 2021, and at its Regular meeting held on April 
20, 2021, be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 
 

Carried 
 

Resolution No. 2021-195 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 

 
Be it resolved that By-law No. 2021-072 be given third and final reading, be signed 
by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 
 

Carried 



Regular Meeting of Council Minutes – April 20, 2021 Page 14 
 
 

 
21. Adjournment 

 

Resolution No. 2021-196 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley  
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 
 
Be it resolved that Council hereby adjourns its meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 

Carried 
 

 
Mayor- Carman Kidd 
 

 
Clerk – Kelly Conlin 

 



 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Special Meeting of Council 

Thursday, April 15, 2021 

6:00 p.m. 

Electronic Meeting 

 

Draft Minutes 

1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kidd at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 

Council: Mayor Carman Kidd; Councillors Jesse Foley, Doug Jelly, Jeff 
Laferriere, Mike McArthur and Danny Whalen 
 

Present:    Christopher Oslund, City Manager 
Logan Belanger, Municipal Clerk 
Kelly Conlin, Deputy Clerk 
Laura Lee MacLeod, Treasurer 

 
Regrets: 

 
Councillor Patricia Hewitt 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Kelly Conlin, Clerk received a request for the addition of two letters from ArGil 
related to agenda item 15 a) Memo No. 016-2021-CS – Form 357 Applications, 
received on April 15, 2021, which did not meet the deadline for agenda 
submissions.    
 
Resolution No. 2021-169 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 
 
Whereas Section 7.4 of Procedural By-law No. 2008-160, as amended, states that 
no business except the business dealing directly with the purpose mentioned in the 
notice shall be transacted at a Special Meeting; and 
 



Special Council Meeting Draft Minutes – April 15, 2021 Page 2                                  
  
 
 

Whereas Section 2.2 of Procedural By-law No. 2008-160, as amended, states that 
the rules and regulations contained within the by-law may not be suspended except 
by an affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members of Council present and voting; and 
 
Whereas the Clerk received two letters which did not meet the deadline for 
submission for inclusion as Communication Items on the special meeting agenda; 
and 
 
Whereas Council remains committed to transparency and accountability;  
 
Whereas Council desires and deems it expedient to suspend the rules of procedure 
under Section 7.4 of Procedural By-law No. 2008-160 to allow for an addition to the 
Special Meeting Agenda;  
 
Now therefore be it resolved that Council agrees to suspend the rules of procedure 
under Section 7.4 of Procedural By-law No. 2008-160 to allow for the addition of the 
following Communication items: 

 
a) Bob Langlois, ArGil 

 
Re: Form 357 Application - 998029 Highway 11 N (Roll No. 54-18-020-002-
11400), 2021-04-15; and 
 

b) Bob Langlois, ArGil 
 
Re: Form 357 Application - 2 Cedar Avenue (Roll No. 54-18-010-004-12600), 
2021-04-15. 
 

Carried 
 

Resolution No. 2021-170 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as amended. 

Carried 
  



Special Council Meeting Draft Minutes – April 15, 2021 Page 3                                  
  
 
 

4. Declaration of Special Council Meeting 

Resolution No. 2021-171 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores declares this 
meeting a “Special Meeting of Council” in accordance to Section 7 of Procedural By-
law No. 2008-160. 

Carried 

5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

None. 
 

6. Communications 

 
a) Bob Langlois, ArGil 

 
Re: Form 357 Application - 998029 Highway 11 N (Roll No. 54-18-020-002-
11400), 2021-04-15 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 
 

b) Bob Langlois, ArGil 
 
Re: Form 357 Application - 2 Cedar Avenue (Roll No. 54-18-010-004-12600), 
2021-04-15 
 
Reference: Received for Information  
 

 
Draft Resolution 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 
 
Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  to 
10.b) according to the Agenda references. 

 

  



Special Council Meeting Draft Minutes – April 15, 2021 Page 4                                  
  
 
 

7. New Business 

a) Memo No. 016-2021-CS – Form 357 Applications 

Resolution No. 2021-172 

Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere  
 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges 
receipt of Memo No. 016-2021-CS;  
 
That Council for the City of Temiskaming hereby denies the 357 Application 
from 988313 Ontario Limited and 1679444 Ontario Limited; and 
 
Further directs the Clerk to send notice of its decision in writing to the 
applicants. 
 

Carried 
 

Council will convene as the Board of Control in accordance with the City of Temiskaming 
Shores Business Licensing Policy (By-law No. 2011-114).  

 

b) Business Licensing Appeal - The Lunch Truck (11 May Street, New 
Liskeard) 
 

i. Submission by Josee and Marc Dupuis, The Lunch Truck 
 

ii. Submission by Mark Lavallee, Mikrolink Computers 
 

iii. Submission by Logan Belanger, Municipal Clerk with the City of Temiskaming 
Shores 

 
iv. Board of Control Deliberation  

 
v. Board of Control Decision 

 
  



Special Council Meeting Draft Minutes – April 15, 2021 Page 5                                  
  
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-173 

Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen  

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approves the appeal 
filed by Josee and Marc Dupuis, and hereby authorizes the issuance of a 
Refreshment Vehicle License for the operation of The Lunch Truck, at its current 
location (11 May Street in New Liskeard, North end of the Horne Granite Curling 
Club building). 

OR 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores declines the appeal 
filed by Josee and Marc Dupuis, and hereby refuses the issuance of a 
Refreshment Vehicle License for the operation of The Lunch Truck, at its current 
location (11 May Street in New Liskeard, North end of the Horne Granite Curling 
Club building). 

Carried 

Reconvene as Council for the purpose of adjourning.  
 

8. Adjournment 

Resolution No. 2021-174 

Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur  

Be it resolved that City Council adjourns at _______ p.m. 

Carried 

 
Mayor- Carman Kidd 
 
 

Clerk – Kelly Conlin 

 



Cultural Crossroads:
101 Experiences

City of Temiskaming Shores 

 Tuesday May 4th, 2021



Northeastern Ontario Consortium (CNEO)
CULTURAL CROSSROADS: 101 EXPERIENCES 

Regional partners: 

Sponsor: Centre culturel ARTEM

Director:  Nicole Guertin 



Northeastern Ontario Consortium (CNEO)
CULTURAL CROSSROADS: 101 EXPERIENCES 

101 +

NO FEES for participants 
or municipalities. 



Cultural crossroads: 101 Experiences

1) Develop 101+  Experiences for NEO
2) Create more welcoming communities
3) Develop an effective and reproducible 

Tourism Experience Incubator
4) Share knowledge at National virtual 

summit in March 2022 in partnership with 
Indigenous Tourism Association of Canada 

OBJECTIVES:  

  



Problems to be addressed?  

1. Population aging and decline 2. Racism in our communities

- Indigenous population is 
growing but not getting the 
jobs you deserve. 

3.  Need for new tourism products 

● Develop products that meet the 
needs of the new travelers looking 
to come up North. 

● Tourism products that are 
sustainable for small communities

4. Pandemic changing things 

● New people in the 
community.

● Experiences help them 
discover the community.

● Harness their passions





Tourism Development Incubator Model 
Passion Scout Video

https://youtu.be/SaZEi1OHSBU


8

Losing participants along the way 

PASSION 
FAIRS 

● The project might not be 
for everyone.

● Some of you might want 
to be  a co-host. 

● You might want to help 
for photography- social 
media. 

● Help with recruit clients. 



WELLNESS: spa 
session, forest 
bathing, meditation, 
yoga

SPORT: motorized sports, 
combat sports, fitness & 
recreation, team sports, raquet 
sports, snow sports, target 
sports, water sports

FOOD & DRINK: 
drink, food, local 
food, agriculture  

ART & CULTURE: art 
& design, culture & 
history & lifestyle . 

NATURE / OUTDOOR: 
animals, outdoor 
activities, transportation 

ENTERTAINMENT:comedy, dance, 
gaming, magic, movies, music, 
theatre,  . 

Themes



Art, Culture & history



Food & Drink



Wellness



Entertainment



Sports 



Nature and Outdoors 



16

5 week training program

● Online Modules (Canvas)
○  1.5 hour per week: watching videos & 

doing homework
● Weekly Zoom meetings (1 ½  to 2 hours) 
● Time to work on your own experience 
● Passion Fair, Mentorship Program
● Uploading Support
● Visibility Platforms (Airbnb, 101 

Experiences site)



17

Passion Fair- Key step to move forward 

:
● Online version of a 

‘speed dating’ event. 

● Helping you refine your 
experience idea 

● Improving your 
presentation skills 

● Becoming more 
comfortable and skilled 
in using online 
networking tools to 
share your experience 
pitch



● Opportunity to have a mentor to 
help finalize  your experience. 

● Identify what your needs are :

○ Writing

○ Costing your experience

○ Finding a location

○ Reaching to more people.

○ Increasing your confidence. 

18

Mentorship Program  



MARKETING - ONLINE 

● Option to host experience through Airbnb 
○ Benefit -- to purchase Experiences : 

Airbnb or individual website for 
individuals that have insurance. 

○ International visibility 
○ Easy payment method 
○ 20% service fee 



Other Marketing Strategies 

● Ride the 3rd wave program- 
May 2021 - online experiences- 
25 participants offering an 
online experience. 

● Launch during Celebrate 
Canada, (Aboriginal day, 
St-Jean Baptiste, Multicultural 
Day & Canada Day-June 21st to 
July 1st) 

● 2 minute videos of your 
experience. 

● Experience Ambassador 
Program & media relation



How can the City help the project? 

● Support the project as it is a tool that meets the 

Cultural Strategic Plan of the City.  

● Collaborate to support hosts developing experiences;

○ E.g. provide permission for Lynne Cormier to do a fire 

in her teepee during the day for her experience. 

○ Provide City’s venues for experience. 

○ Rashinder to use the pavilion for Banghra 

dancing.



Miigwetch | Thank You | Merci

Questions?

Director:  Nicole Guertin
nicole.guertin@gmail.com 

mailto:nicole.guertin@gmail.com




Request to Purchase Municipal Land (Highlighted in Black) 

Legal Description: BUCKE CON 4 S PT LOT 1 PCL 5447NND 

Roll No.  5418 030 010 07600 0000 

 

Seeking Access to Properties 

Requested Parcel for Purchase: 
BUCKE CON 4 S PT LOT 1 PCL 
5447NND 



From: Mario McLean   
Sent: Thursday, April 15, 2021 12:45 PM 
To: Chris Oslund <coslund@temiskamingshores.ca> 
Subject: Laurentian University needs your help - it affects your community 
 
Good afternoon Mayor C. Kidd, 
 
I am writing to you today to ask that the town of Temiskaming Shores supports Laurentian University as it's 
going through a devastating restructuring process.   
 

Laurentian University is a public institution, not a private sector corporation. Its bilingual and tri-cultural 
mandate to support French, English, and Indigenous programs is vital to the communities it serves. Laurentian 
University is economically and culturally important to Sudbury and Northern Ontario. It is the provincial 
government’s responsibility to ensure that Laurentian has the operating funds needed to secure the institution’s 
future. 
 
The time to act is now. I am asking that the town of Temiskaming Shores releases a statement in support of 
Laurentian and/or sends a letter to Queens Park.  These cuts will have repercussions on your municipality 
because students will have to travel further to get the post-secondary education they are looking for and it will 
contribute to the rural exodus of our northern Ontario youth.  The midwifery program, one of three and only 
bilingual program in Canada  has been cut, along with 68 other programs, and this will affect the public health 
of our northern communities as midwives are often the only option in these rural and underserved 
communities.     
 
L’Université a annoncé lundi que 28 programmes en français de premier et second cycle n’existeront plus à 
l’Université Laurentienne. Au total, 69 programmes et 110 postes de professeurs seront aussi coupés.  Notre 
francophonie est sous attaque et nous devons nous battre pour garder notre programmation francophone.    
 
I am counting on you to do everything in your power to support Laurentian in its fight to secure proper funding 
and to ensure that no jobs are lost, no programs are unnecessarily cut and no students are affected by the 
current challenges facing this important public institution.  
 
Faculty, staff, and students should not have to pay the price for the poor management practices of an 
underfunded public institution. 
 
The support of the town of Temiskaming Shores is greatly appreciated. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Mario McLean 
3rd-year Laurentian Student, former resident of Earlton 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE - AVIS: COURRIEL CONFIDENTIEL.  
You can view the confidentiality terms at https://laurentian.ca/confidentiality. Notre avis de confidentialité 
est disponible au site https://laurentienne.ca/avis  
 















Ministère des Transports 

Bureau du directeur  
Opération – Nord-Est  
447, avenue McKeown  
North Bay ON P1B 9S9 
705 497-5500 

Ministry of Transportation 

Director’s Office  
Northeast Operations  
447 McKeown Avenue  
North Bay ON  P1B 9S9 
705 497-5500 

April 16, 2021 

His Worship Carman Kidd 
Mayor 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive  
PO Box 2050    
Haileybury, ON  P0J 1K0 

Dear Mayor Kidd: 

I am writing today to inform you about some recent internal organizational changes at 
the Ministry of Transportation (MTO), and to introduce myself as the new Director of 
Northeast Operations.  Former Director, Eric Doidge, has moved on to the role of 
Assistant Deputy Minister, Operations Division, however, remains in close contact with 
our region. 

In July 2020, MTO implemented a new organizational model that resulted in the creation 
of the Operations Division. Our division integrates the delivery of ministry services in the 
region and will continue to be your key contact on any emerging issues and areas of 
interest.  We play an integral role in the ministry’s work on corridor management, 
emergency management, infrastructure preservation and protection, maintenance and 
operations to ensure a safe, continuous flow of people, goods and services to facilitate 
economic prosperity.  

I want to highlight our most important work, working closely with stakeholders and 
Indigenous partners throughout the phases of our work. As the Director of Northeast 
Operations, my highest priority is maintaining strong relationships with our external 
stakeholders and partners, and I will endeavour to facilitate this wherever possible. 

I look forward to continuing our relationship with you under this new organizational 
structure. If you require support or have any questions related to any ministry service, 
please feel free to contact me at Herb.Villneff@ontario.ca or 705-497-5500.  
Alternatively you may also contact Kristin Franks, Regional Services and Relationship 
Manager by email at Kristin.Franks@ontario.ca or by phone at 705-497-5264. 

Sincerely, 

Herb Villneff 
Director, Northeast Operations 

mailto:Herb.Villneff@ontario.ca
mailto:Kristin.Franks@ontario.ca


 

 

 The Corporation of the City of Cambridge 
Corporate Services Department 
Clerk’s Division 
The City of Cambridge 
50 Dickson Street, P.O. Box 669 
Cambridge ON  N1R 5W8 
Tel:  (519) 740-4680 ext 4585  
mantond@cambridge.ca 
 
 

April 21, 2021 
 
 
 
 
Re:  Resolution - City of Cambridge Council – Request for Paid Sick Leave 
 
At the Special Council Meeting of April 20, 2021, the Council of the Corporation 
of the City of Cambridge passed the following motion: 
 
Mover:  Councillor Wolf 
Seconder: Councillor Reid 

 

WHEREAS as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the increase in cases in 

Ontario, our hospitals and Intensive Care Units s are overrun with people sick with 

the virus; 

AND WHEREAS according to the Provincial Science Advisory Table on COVID-19 

we need to protect essential workers and support them with paid sick leave; 

AND WHEREAS it is being reported that the drivers of transmission are indoor work 

places, particularly industrial workplaces, warehouses, and distribution centres; 

AND WHEREAS the COVID-19 crisis has unmasked the inequalities in our Province 

as most of the people now getting sick are the most vulnerable in our society and 

are those who cannot afford to stay home and often live and work in crowded 

conditions; 

AND WHEREAS Workers who are denied paid sick days do not avoid illness, they 

bring the infections to work with them, and they transmit them to their coworkers, 

employees without paid sick leave; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Cambridge Council urge the Honourable Doug 

Ford, Premier to require Ontario employers to provide no less than five paid sick 

days annually to workers — after three months of employment — by amending the 

mailto:mantond@cambridge.ca


 

 

Employment Standards Act, 2000, or through a different mechanism and to provide 

necessary funding, fiscal relief and/or support to employers so that all workers in 

Ontario have access to no less than 10 paid sick days annually in the event of a 

declared infectious disease emergency, such as the COVID-19 pandemic and 

ensure all Ontario workers have access to protected and paid emergency leave so 

care can be provided to children, parents, and/or other family members who may 

become ill and that all workers may receive paid time off to enable them to receive 

the COVID-19 Vaccine. 

AND FURTHER that upon Council’s approval of this motion that it be forwarded to 

the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, the Provincial Minister of Labour, the 

Premier, and each Ontario municipality. 

Should you have any questions related to the approved resolution, please 
contact me.  
 
Yours truly, 
 

 
 
Danielle Manton 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Timiskaming First Nation Chief & Council Information Bulletin - 2021 04 21 
 

TIMISKAMING FIRST NATION 
 
                                                   Tel: (819) 723-2370 
24 Algonquin Ave.                                       Fax: (819) 723-2799 
Notre Dame du Nord, QC J0Z 3B0                                      Email:tfncouncil@parolink.net 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

April 21, 2021 

 

CHIEF AND COUNCIL RESPOND TO COVID-19 PROVINCIAL 

CHECKPOINTS 

 

In Quebec, Ontario and across Canada, provinces and territories are taking the step of 

establishing checkpoints or closing the borders in an attempt to contain the spread of the 

COVID-19 virus. The temporary restriction in movement is supported by the Provincial 

Health Directors and the medical professionals in general. 

 

It is important to note that Ontario has specifically identified the practice of an Aboriginal 

or Treaty right is a valid reason to cross the checkpoint.  

 

The ultimate decisions to “close" our community, and the assessment of related security 

needs, rest solely with our Chief and Council. These decisions are informed through 

collaborative conversations with our local Health Director, the Office of the Chief 

Medical Officer for both Ontario and Quebec, in addition to Quebec's Provincial Health 

Officer. 

 

As with any public health intervention, Council must consider the benefits and risks of 

checkpoints and community closures. Those benefits and risks vary depending on whether 

the community is using checkpoints to provide public health education and other relevant 

information, or whether the community is using the checkpoint to try and force 

compliance, or some combination of both.   

 

Community members have expressed concerns that the provincial checkpoints, currently 

enforced by Ontario and Quebec, may prevent them from exercising their Aboriginal 

rights.   In response to these concerns Chief and Council have provided a letter to the 

Premiers and Attorney Generals of both Quebec and Ontario requesting the following:  

• Ensure that checkpoint staff are clear on their roles and responsibilities: 



 
Timiskaming First Nation Chief & Council Information Bulletin - 2021 04 21 
 

o Respect those community members who are asserting their Aboriginal rights 

such as hunting, fishing, trapping, harvesting of plants and medicines, 

attending ceremonies, funerals or other cultural practices and allow them to 

pass through the checkpoint without incident; 

• Checkpoint staff are expected to receive appropriate training/education to ensure 

the above noted information is properly applied to Timiskaming First Nation 

members seeking to cross the border.   

We appreciate the community’s efforts to hold each other up and practice lateral kindness 

during these challenging times.  Please do not hesitate to contact Council at 819-723-2370 

in the event that any of these checkpoint policies are not enforced.  
 

 

 

Chief and Council 

Timiskaming First Nation 



w
WI LLS

PARTNERS I’J
-ENGINEERINGLANNING4 -

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

sC’(A,Vd 47/23/?)

April 21, 2021

City of Temiskaming Shores
325 Farr Drive
Haileybury, ON
POJ 1KO

Attention: Christopher W. Oslund, City Manager

Re: Notice of Study Commencement
MTO Group ‘C’ Class Environmental Assessment
Detail Design Study and Production of a Contract Document for
Highway 65 at the Future Grant Drive Extension, City of Temiskaming Shores
GWP 501 8-20-00

Dear Christopher W. Oslund,

D.M. Wills Associates Limited (Wills) has been retained by the Ministry of
Transportation (MTO), to undertake the Detail Design and production of a
Contract Document for a new intersection (Project) on Highway 65 at the
future Grant Drive extension, extending from the intersection of Highway 65
North and Highway 65 East, easterly for 1 .0 km in the City of Temiskaming Shores
(Study Area).

The MTO was approached by the City of Temiskaming Shores (City) regarding
their plans to extend Grant Drive to exit onto Highway 65. MTO has noted their
intent to work with the City since the intended improvement impacts both
municipal and provincial infrastructure.

The improvements will consist of the design for a new eastbound left turn lane
or left turn slip-around at the new intersection of Highway 65 and the future
Grant Drive extension and a new westbound right turn taper at the same
intersection.

As part of the assignment, environmental studies will be completed,
including Natural Science Assessments of fish and wildlife, vegetation, and
Species at Risk (SAR).

Temporary traffic delays are anticipated for staging and detour operations
for the new intersection on Highway 65. A Traffic Management Plan will be
developed during detail design to incorporate provisions to minimize
impacts and delays to the travelling public within the work site.

The enclosed Key Map illustrates the location of the Study Area.

e
Con ting
Engrr eels
ci Ontario

D.M. Wills Associates Limited

150 Jameson Drive, Peterborough, Ontario, Canada K9J 089

P. 705,742,229 7 F. 705.748.9944 E. willsdrnwilIs.com



Notice of Study Commencement
Page 2 of 3

W I L L S April2]2021

The Process

This Project is following the approved process for a Group ‘C’ undertaking in
accordance with the MTQ Class Environmental Assessment (EA) for Provincial
Transportation Facilities (2000). Through this process, an Environmental
Screening Document (ESD) will be prepared to document the existing
conditions of the Study Area, potential impacts of the undertaking and
recommendations for appropriate mitigation measures.

Comments

You are encouraged to contact the Project Consultant or the MTO by
May 19, 2021 if you have any questions or concerns regarding this Project.

Gord Krieger, P.Eng. or Andrée Beaupré
Project Manager Project Manager
D.M. Wills Associates Limited MTO, Northeastern Region
150 Jameson Drive 447 McKeown Avenue
Peterborough, ON K9J 0B9 North Bay, ON PIB 9S9
Telephone: (705) 742-2297 x 275 Telephone: (705) 497-5203
Fax: (705) 741-3568 Andree.BeauQre@ontario.ca
E-mail: qkrieqer@dmwills.com

Information will be collected in accordance with the Freedom of Information
and Protection Act. With the exception of personal information, all
comments will become part of the public record.

If you require accessibility under the Ontarians with Disabilities Act, please
contact either Project Team member above.

Thank you in advance for your assistance and cooperation.

Sincerely,
1•

Gord Krieger, P.Eng.
Project Manager
D.M. Wills Associates Limited

SG/bam

End.

cc. Christopher Home, Environmental Planner, MTO Northeastern Region
Michael J. Lord, Environmental Manager, D.M. Wills Associates Limited
Savannah Golding, Environmental Technician, D.M. Wills Associates Limited

[).M. WHIs Associctes Limited

50 Jameson Drive, Peterborough. Ontario, Canada K9J 0B9

P. 705.742.2297 F. 705.748.9944 E. wills Ldrnwills.com



w
WILLS

Notice of Study Commencement
Page 3 of 3
April 21, 2021

Shady Area

Key Map

lake rirniskarwng
(fat Témiscanngue)

0 0.25 0.5

D.M. Wills Associates Limited

150 Jarneson Drive, Pelerborough, Ontario, Canada K9J 0B9

P. 705.742.2297 F. 705.748.9944 E. wiIIsdrnwilIs.com



 

Community Services 

              Legislative Services 

April 27, 2021 
File #120203 

Sent via email: premier@ontario.ca 
 

The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario  
Legislative Building  
Queen's Park  
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1  
 

Honourable and Dear Sir: 
 
Re: Province Investigating and Updating Source Water Protection Legislation 
 
Please be advised the Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie at its meeting of April 26, 
2021 passed the following resolution: 
 
Whereas the Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie passed a resolution on October 21st, 
2019 identifying that 1,100 private water wells were in operation in the Town of Fort Erie, of 
which 75% were used for domestic purposes including human and livestock consumption, and 
 
Whereas the Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie further identified in that resolution that 
Council requires the protection of water in the aquifer supplying water to those wells from 
contamination as the result of any remediation of Pit One owned by the Port Colborne Quarries 
in the City of Port Colborne, and further 
  
Whereas Report No. PDS-23-2021, approved by Council on March 22, 2021, identified that 
while the Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority, The Regional Municipality of Niagara and 
Local Area Municipalities work together to protect source water, these plans do not generally 
apply to private servicing, and 
  
Whereas Report No. PDS-23-2021 further identified efforts undertaken by the Town of Fort 
Erie through available provincial planning policy, regulation and legislation to protect source 
water within the Town of Fort Erie without any explicit ability to designate source water 
protection for private services, and 
  
Whereas on July 28, 2010, through Resolution 64/292, the United Nations General Assembly 
explicitly recognized the human right to water and sanitation and acknowledged that clean 
drinking water and sanitation are essential to the realization of all human rights, and 
  
 

…/2 
 

Mailing Address:                The Corporation of the Town of Fort Erie  
1 Municipal Centre Drive, Fort Erie ON  L2A 2S6 

Office Hours  8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.   Phone: (905) 871-1600 FAX:  (905) 871-4022 Web-site:  www.forterie.ca 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca


The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario      Page two 

 
Whereas it would be desirable to ensure that those in our community who rely on wells and 
other private servicing for clean drinking water are afforded the same source water protection 
as municipal drinking water systems; 
  
Now therefore it be resolved, 
  
That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie recognizes and acknowledges that clean 
drinking water and sanitation are basic human rights and essential to the realization of all 
human rights, and further 
  
That: The Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie requests that the Ministry of 
Environment, Conservation and Parks consider legislative changes that would permit the 
expansion of source water protection to aquifers and private services, and further 
  
That: This resolution be circulated to The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, the 
Honourable Jeff Yurek, Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks, Wayne Gates, 
MPP Niagara Falls, Jeff Burch, MPP Niagara Centre, Jennifer Stevens, MPP St. Catharines 
and Sam Oosterhoff, MPP Niagara West, and further 
  
That: This resolution be circulated to all Conservation Authorities and Municipalities in Ontario 
for their endorsement and support. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 
Yours very truly, 

 

Carol Schofield, Dipl.M.A.  
Manager, Legislative Services/Clerk 
cschofield@forterie.ca 
CS:dlk 
c.c. 
The Honourable Jeff Yurek, Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks jeff.yurekco@pc.ola.org  
Jeff Burch, MPP, Niagara Centre jburch-qp@ndp.on.ca 
Sam Oosterhoff, MPP, Niagara West sam.oosterhoff@pc.ola.org  
Jennifer Stevens, MPP, St. Catharines JStevens-co@ndp.on.ca 
Wayne Gates, MPP, Niagara Falls wgates-co@ndp.on.ca 
Ontario Conservation and all Ontario Conservation Authorities: kgavine@conservationontario.ca; bhorner@abca.ca; kfurlanetto@crca.ca; 
generalmanager@catfishcreek.ca; @cloca.com; mvytvytskyy@hrca.on.ca; deb.martindowns@cvc.ca; tim.pidduck@crowevalley.com; 
tbyrne@erca.org; llaliberte@grca.on.ca; karmstrong@grandriver.ca; t.lanthier@greysauble.on.ca; Lisa.Burnside@conservationhamilton.ca; 
mmajchrowski@kawarthaconservation.com; elizabeth@kettlecreekconservation.on.ca;.cullen@lsrca.on.ca; tammy@lakeheadca.com; 
jmaxwell@lprca.on.ca; mark.peacock@ltvca.ca; kelly.vandettte@ltc.on.ca; beard@mvca.on.ca; David.Vallier@mattagamiregion.ca; 
smcintyre@mvc.on.ca; csharma@npca.ca; carl.jorgensen@conservationsudbury.ca; brian.tayler@nbmca.ca; dhevenor@nvca.on.ca;  
dlandry@otonabeeconservation.com; bmcnevin@quinteconservation.ca; richard.pilon@rrca.on.ca; sommer.casgrain-robertson@rvca.ca;  
j.stephens@svca.on.ca; cbarrett@ssmrca.ca; acoleman@nation.on.ca; bmcdougall@scrca.on.ca; John.MacKenzie@trca.ca; 
annettt@thamesriver.on.ca  
Ontario Municipalities 

 

mailto:cschofield@forterie.ca
mailto:jeff.yurekco@pc.ola.org
mailto:jburch-qp@ndp.on.ca
mailto:sam.oosterhoff@pc.ola.org
mailto:JStevens-co@ndp.on.ca
mailto:wgates-co@ndp.on.ca
mailto:kgavine@conservationontario.ca
mailto:bhorner@abca.ca
mailto:kfurlanetto@crca.ca
mailto:generalmanager@catfishcreek.ca
mailto:cmiller@cloca.com
mailto:mvytvytskyy@hrca.on.ca
mailto:deb.martindowns@cvc.ca
mailto:tim.pidduck@crowevalley.com
mailto:tbyrne@erca.org
mailto:llaliberte@grca.on.ca
mailto:karmstrong@grandriver.ca
mailto:t.lanthier@greysauble.on.ca
mailto:Lisa.Burnside@conservationhamilton.ca
mailto:mmajchrowski@kawarthaconservation.com
mailto:elizabeth@kettlecreekconservation.on.ca;.cullen@lsrca.on.ca
mailto:tammy@lakeheadca.com
mailto:jmaxwell@lprca.on.ca
mailto:mark.peacock@ltvca.ca
mailto:@ltc.on.ca
mailto:beard@mvca.on.ca
mailto:David.Vallier@mattagamiregion.ca
mailto:smcintyre@mvc.on.ca
mailto:csharma@npca.ca
mailto:carl.jorgensen@conservationsudbury.ca
mailto:brian.tayler@nbmca.ca
mailto:dhevenor@nvca.on.ca
mailto:dlandry@otonabeeconservation.com
mailto:bmcnevin@quinteconservation.ca
mailto:richard.pilon@rrca.on.ca
mailto:j.stephens@svca.on.ca
mailto:cbarrett@ssmrca.ca
mailto:acoleman@nation.on.ca
mailto:bmcdougall@scrca.on.ca
mailto:John.MacKenzie@trca.ca
mailto:annettt@thamesriver.on.ca


 

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE     City Hall, 100 Wellington Square, Brantford, ON N3T 2M2      P.O Box 818, Brantford, ON N3T 5R7                    

Phone: (519) 759-4150        Fax: (519) 759-7840                www.brantford.ca 

 

April 30, 2021 
 
Hon. Doug Ford, Premier 
Room 281 
Legislative Building, Queen's Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 
 
Sent via email: premier@ontario.ca  
  
Dear Premier Ford, 
 
Please be advised that at the Brantford City Council Meeting held April 27, 2021, the following resolution 
was adopted: 
 
 Request - Province of Ontario withdraws its prohibition on golfing and any other outdoor 

recreational activities 

WHEREAS COVID-19 restrictions have had significant impacts; and 
 
WHEREAS many forms of socializing, recreation and sport have been curtailed; and 
 
WHEREAS the game of golf can be enjoyed while maintaining proper social distancing; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Corporation of The City of Brantford recommends: 
 

A. THAT The Province of Ontario withdraws its prohibition on golfing and any other outdoor 
recreational activities which can be enjoyed while maintaining proper social distancing; 
and 
 

B. THAT the City Clerk BE DIRECTED to forward a copy of this resolution to the Premier of 
Ontario; Will Bouma, MPP, Brantford-Brant, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, 
Ontario Big City Mayors; and the list of other Municipalities in Ontario. 
 

 

Yours truly, 

 

 
 

Tanya Daniels 
City Clerk 
tdaniels@brantford.ca 
 

cc MPP Will Bouma, Brantford-Brant 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 
Ontario Big City Mayors 

 All Ontario Municipalities 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:tdaniels@brantford.ca


 
 

 

Haileybury Heritage Museum 

P.O. Box 911, 575 Main Street, 

Haileybury, Ontario.  P0J 1K0 

Tel: (705) 672-1922 

 

 

 

 
 
April 30, 2021 
 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive, P.O. Box 2050, 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
Re: Great Fire of 1922 Centennial Recognition 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
Further to our letter regarding the above, dated November 27, 2020, on behalf of the Board of Directors 

for the Haileybury Heritage Museum, I wanted to thank Council for agreeing to have Mr. James Franks, 

Economic Development Officer for the City meet with a planning team of our representatives (Steering 

Committee) regarding recognition of the 2022 Centennial of the Great Fire.   

The October 4, 1922 Fire is an event that devastated South Temiskaming and only through the strength 

and efforts of the people in the area were the communities able to recover and rebuild.  The City of 

today draws much of its character from those survivors who sheltered by the shore of Lake Timiskaming 

and with them in mind, I am writing to seek to formalize a partnership with the City to plan and carry out 

the Centennial events. 

For greater clarity, we are seeking the following:    

• Appropriate City staff member participation and membership in the Planning Committee (i.e., 
Mr. Franks and Mr. Oslund); 

• Support from the City’s expertise to administer funding for the Centennial event including 
applications and reporting; 

• City extension of insurance coverage for the event and steering committee; 

• Logistics support during the events for sanitation, set up and clean up; 

• In-kind use of municipal buildings and spaces for events and activities; 

• Use of municipal tables, chairs, stages and sound systems; and 

• Establish a marketing partnership to assist in promoting the event through the City’s existing 
advertising programs. 

 
With the guidance of the Steering Committee, and our valued partners, the Centennial will be a truly 
community-wide celebration and recognition of our shared heritage.   
 
Yours truly, 
 

Kaline Woods 
_________________  
Kaline Woods, Chair 



CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF HUDSON 

903303 HANBURY RD. 
NEW LISKEARD, ON P0J1P0 

(t) 705-647-5439 (f) 705-647-6373 
www.hudson.ca   admin@hudson.ca  

 

1 of 2 

March 31st, 2021 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building 
Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

Attention: Premier Ford 

RE: Support for Fire Departments  

At the Township of Hudson’s Regular Meeting of Council held on Wednesday March 3rd, 2021, 
the following resolution 2021-049 was put forward and passed: 
 

WHEREAS the role of Ontario’s 441 fire departments and their approximate 30,000 full, 
part-time, and volunteer firefighters is to protect Ontarians and their property; and 

WHEREAS according to the Ontario Fire Marshal and Emergency Management’s latest 
data, in Ontario there was over 11,000 number of loss fires, 9,500 no loss fires, 784 injuries, 
91 fatalities, and over $820 million dollars of estimated loss in 2018; and 

WHEREAS fire emergencies only make up a portion of the total calls for help received by 
fire and emergency service departments as they respond to nearly every public emergency, 
disaster, or 9-1-1 call; and 

WHEREAS Ontario’s fire department infrastructure deficit continues to grow annually and 
is almost entirely borne by the municipality and local taxpayers with the majority having 
populations under 25,000; and 

WHEREAS due to antiquated structures and equipment that do not meet current industry 
standards the safety of the Ontario public and Ontario firefighters is being jeopardized; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Hudson resolves as 
follows: 

1. THAT the Federal and Provincial Government includes apparatuses, training, 
equipment and structures for fire departments as eligible categories to any further 
infrastructure programs which will not only provide immediate stimulus to the local, 
provincial and federal economies given current economic uncertainty but also ensure 
the safety of Canadians and dedicated firefighters; and 

 

http://www.hudson.ca/
mailto:admin@hudson.ca


 2 of 2 

2. THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Honourable Doug Ford Premier of 
Ontario, the Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the 
Honourable Laurie Scott, Minister of Infrastructure, local MPP, local MP, the 
Ontario Fire Marshal, Jon Pegg, the Ontario Association of Fire Chiefs, and all 
Ontario Municipalities. 

 

Please accept this for your consideration and any necessary action. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Jordan Kemp 
Clerk-Treasurer 
Township of Hudson 









Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

1 

 

Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board 

Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 

7:00 p.m. via zoom 

 

1. Call to Order 

Meeting called to order by  Chair Brigid Wilkinson  at  7:02     p.m.  

 

 

2. Roll Call 

Present: Jessica Cooper, Brenda Morissette, Jeff Laferriere, Claire Hendirkx, Emily 
Kutalowski, Thomas McLean, Chair Brigid Wilkinson, and Library CEO 
Rebecca Hunt. 

 

Regrets: Patricia Hewitt 

 

Absent: Jamie Lindsay  

 

Members of the Public:  0 

 

 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

Motion #2021-17 

 

Moved by: Jeff Laferriere  

Seconded by: Brenda Morissette 

  

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board accepts the agenda as 
presented. 

Carried. 

 



Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

4. Declaration of conflict of interest: None 

 

 

5. Adoption of the Minutes 

 

Motion #2021-18 

 

Moved by: Emily Kutalowski  

Seconded by: Claire Hendrikx    

 

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board approves the minutes 
of the meeting held on Wednesday, February 24, 2021 as presented. 

 

Carried. 

 

6. Business arising from Minutes 

a. Ontario Library Services board assemblies appointment. 

 

Motion #2021-19 

 

Moved by: Jeff Laferriere   

Seconded by: Thomas McLean   

 

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board reverses the 
appointment of Brigid Wilkinson as representative to the Ontario Library Services 
board assembly and instead appoints Emily Kutalowski as representative with Brigid 
filling in when Emily is unavailable.  

 

Carried. 

 



Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

3 

 

 

7. Correspondence:  

a. From TDSS—Re: May Ball Bursary. For information. 
 

b. From ESCSM—Re: May Ball Bursary. For information. 
 

 
 

8. Secretary–Treasurer’s Report 

Report and monthly financial statement included in the trustees’ information packet 

 

Library CEO’s Report       March 16, 2021 
 
AODA Customer Service Training: 
All Library Clerks and the Library CEO have taken a refresher course on AODA Customer 
Service.  
 
Cameras:  
The City IT department installed the cameras in the lower level of the library on 
Wednesday, March 10. Staff members have been given access so they can monitor the 
building when there are fewer staff in the building.  
 
Co-op student:  
TDSS has approached the library to take on a coop student who is interested in technology 
and computers. The student intends on pursuing education in computer engineering. I 
thought the coop might be a good fit for setting up the Digital Creator space, as I have not 
had a chance to do so yet. He will be working at the library until mid-April. We will do 
training on our COVID-19 protocols so that he is aware of issues such as physical 
distancing, avoiding workstation hopping, checking in using the city QR code and our other 
procedures. 
 
Infection Prevention and Control at Work: 
All Library Clerks and the Library CEO have taken the Public Services Health and Safety 
Associations’ Infection Prevention and Control at Work Basic Awareness course.  
 
Library re-opening: 
The re-opening has gone well so far. We are less busy than we were in the fall, but 
hopefully if we move to yellow or green in the provincial framework things will pick up. We 
are experiencing some difficulties with staff scheduling due to illness of staff members, 
and had to close at lunch time on Saturday last weekend. We hope this will not be a 
common occurrence but it may happen occasionally until we have hired a few more 
Library Pages—I am just waiting to be sure we are not going back into lockdown before I 
do that hire in order to avoid having to do layoffs just after a hiring.  



Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

4 

 

 
Performance evaluations: 
I have completed performance evaluations for all of the Library Clerks. At some point the 
Board may want to complete an evaluation for me, as this has not been done since 2017. 
 
Portable Wifi Hotspots: 
The portable wifi hotspots are configured and circulating. There has been a fair amount of 
interest and all of the ten hotspots have been checked out at least once.  
  
 
 

Finances and Statistics 

The Board reviewed the financial and statistical reports as provided by the CEO.  

 

 

Motion #2021-20      

 

Moved by: Emily Kutalowski  

Seconded by:   Jeff Laferriere 

 

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board accepts the March  
Secretary-Treasurer’s report and Financial report. 

 

Carried. 

 

9. Committee Reports:  

a. FINANCE AND PROPERTY: Nothing to report. 
 

b. PLANNING, POLICY, PERSONNEL AND PUBLICITY: Nothing to report. 
 
c. LIBRARY SERVICES COMMITTEE: Nothing to report 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

5 

 

 

10. New Business:  

 
a. Annual Survey to the Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism and Culture 

Industries.  
 

Motion #2021-21      

 

Moved by:  Jessica Cooper  

Seconded by:   Thomas McLean 

 
Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board accepts the 
information in the annual survey for the Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport and 
consents to the release of the survey report to the Ministry as corrected.  

 

Carried. 
 

 
b. District School Board Ontario North East. Community Planning and 

Partnerships Policy and Procedure.     The Board discussed how the school 
board’s policy aligns with the Board’s strategic priorities surrounding partnerships 
and will revisit the discussion as COVID-19 measures are lifted. 
 
 

c. Powerpoint slideshow of Northern College Library setup.  The Board 
congratulated Brenda on her work setting up the college library. 

 
 

11. Plan, Policy review and By-law review:  

 

a. Personnel Policies 1-27. 
 

Motion #2021-22      

 

Moved by: Emily Kutalowski  

Seconded by:   Claire Hendrikx 

 
Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board accepts the 
library’s policies: Personnel Policies 1-27 as reviewed and amended by the Board.  



Meeting Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores March 24, 2021 
Public Library Board 

 

 

6 

 

  
Carried. 

 

 

12. Closed Session 

 

Motion #2021-23     

 

Moved by: Jeff Laferriere  

Seconded by:  Jessica Cooper 

 

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board goes into closed 
session at  7:27   p.m. regarding identifiable individuals. 

 

Carried. 

 

Motion #2021-24      

 

Moved by:  Jeff Laferriere   

Seconded by: Thomas McLean  

 

Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board rise from closed 
session at  7:37    p.m. without report. 

 

Carried. 

 

 

13. Adjournment 

Adjournment by      Jeff Laferriere     at      7:38     p.m. 

 

 

________________________ 
Chair –  



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 – 9:00 a.m. 

Via Conference Call 
CHAIR – Councillor Mike McArthur, City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

 
Page 1 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
2.0  ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Mike McArthur (Chair) 

Mayor George Othmer, Town of Cobalt 
Councillor Pat Anderson, Town of Cobalt 
Councillor Patricia Hewitt 
Christopher Oslund, City Manager 
Mitch Lafreniere, Manager of Transportation 
Kelly Conlin, Deputy Clerk (Committee Secretary) 

REGRETS: None 
  
3.0   DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
None 
 
4.0 REVIEW OF REVISIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
None 
 
5.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Recommendation TC-2021-006 
Moved by: Councillor Pat Anderson 
 
Be it resolved that:  
The Temiskaming Transit Committee agenda for the April 13, 2021, meeting be approved as 
printed. 
 

          Carried 
6.0 REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
Recommendation TC-2021-007 
Moved by: Mayor George Othmer 
 
Be it resolved that: 
The Temiskaming Transit Committee minutes for the November 25, 2020 and February 22, 2021 
meeting be adopted as printed.           

Carried 
  



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 – 9:00 a.m. 

Via Conference Call 
CHAIR – Councillor Mike McArthur, City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

 
Page 2 

 
7.0  CORRESPONDENCE 
 

a) Letter from Northdale Manor requesting a change to the stop on Lakeshore Road  
Date: March 17, 2021 

  
 Recommendation TC-2021-008 
 Moved by: Mayor George Othmer 
 
 Be it resolved that: 
 The Temiskaming Transit Committee hereby denies the request from the Northdale 
 Manor to relocate the transit stop on Lakeshore Road. 

Carried 
      
8.0  NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Financial Update 

 
The Committee was provided with the year-end 2020 financial summary and 2021 
year-to-date financial update.  Due to the hardships of the Covid-19 pandemic, the 
transit finished 2020 with a deficit; and 2021 is seeing approximately half of normal 
ridership.  The Safe re-start funding will be available to offset loses.  
 

b) 2021 Capital Budget 
 
The Committee was provided with an update in regards to 2021 budgeted projects 
such as the purchase of the Bus tracking (GPS) app; and the addition of a transit 
shelter at the Georgina Ave. stop (Lakeview Towers) and the replacement of the 
shelter at stop located at the corner of Main St. and Rorke Ave.  
 
c) Transit Counts 

 
The Committee reviewed the approximate total of passengers for 2020 and year to 
date 2021.  
 
d) Transit Stop Request: Grant Drive 

 
 Recommendation TC-2021-009 
 Moved by: Mayor George Othmer 
 

 Be it resolved that: 
 The Temiskaming Transit Committee supports the removal of the existing transit stop on 
 Grant Drive and implementing flag stops.  

Carried  



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Tuesday, April 13, 2021 – 9:00 a.m. 

Via Conference Call 
CHAIR – Councillor Mike McArthur, City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

 
Page 3 

 
9.0  NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Transit Committee is scheduled for June 15, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
10.0  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Recommendation TC-2021-010 
Moved by: Mayor George Othmer 
 
Be it resolved that: 
The Transit Committee meeting is adjourned at 9:29 a.m. 

Carried 
 
 
 
 
 

      
COMMITTEE CHAIR 

 
 
 

      
COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



 

 
 
 

TEMISKAMING SHORES POLICE SERVICES BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 19, 2021 AT 1:00 P.M. 
 

VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

The meeting was called to order by Board Chair Doug Jelly at 1:00 p.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT:  Board Chair Doug Jelly 
Board Members Monique Chartrand, Tyler Twarowski and Danny 
Whalen  

ALSO 
PRESENT: Inspector Joel Breault, O.P.P. – Detachment Commander 
  Kelly Conlin, Board Secretary 
   
       
REGRETS:  None   

  
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC PRESENT: 0 

 
 

3. ADDENDUM / ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 Board Chair Doug Jelly made shared the announcement of a former local OPP 
 Officer, Dwight Thib, who was recently promoted to Chief Superintendent of 
 the OPP for Western Ontario. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Resolution No. 2021-012 
Moved by: Monique Chartrand 
Seconded by:  Tyler Twarowski 
 
Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board approves the 
agenda as printed. 

        CARRIED 



POLICE SERVICES BOARD MINUTES  April 19, 2021       
               
 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

 
a) Mobile Crisis Presentation: Tyler Twarowski 

 
Board Member Tyler Twarowski provided the Board with a presentation on the 
Mobile Crisis Rapid Response Team (MCRRT), which is comprised of a team of 
addiction mental health professionals who are available to respond to calls for 
service at the request of law enforcement, EMS, and hospitals.   The goal of the 
MCRRT is to divert individuals from unnecessary involvement in the criminal justice 
systems and/or Emergency room visits.  The MCRRT is a partnership between a 
Cochrane-Timiskaming Canadian Mental Health Association and the Temiskaming 
and Kirkland Lake detachments of the Ontario Provincial Police.    The Board 
Secretary will prepare a motion of support of this partnership at the next regular 
meeting. 
 
 
Resolution No. 2021-013 
Moved by: Danny Whalen 
Seconded by:  Jeff Davis 
 
Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board hereby 
acknowledges the presentation on Mobile Crisis Response. 

         CARRIED 
 

6. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
 
 None 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a) Regular Police Services Board Meeting – February 22, 2021 
 

Resolution No. 2021-014 
Moved by: Tyler Twarowski 
Seconded by:  Monique Chartrand 
 
Be it resolved that the Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board 
meeting held on February 22, 2021 be approved as printed. 

     CARRIED 
 

 
8. COMMUNICATIONS  
  

a) Patrick Weaver, OAPSB Chair & Fred Kaustinen, OAPSB Executive 



POLICE SERVICES BOARD MINUTES  April 19, 2021       
               
 

Director 
Received: March 11, 2021 
 
Re: Section 10 Update – Future of OPP Governance 
 
Reference:  Referred to New Business a) 
 

b) Sylvia Jones, Solicitor General 
Received: March 18, 2021 
 
Re: OPP Detachment Board Framework, Proposal and Fact Sheet 
 
Reference:  Received for Information 

 
Resolution No. 2021-015 
Moved by: Jeff Davis 
Seconded by: Monique Chartrand 

 
Be it resolved that the Police Services Board agrees to deal with Communication 
items 9 a) & b) according to the agenda references. 

      
CARRIED 

9. OPP BUSINESS 
 
a) OPP Temiskaming Detachment Report: January – March 2021 

 
 Resolution No. 2021-016 
 Moved by: Jeff Davis 
 Seconded by: Tyler Twarowski 
 
 Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board 
 acknowledges receipt of the January – March 2021 OPP Temiskaming 
 Detachment Report.  

CARRIED 
 

 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) POA Revenues 
 
The Board was provided with a copy of the Recommendation from the City 
of Temiskaming Shores Corporate Services Committee who was not in 
favour of the reallocation of POA revenues to the Policing budget.  

  



POLICE SERVICES BOARD MINUTES  April 19, 2021       
               
 

b) Community Safety and Well-Being Plan 
 
The Board was provided with a verbal update in the status of the plan.  
The current submission date is July 2021; however, an extension has 
been requested.  

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Draft Notice of Motion – City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

 Resolution No. 2021-017 
 Moved by: Monique Chartrand 
 Seconded by: Jeff Davis 
 
 Be it resolved that the Temiskaming Shores Police Services Board  recommends 
 that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores consider supporting the draft 
 notice of motion petitioning the Ministry of Solicitor to maintain the Temiskaming 
 Shores Police Services Board as a separate entity from any proposed Detachment 
 Board (s)  

CARRIED 
 
b) OAPSB Board of Directors Report - Doug Jelly 

 
Board Chair Doug Jelly stated there is a OAPSB meeting scheduled for 
the end of April.   

 
c) Resident Concerns: Market Street, Armstrong/Whitewood 

Intersection, Rorke Avenue, and Larocque’s field (North Cobalt) 
 
The Board and OPP are hopeful that once the speed indicator sign is in 
place, it may bring put in these areas of concern and bring more 
awareness to drivers about their speed.  City staff will be putting a 
reminder on social media in regards to the use of Larocque’s field and 
reminding drivers to stay on the path, in addition to improved signage in 
the area. 
 

 
12. BY-LAWS 
 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 
14. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

 



POLICE SERVICES BOARD MINUTES  April 19, 2021       
               
 

 
a) Regular Police Services Board meeting – Monday, July 19, 2021at 1:00 p.m. – 

Council Chambers, City Hall – 325 Farr Drive 
 
b) Regular Police Services Board meeting – Monday, October 18, 2021at 1:00 

p.m. – Council Chambers, City Hall – 325 Farr Drive 
 

 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Resolution No. 2021-018 
 Moved by:  
 Seconded by:  

 
Be it resolved that the Regular Meeting of the Temiskaming Shores Police 
Services Board be hereby adjourned 2:22 p.m. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

       
BOARD CHAIR 

 
 

       
BOARD SECRETARY 



RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Monday, April 12, 2021 – 6:30 p.m. 

VIA: Zoom  
Chair – Councillor Mike McArthur 

  
      
 

1 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Meeting called to order at 6:31 p.m.  

 
2. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Councillor Mike McArthur (Chair) 
Mayor Carman Kidd 
Councillor Jesse Foley 
Christopher Oslund, City Manager 
Matt Bahm, Director of Recreation 
Paul Allair, Manager of Parks & Facilities 
Jeff Thompson, Manager of Programming 
Chuck Durrant, Public Appointee 
Robert Ritchie, Public Appointee 
Kelly Conlin, Deputy Clerk (Committee Secretary) 

REGRETS: Danny Lavigne, Public Appointee, Richard Beauchamp, Public 
Appointee, Simone Holzamer, Public Appointee 

   
3. REVIEW OF REVISIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

None 
 

4. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
None 

 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Recommendation RS-2021-011 
Moved by: Councillor Jesse Foley  
 
Be it resolved that: 
The Recreation Committee agenda for the April 12, 2021 meeting be approved as printed. 
 

CARRIED 

6. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
Recommendation RS-2021-012 
Moved by: Mayor Carman Kidd 

 
Be it resolved that: 
The Recreation Committee minutes of the March 8, 2021 meeting be approved as 
presented. 

CARRIED 



RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Monday, April 12, 2021 – 6:30 p.m. 

VIA: Zoom  
Chair – Councillor Mike McArthur 

  
      
 

2 

 

 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE 

 None 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 None 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Programming Update (Verbal) 
 
 The Committee was provided with an update in regards to current COVID restrictions 
 in place and how they impact the City’s recreational program, parks and facilities.  In 
 the lockdown, the Pool Fitness Centre is closed to the public, and all group  
 programming is cancelled for the time being.  Staff are using this time to complete 
 budgeted projects in the facility, as well as at our outdoor recreational facilities. 
 
b) Parks and Facilities Update (Verbal) 

 
  The Committee was provided with an update on work being completed by City staff in 

 our parks and facilities.  The ice has been removed from both arenas with the Don 
 Shepherdson Memorial Arena is being used as a mass vaccination clinic for Covid-19.  
  

 
c) Directors Update (Verbal) 
 
 The Committee was provided with an update in regards to a variety of items within the 
 Recreation Department.  Projects such as the Rotary Splash Pad, Arena Accessibility 
 upgrades, and the Active Transportation Plan are or will be underway shortly.   

 
d) Memo: Stay at Home Order 

 
  The Committee was provided with a memo outlining the difference between the  
  restrictions in the most recent covid framework versus the Stay-at-Home order.   

 
e) 2021 Farmer Market Lease Agreement 

 
 Recommendation RS-2021-013 
 Moved by: Rob Ritchie 

 
 Be it resolved that: 
 The Recreation Services Committee hereby recommends that Council consider 
 approving the 2021 Farmers Market Lease Agreement. 
 

             CARRIED 
 



RECREATION COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Monday, April 12, 2021 – 6:30 p.m. 

VIA: Zoom  
Chair – Councillor Mike McArthur 

  
      
 

3 

 

 

 
f) Facility Waiver Request:  Temiskaming Water Walk (meeting) 
 
 Recommendation RS-2021-014 
 Moved by: Chuck Durrant 

 
 Be it resolved that: 
 The Recreation Committee hereby approves the facility waiver request fee from  the 
 Temiskaming Water Walk for a meeting at the Haileybury Pavilion. 
 

CARRIED 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

  
11. NEXT MEETING 

 
 The next Recreation Committee Meetings are will be scheduled as follows: 
 

o Monday, May 10, 2021 
o Monday, June 14, 2021 

 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Recommendation RS-2021-015 
 Moved by: Rob Ritchie 
  
 Be it resolved that: 
 The Recreation Committee meeting is adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

 
 

CARRIED 
 
 

       
COMMITTEE CHAIR 

 
 

       
COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Corporate Services 
018-2021-CS 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Shelly Zubyck, Director of Corporate Services 

Date: May 4, 2021 

Subject: Interim Building Services Agreement 

Attachments: Draft Agreement (Please Refer to By-law No. 2021-074) 

 
Mayor and Council: 
 
Due to the recent resignation of the City’s Chief Building Official, staff began discussions 
with the City of Timmins in regards to plans review and issuing permits for large building 
construction/projects for the City of Temiskaming Shores on an interim basis. 
 
Further to the discussions in Closed Session on April 20th, 2021, the Interim Building 
Services Agreement is included in the By-law section for Council’s consideration and 
approval. 
 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Shelly Zubyck 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
 Reviewed and submitted for 

Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 



 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Corporate Services 
019-2021-CS 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: James Franks, Economic Development Officer  

Date: May 4, 2021 

Subject: Tri-Town Ski and Snowboard Village – Funding Sponsorship 
Request 

Attachments: Funding Request Letter  

 
Mayor and Council: 
 
The municipality received a letter from the Tri-Town Ski and Snowboard Village requesting 
the municipality sponsor their funding application to the Frog’s Breath in the upset amount of 
$50,000 to assist with the expansion of their equipment storage garage.      

As per the municipal Charitable Sponsorship Policy, staff has assessed the request and 
recommends that: 

Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approve the request from the Tri-Town Ski and 
Snowboard Village, requesting the municipality sponsor their funding application to the Frog’s 
Breath Foundation in the upset amount of $50,000 for their equipment storage garage Project.     

 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
James Franks 
Economic Development 
Coordinator 

 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Shelly Zubyck 
Director of Corporate 
Services 

 
Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 
 



TRI TOWN SKI & SNOWBOARD VILLAGE 
Box 1598 
New Liskeard, ON    P0J 1P0 
www.tritownskivillage.ca  
info@tritownskivillage.ca  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

April 12th, 2021 
 
Mayor and Council 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
POJ IKO 
 
RE:  FROG’S BREATH FUNDING  
 
Dear Mayor and Council, 
 
The Tri Town Ski and Snowboard Village has applied to the Frog’s Breath Foundation. If our application is 
successful we will be receiving upwards of 50,000.00 to assist with expansion of our garage to properly store our 
equipment. 
 
Although we are incorporated as a not-for-profit organization, the Tri Town Ski and Snowboard Village is not a 
registered charitable organization. As such, the Frog’s Breath Foundation requests that we obtain a ‘sponsorship’ 
from an organisation or Municipality in order to receive any funds.  
 
Therefore, on behalf of the Ski Village, it is respectfully requested that the City of Temiskaming Shores act as 
sponsor in regards to our application to the Frog’s Breath Foundation. 
 
 
 

Sincerely,  

 

Emily Hall  

 

 

 

http://www.tritownskivillage.ca/
mailto:info@tritownskivillage.ca


 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Corporate Services 
020-2021-CS 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Logan Belanger, Municipal Clerk 

Date: May 4, 2021 

Subject: Amendment to By-law No. 2021-005 (FedNor)  

Attachments: Appendix 01 –Draft By-law Amendment (Please refer to By-law 
No. 2021-075)  

 

Mayor and Council: 
 

At the January 5, 2021 Regular meeting, Council adopted By-law No. 2021-005 to 
authorize the execution of the contribution agreement for the Virtual Northern Ontario 
Mining Showcase at the 2021 Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada 
International Convention, between Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada 
represented by the Minister of Economic Development and Official Languages and the 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores - Project No. 852-512885. 
 

Attached hereto is Amendment No. 1 from Industry Canada (FedNor) amending the 
above noted agreement.  Total eligible costs are the same; however, some project costs 
have been reallocated to other cost categories, as well as to adjust the project completion 
date from April 30, 2021 to June 30, 2021, due to project impacts related to the COVID-
19 pandemic. 
 

It is recommended that Council direct staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law No. 2021-006 regarding the Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada 
(PDAC) Convention for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 
 

Due to these amendments, particularly with project timelines, a provision has been 
included in the proposed amending by-law, to recommend that the Mayor and Clerk have 
the delegation of authority to execute any and all required documentation and 
amendments, on behalf of the City of Temiskaming Shores, as required under the 
Contribution Agreement, as long as the amendments do not create any financial liability 
for the City that is beyond a budget approved by Council. 
 

Prepared by:  Reviewed by:  Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 

“Original signed by”  “Original signed by”  “Original signed by” 

 
Logan Belanger 

  
Shelly Zubyck 

  
Christopher W. Oslund 

Municipal Clerk  Director of Corporate 
Services 

 City Manager 

 



II Innovation, Science and Innovation, Sciences et
Economic Development Canada Développement économique Canada

FedNor FedNor

19 Lisgar Street 19 rue Lisgar
Suite 307 Bureau 307
Sudbury, Ontario Sudbury (Ontario)
P3E3L4 P3E3L4

April 19, 2021

Project Number: 852-51285

Mr. Carman Kidd
Mayor
City of Teiniskaming Shores
325 Farr Drive, P0 Box 2050
Haileybury ON POJIK0

Dear Mr. Kidd:

Re: PDAC 2021
Amendment Number: 1

As a result of your request dated April 8, 2021, FedNor is prepared to amend our

Contribution agreement of December 22, 2020 as follows:

Delete: Clause 2.1 The Recipient shall ensure that the Project described in Aimex I (the
“Project”) commences on or before December 1, 2020 (the “Commencement Date”) and
is completed on or before April 30, 2021 (the “Completion Date”).

Substitute: Clause 2.1 The Recipient shall ensure that the Project described in Annex 1
(the “Project”) commences on or before December 1, 2020 (the “Commencement
Date”) and is completed on or before June 30, 2021 (the “Completion Date”).

I”Canada



-2-

Delete: Annex 1 THE PROJECT - STATEMENT OF WORK

iii) Dates: b) Completion Date - April 30, 2021

Project Costs and F112nrin

$500,000 $42,500 $542,500

Project Costs: Financing:
Eligible Costs FedNor $500,000

- Supported $500,000 Other Federal
- Not Supported $42,500 Provincial

Ineligible Costs Municipal
Financial Institution
Recipient

___________

Other $42.500
Total $542,500 $542,500

Eligible Costs:

Event Facility Rental (virtual space)

SME Support (upgrades to on-line
presence, equipment and technical
support)

Suppoed Not Supported Total

$250,000

$110,000

Consulting Fees

$250,000

$110,000

$55,000

Marketing & Promotion

Professional Development & Training —

In-kind Event Costs (Other — design of
custom virtual pavilion)
Event Facility Rental (participating
exhibitors)

$35,000

$50,000

$55,000

$35,000

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS

$50M00

Ineligible Costs:

$42,500 $42,500

TOTAL INELIGIBLE COSTS
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $542,500



Substitute: Annex I THE PROJECT - STATEMENT OF WORK

iii) Dates: b) Completion Date - June 30, 2021

Project Costs and Financing:
Project Costs: Financing:

Eligible Costs FedNor $500.000
- Supported $500,000 Other Federal
- Not Supported $33,500 Provincial

Ineligible Costs Municipal
Financial Institution
Recipient
Other $33,500

Total $533,500 $533,500

Supported Not Suppotied Total
Eligible Costs:

Event Facility Rental (virtual space) $179,500 $179,500
SME Support (upgrades to on-line $160,000 $160,000
presence, equipment and technical
support)
Consulting Fccs $50,000 $50,000
Marketing & Promotion $110,500 $110,500
Event Facility Rental (participating $33,500 $33,500
exhibitors)

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS $500,000 $33,500 $533,500

Ineligible Costs:

TOTAL INELIGIBLE COSTS
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS

— $533,500



-4-

All other terms and conditions of our Contribution agreement remain unchanged.

This amendment is open for acceptance for a period of 30 days following the date on the first
page, after which it will be null and void. This amendment shall be effective the date the
duplicate copy of this amendment, unconditionally accepted and duly executed by the Recipient,
is received by FedNor.

If further information is required, please contact Denise Deschamps toll-free at 1-877-333-6673
ext. 3276 or 705-471-3276 in our North Bay office.

Yours sincerely,

P t Digitally signed by Perreault, Luciee rrea U , U cie Date: 2021.04.1913:30:42 -0400’

Lucie Perreault
Director of Program Delivery
FedNor

City of Temiskaming Shores
Project Number: 852-512885 Amendment Number: 1

The foregoing is hereby accepted this C’ day of____________

Per:

_______

Signature of Recipient

k4yd i(

Title

Per:

_____________________

ignature of Recipi

Title



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Subject: Outdoor Patio Policy Report No.: CS-019-2021 

  Agenda Date: May 4th, 2021 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: Draft Outdoor Patio Policy (Please refer to By-law No. 2021-076) 

Appendix 02: Sidewalk Deck Design 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report CS-019-2021; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to adopt an Outdoor 
Patio Policy to allow and regulate patios on City owned property for consideration 
at the May 4, 2021 Regular Meeting of Council.   

Background 

The New Liskeard Business Improvement Area has requested the City consider 
developing a policy to allow for the lease of City owned property for the purpose of outdoor 
patios within both downtown areas. Local businesses would have the opportunity to apply 
for the use of sidewalk space adjacent to their businesses to allow for the consumption 
of food and beverages. A sidewalk deck would be installed in the parking spaces along 
the roadway to allow for pedestrian traffic to continue safe use. 

Analysis 

In consultation with the BIA, City staff have developed a policy for Council’s consideration 
attached as Appendix 1. Staff reviewed policies from other municipalities including the 
City of Barrie, Mississauga, Thunder Bay and Sudbury. The recommendations included 
in this report are to help support growing our local economy as it promotes our small local 
businesses in the downtown areas.  
 
Included in the policy is an application form each business would be required to complete 
and submit to staff to begin the process. The application would be circulated to each city 
department for review and comments. Staff would take into consideration the safety of 
the public, location and size of the patio, intended use, insurance coverage, etc. as 
outlined in the policy and application process.  
 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 2 
 

Once approved, a lease agreement for the use of the property would be drafted and 
presented to Council for their approval.  
The BIA has obtained an engineered drawing for the design and construction of the 
sidewalk decks that would be installed in both Haileybury and New Liskeard locations.  
 
The construction of the sidewalk decks would be the responsibility of the business and/or 
the BIA as per the approved design. The installation of the sidewalk decks would be the 
responsibility of the City, as well as the storage of them during the off seasons. 
 
The draft policy was presented at the April 21st, 2021 Corporate Services and Protection 
to Persons and Property Committee Meetings. Both committees passed 
recommendations in support of proceeding with the policy. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

• 2021 Corporate Services Budget  

• Ontario Building Code 

• Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act 

• The City’s Official Plan 

• The City’s Zoning By-law 

Consultation / Communication 

• Consultation with Corporate Services Committee 

• Consultation with Protection to Persons and Property Committee 

• Consultation with each City department and the Business Improvement Area. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

An administration fee of $400 would be charged at the time of the application. This amount 
would assist with the staff costs associated with the application process, the development 
of a lease agreement, the installation, removal and storage of a sidewalk deck. Should 
the application be denied, the administration fee would be refunded. 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 3 
 

The proposed rental rate for the use of City property would be $2.25 per square foot. This 
would be included in each lease agreement. This is consistent with other City lease 
agreements. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

 

 
Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Shelly Zubyck 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
Reviewed and submitted for Council’s 
consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 
 









 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Subject: Part Lot Control Exemption: 
2373775 Ontario Inc. 

Report No.: CS-020-2021 

  Agenda Date: May 4, 2021 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: 

 

Appendix 02: 

Draft by-law to remove part lot control 
(Please refer to By-law No. 2021-077) 

Registered Plan 54R-6121 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report CS-020-2021; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to remove part lot control 
on the lands described as Part of PIN 61339-0754, Part of Block C Plan M79NB, 
Part 5 Plan 54R-6121; Temiskaming Shores; District of Timiskaming for 
consideration during the by-law portion of the May 4, 2021 Regular Council 
meeting. 

Background 

An application for part lot control exemption was submitted by 2373775 Ontario In on April 
23, 2021. The subject property is located between Lakeshore Road and Rivard Court and 
is described as Part of PIN 61339-0754, Part of Block C Plan M79NB, Part 5 Plan 54R-
6121. The property has the municipal address 108 Rivard Court. 

Section 50(5) of the Planning Act provides that part of a lot or block on a registered plan 
of subdivision cannot be transferred where the same entity owns adjacent lands, without 
the approval of the Municipality. Section 50(7) of the Planning Act, however, allows a 
municipality to pass by-laws granting exemptions from the provisions of Section 50(5) for 
all or any part of a registered plan of subdivision. The by-law allows the conveyance of a 
portion of a lot or block within a registered plan of subdivision without approval of the 
Committee of Adjustment. Granting exemption from part lot control does not require 
notification or a public meeting and does not allow for an appeal process.  

  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 2 
 

Analysis 

The applicants have indicated that they intend to construct a single detached dwelling on 
the subject property during the 2021 construction season. The subject property is zoned 
Medium Density Residential (R3) in the City of Temiskaming Shores Zoning By-law. A 
single detached dwelling is a permitted use in the R3 Zone. 

The application proposes to apply the part lot control exemption only to Part 5 at this time. 
The remaining properties for which part lot control exemption is required are Part 6, and 
Parts 34-36, which are proposed to be developed with semi-detached units in 2021. 
These properties are not being included with the current part lot control exemption as 
further survey work will need to be completed to establish the interior property line once 
the party wall has been constructed, and the part lot control exemption will need to be 
applied to the subsequent survey. 

As the construction of the dwelling on the subject property is proposed to take place in 
2021, it is recommended that the part lot control exemption be granted for a period ending 
on December 31, 2021. 

Based on the above information, it is recommended that Council pass a by-law granting 
part lot control exemption for the lands described as: Part of PIN 61339-0754, Part of 
Block C Plan M79NB, Part 5 Plan 54R-6121; Temiskaming Shores; District of 
Timiskaming. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

• City of Temiskaming Shores Zoning By-law 2017-154 and By-law 2018-154 

• By-law 2019-041 – Development Agreement with 2373775 Ontario Inc 

Consultation / Communication 

• None 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: 

  

Yes   No   N/A   

Staffing implications related to this matter are limited to normal administrative functions 
and duties. 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 3 
 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

 
Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 
Jennifer Pye, MCIP, RPP 

Planner 

 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

Shelly Zubyck 
Director of Corporate 
Services 

 
Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 
 





 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 1 
 

Subject: ICI Water Meter Program Report No.: PW-012-2021 

  Agenda Date: May 4, 2021 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: Draft Agreement (Please refer to By-law No. 2021-078) 

Appendix 02: Initial Stakeholder Communication Letter 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report PW-012-2021;  
 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Neptune Technology Group for the supply and installation of water 
meters for the ICI sector in the amount of $ 93,899.00, plus applicable taxes, for 
consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting; and 

 
3. That Council directs Staff to release the Initial Stakeholder Communication Letter 

and to host a virtual stakeholder meeting on Wednesday June 9, 2021 at 10:00 am 
for ICI establishments affected by the new ICI Water Meter Program. 

Background 

During the 2021 Capital Budget process, Council approved the ICI water meter project in 
the amount of $ 100,000.00. This project will see the installation/replacement of water 
meters in approximately 55-60 ICI establishments throughout the City. The meters will 
enhance the current water meter program and provide consistency throughout the sector. 

As Neptune Technology Group (Neptune) has been involved with the City’s water 
metering program for many years, staff contacted Neptune to provide a proposal for the 
supply and installation of the water meters. The proposal was recently received in the 
amount of $ 88,500.00. 

At the Regular Council Meeting held on February 2nd, 2021, Council directed Staff to enter 
into negotiations with Neptune to finalize pricing for the supply and installation of water 
meters for the ICI sector.  

  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 2 
 

Analysis 

The negotiations with Neptune are complete resulting in the final proposal being 

submitted to Staff in the amount $ 93,899.00, plus applicable taxes and is outlined in 

appendix 01. The increase in cost from the original proposal is a result of the inclusion of 

software which is necessary for billing purposes. 

The final Neptune proposal was discussed at both the Public Works Committee and 

Corporate Services Meetings held on April 21, 2021. Both Committee’s support moving 

forward with the proposal. Implementation and a communication strategy for the new ICI 

Water Meter Program was also discussed resulting in a recommendation to implement 

as soon as possible as many billing discrepancies throughout the ICI sector have already 

been identified. The communication of the program will be done by Staff and Neptune. 

The first step is an initial communication letter that would be sent to all stakeholders 

affected by the new ICI Water Meter Program and is outlined in Appendix 02. Step 2 will 

be to host a virtual stakeholder meeting which will outline the background and approach 

for the program, address the technical aspect of water metering including installation and 

discuss the implementation of a phased in billing approach for those that may see a 

negative impact.  

Therefore, it is Staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Neptune 

Technology Group for the supply and installation of water meters for the ICI sector in the 

amount of $ 93,899.00, plus applicable taxes and that Council directs staff to implement 

the communication strategy as outlined above. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

• By-law No. 2020-060, Water and Sewer Service rates 

• By-law No. 2016-083, Water Works System Use 

• By-law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy 

• Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 - Ontario Regulation 453/07 – Financial Plans 

Consultation / Communication 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – March 3, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – March 24, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – April 28, 2016 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – May 2, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – May 26, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – June 23, 2016 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 3 
 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – July 26, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – August 25, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – October 6, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – November 10, 2016 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – January 19, 2017 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – February 2, 2017 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – April 6, 2017 

• Public Works Committee Meeting – June 25, 2019 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – July 23, 2019  

• Public Works Committee Meeting – January 21, 2021 

• Public Works Committee Meeting - April 21st, 2021  

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting - April 21st, 2021  

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

Council approved the ICI Water Meter Project through the 2021 Budget deliberation 
process in the amount of $ 100,000.00. The Neptune proposal including non-refundable 
HST equals $ 95,551.62. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered  

Submission 

 

Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Steve Burnett 
Manager of Environmental Services 
 

Reviewed and submitted for Council’s 
consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 

 



325 Farr Drive Tel: (705) 672-3363 
P.O. Box 2050 Fax: (705) 672-2911 
Haileybury, ON    P0J 1K0 www.temiskamingshores.ca 
 
 

 

 

 
  
 
Re: Industrial, Commercial and Institutional (ICI) Water Meter Program 
 
As you may be aware, Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approved the 
purchase and installation of various sized water meters for the ICI sector within the 
2021 Budget. These meters are necessary to allow for the enhancement of the City’s 
current water meter program to ensure all billing discrepancies are addressed within the 
sector. 
 
Water metering is an industry proven approach which has been adopted by many 
municipalities. Similar to other utilities (Hydro, Natural Gas), water meters provide the 
most accurate means of recording water consumption allowing municipalities to provide 
an equitable billing system. 
 
Your establishment is either part of the City’s current water meter program, and is in 
need of a water meter replacement or is becoming part of the ICI Water Meter Program, 
and requires a meter to be installed to ensure equality is met throughout the sector. Full 
implementation of the program is currently scheduled for January 1, 2022. 
 
The City of Temiskaming Shores has recently entered into a contractual agreement with 
Neptune Technology Group Canada Co. (Neptune) to provide the 
replacement/installation services. In the near future, Neptune will be contacting you to 
make an appointment to allow for the replacement/installation of the water meter. 
 
All water consumption data obtained post meter installation and pre program 
implementation will be provided to you through a “mock” billing system. Should your 
establishment be negatively impacted by the enhanced water meter program, a 4-year 
phased in approach will be implemented through the City’s Finance Department. 
 
To provide more detail on the enhancement of the City’s ICI Water Meter Program, a 
virtual stakeholder’s meeting is scheduled for Wednesday June 9th, 2021 at 10:00 am. 
To participate in this meeting, please e-mail the Clerk’s Office at 
lbelanger@temiskamingshores.ca.  
 
The City of Temiskaming Shores appreciates your support and cooperation to ensure 
that equality throughout the ICI sector is met as it relates to the water meter program.  

mailto:lbelanger@temiskamingshores.ca


 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Subject: Water/Sewer Rates Report No.: CS-021-2020 

  Agenda Date: May 4, 2021 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report CS-021-2020;  

2. That Council approves the following water/sewer rate methods across the 
municipality: 

• Multi Unit Properties: full residential water/sewer rate per unit; 

• Hotels: applicable Commercial water/sewer rate x number of rooms x 35% 

• Day cares: charged on a per student/staff rate; and 

3. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to implement the new 
rate methods in future water/sewer rate by-laws effective January 1, 2022. 

Background 

Since amalgamation in 2004 there have discrepancies in the water/sewer billings in some 
sectors (hotels, restaurants, multi-residential, schools, metered and commercial) between 
the former municipalities.  It is one of the last outstanding matters from amalgamation that 
needs to be addressed.  

The Treasurer has done several analyses over the last 7 years in relation to the 
discrepancies in an attempt to determine a satisfactory rate methodology for 
implementation. 

In 2010 finance staff were directed to conduct an in-depth analysis of all commercial 
properties within the City.  As per the CN Watson report, commercial business water rates 
would be calculated based on the type of business in relation to the residential rate.  For 
example, a hair dressing salon would equate to 5 residential units.  Staff completed the 
analysis however no further action was taking on implementing the water/sewer rates 
based on this methodology. 

In 2014, a review of metered properties was completed to ensure consistency in billing 
for residential properties and commercial properties.  Prior to amalgamation residential 
properties along Lakeshore Road near the New Liskeard boundary were metered as they 
were serviced from the New Liskeard water system.  All metered residential properties 
and residential properties with home-based businesses were removed from the metered 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 2 
 

program.  A review of metered commercial properties was also conducted to remove any 
properties that were metered that were not considered high water users. 

In 2016 an analysis of multi-residential, Dymond businesses, hotels, restaurants, schools, 
day cares, metered and some misc commercial properties was completed for 
consideration on how to resolve the rate discrepancies.  Staff met and reviewed some 
options which were presented to the Corporate Services committee on March 3, 2016. 

The committee advised staff to proceed with a cost investigation on the different 
proposals and report back to Committee.  On May 2, 2016 staff was directed to proceed 
with a request for proposal in order to acquire the necessary services to conduct a survey 
of all high-water usage buildings.  On February 2, 2017 the Committee directed staff to 
proceed with the metered water pilot project. 

On March 2, 2017, flat rate options for properties that were not being considered for 
potential meters was presented.  Recommendation CS-2017-013 was passed 
recommending a flat fee billing option for school properties.  On March 21, 2017 Council 
approved the recommendations in Administrative Report CS-020-2017 for a flat rate 
billing method for all school properties.  By-law 2017-051 passed on April 4, 2017 
approving the water/sewer rates for 2017 which included a flat per student/staff rate for 
school. 

The metered water pilot project commenced in 2017.  The goal of the project was to 
collect data on water usage throughout the different sectors being monitored.  This 
information would subsequently be used by staff to provide recommendations to Council 
on how to proceed in the future.  The data was collected in 2018 into early 2019. 

On July 23, 2019 the Manager of Environmental Services presented an analysis of the 
data collected during the pilot project.  The analysis determined that a reasonable rate for 
metered water could be calculated.  In addition, the pilot program confirmed the 
discrepancies and the need to standardize the rates between the three former 
municipalities.  Phasing-in for impacted properties was also discussed. 

The ICI meter program (100 meters) was proposed to go forward in 2020 but was deferred 
during budget deliberations. 

The ICI meter program (55-60 meters) currently under consideration ($100,000) was 
adopted in principle on December 15, 2020. 

Analysis 

Multi-Residential Properties: 

  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 3 
 

New Liskeard – residential flat rate/unit 

Dymond – at the time of amalgamation, no multi-residential properties.  New 
construction in recent years, DTSSAB – 8 units (residential flat rate/unit), TSSHC 
– 68 units (not yet assessed or billed). 

Haileybury – combination of metered (residential rate x 50% of the number of units) 
and flat rate (residential flat rate per unit) 

Staff has investigated many different billings methods for multi-residential (which MPAC 
equates as a building with 7 or more units); however current changes in the assessment 
of multi-residential properties is now being taken into consideration.  Multi-residential 
properties were charged a higher tax rate in relation to residential properties; however, 
any new multi-residential construction is being billed at the same tax rate as residential 
dwellings. 

The rate being recommended for multi-residential properties is a full residential flat rate.  
This means that multi-residential properties will be charged the residential flat rate for 
every unit on the premise that a dwelling unit is a dwelling unit regardless of the type of 
building they are located in. 

Impacts: 

There are 125 multi-unit properties (3 or more units) equating to 820 dwelling units in 
total.  Of these 125 buildings, only ten (10) with a total of 183 dwelling units would be 
impacted.  The other 637 dwelling units are currently being charged the residential flat 
rate/unit. 

The total impact to move these ten (10) properties, based on 2021 rates, to the full 
residential flat rate/unit is an overall increase of $91,695.  The impact is proposed to be 
phased in over a four (4) year period from 2022 to 2026. 

Hotels: 

Based on data collected for hotels during the pilot project it was determined that the 
calculation for minimum billing for hotels under the current meter program best fit the flat 
rate methodology as to other methods reviewed.  The flat rate would be calculated as 
follows: 

 Commercial Rate x 35% of the number of hotel units 

Hotels with residential dwellings located within will be charged a residential flat rate for 
any residential units. 

Hotels with a pool will be charged a flat pool rate per hotel unit. 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 4 
 

Impacts: 

There are eight (8) hotels within the City with a total of 284 hotel rooms.  Two (2) hotels 
have pools. 

The total impact to move to these eight (8) properties to a flat rate billing system (based 
on 2021 rates) is an overall decrease of $4,573. Two (2) properties will see a small 
increase in relation the correct billing for residential dwelling units located in the buildi.  
Two (2) properties will see significant decreases in their water/sewer charges and four (4) 
properties will see larger increases. 

The impact to the increasing properties is proposed to be phased in over a four (4) year 
period from 2022 to 2026. 

Day-cares: 

In 2017 schools were moved to a per staff/student flat rate billing method.  Two (2) schools 
contain day-cares within their facilities and those staff/students were included in the 
information provided by the schools for the annual water/sewer billings. 

There are two (2) other day-cares in the area that do not have the same billing method 
applied.  Therefore, it is being recommended to move these facilities to a staff/student 
rate to ensure consistency within the class. 

Impacts: 

As we do not have registration numbers available for these facilities, the impact of the 
change in billing is unknown at this time.  However, if the properties increase in relation 
to the change, the impact is proposed to be phased in over a four (4) year period. 

Communication to Impacted Properties: 

If Council was to proceed with the recommended change in billing rates for multi-
residential, hotels and day-cares, staff would send property specific letters to each 
affected property owner explaining the changes, the effect date of January 1, 2022, how 
their property is impacted (based on 2021 rates) and how the phase-in would be applied 
to their tax bill. 

Individual meetings would be arranged if required. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 
 

Annual Water/Sewer rate by-laws 

Water By-law 2016-083 

 

 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Corporate Services Page | 5 
 

Consultation / Communication 
 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – March 3, 2016 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – May 2, 2016 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – February 2, 2017 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – March 2, 2017 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – April 6, 2017 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – July 23, 2019 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – July 8, 2020 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – August 6, 2020 

• Corporate Services Committee Meeting – February 1, 2021 
 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: 

  

Yes   No   N/A   

The proposed changes will have no impact on the 2021 budget as the rates and phase-
ins will not come into effect until January 1, 2022 

Submission 

Prepared by:  Reviewed by:  Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 

“Original signed by”  “Original signed by”  “Original signed by” 

 
Laura-Lee MacLeod 

  
Shelly Zubyck 

  
Christopher W. Oslund 

Treasurer  Director of Corporate 
Services 

 City Manager 

 



 

Public Works Page | 1 
 

Public Works 
012-2021-PW 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Mitch Lafreniere – Manager of Transportation Services 

Date: May 4, 2021 

Subject: National Public Works Week – Proclamation  

Attachments: Appendix 01: Letter from Premier Doug Ford 

Appendix 02: Letter from NEOPWO 

 
Mayor and Council: 
 
Public Works week has been recognised in the past and this year the week of May 16 – 

22, 2021 has been proclaimed as National Public Works Week “Stronger Together”.  

As the Manager of Transportation Services, I am requesting that you lend your support 

by issuing a proclamation officially recognizing the week of May 16 – 22, 2021 as National 

Public Works Week. In the past we have scheduled public events as part of Public Works 

Week, however this year due to the current situation we will not be holding any events 

related to the proclamation. 

Attached as Appendix 2 is also a letter from NEOPWO waiving membership fees for 2021 

and they will also cover annual membership fees for the Association of Ontario Road 

Supervisors (AORS).  

 

 
Prepared by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Mitch Lafreniere  
Manager of Transportation Services 

 
Reviewed and submitted for Council’s 
consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 



 

National Public Works Week 

May 16 – 22, 2021 

“Stronger Together” 

Provincial Proclamation  

WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services that are of vital importance to 

sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, high quality of life and well-being of the people of 

Ontario; and, 

WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts of public 

works professionals, who are engineers, managers and employees at all levels of government and the private sector, 

who are responsible for rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water treatment 

and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in Ontario to gain knowledge of and to 

maintain a progressive interest and understanding of the importance of public works and public works programs in their 

respective communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the year 2021 marks the 61st annual National Public Works Week be it now, 

RESOLVED, I, Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, do hereby designate the week May 16 – 22, 2021 as National Public Works 

Week; I urge all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works 

Association and government agencies in activities, events and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works 

professionals, engineers, managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they make to 

protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of Ontario (to be affixed), 

DONE at the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores, Ontario of this 27th day of April 2021. 

Doug Ford – Premier of Ontario 



 
 

 

Mayor and Council 

On behalf of the NEOPWO Directors, I would like to reach out during this challenging time to touch base 

with each one of our member communities. 

For almost three and a half decades, your Directors have worked hard, striving each year to improve the 

role of the organization by encouraging municipalities, suppliers, provincial ministries and other 

organizations to come together in the advancement of municipal infrastructure and public works. 

We continue to work together to bring communities together, with low cost training for our members 

and an effective network of communications between municipal public works teams and suppliers. 

Prior to the pandemic, NEOPWO held the Annual Truck Rodeo to promote safe driving and operating 

practices. Our Annual General Meeting, Spring Trade Show and Fall Training Session were dedicated to 

further educate municipal workers on emerging topics of interest, health & safety issues and 

presentations of new and innovative products by suppliers. 

The strength of this organization has always been in its member municipalities, suppliers, organizations 

and provincial agencies that participate in our events. 

With the current situation we have not been able to meet or host events and training that we normally 

would. In light of that fact, the Board of Directors has decided to not charge for annual membership fees 

(due to NEOPWO inactivity) and will cover the cost of the annual membership to the Association of 

Ontario Road Supervisors (AORS) for each existing member municipality. 

We have also included a proclamation template for your municipality for National Public Works Week 

May 16 – 22, 2021 “Stronger Together”. This week is a time designed to pay tribute to our public works 

professionals, engineers, managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they 

make to protect our national health, safety, and quality of life. 

 

George Guppy, C.Tech      Shane D. Skinner, EP 

NEOPWO Treasurer       NEOPWO Secretary 

Public Works Manager      Director of Public Works 

City of Timmins       Town of Smooth Rock Falls 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 1 
 

Subject: Emergency Water Main Relocation 
– Highway 11 Crossing 

Report No.: PW-011-2021 

  Agenda Date: May 4, 2021 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. Proposal 

Appendix 02: Single Source Justification 

Appendix 03: Draft Agreement (Please see By-law No. 2021-079)  

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report PW-011-2021;  

2. That as outlined in By-law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10, Council 
approves to waive the tendering procedure and directs staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) 
Inc. for the Emergency Water Main Relocation – Highway 11 Crossing in the 
amount of $ 158,850 plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the May 4, 2021 
Regular Council meeting; and 

3. That Council approves the utilization of the Environmental Reserve to finance the 
Emergency Water Main Relocation. 

Background 

On April 6th, 2021 it was identified to staff that there was water leaking at centre line on 
Highway 11 at the intersection of Drive-In-Theatre Road. At this location there is a 150mm 
water main that crosses the highway to provide water to the establishments on the west 
side. On April 8th, 2021, excavation occurred in an attempt to repair the leak. The attempt 
to repair was unsuccessful as the leak appears to be in the middle of the highway. In 
addition, the excavation did not expose any casing for the water main. The as constructed 
plans indicate that there is a 62-foot casing however this casing may not have been 
extended when the highway was expanded. 

As a result, a temporary water service was established and the water main crossing was 
isolated. Although the establishments on the west side of the highway have potable water 
for normal operations, there is no fire protection through the hydrants on the west side. 
The Fire Department was immediately notified and a contingency plan has been 
implemented in the event that a fire does occur.  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 2 
 

On April 9th, 2021, Staff contacted a representative from the Ministry of Transportation 
(MTO) to obtain approval and develop a plan to perform the necessary repair. MTO 
indicated that an open cut method to replace the water main crossing would be possible, 
however traffic flow would need to be maintained. 

Analysis 

Staff reached out to Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. to discuss the situation and to 
develop the best plan of action. As a result of the amount of traffic and the location of the 
current water main crossing, the best solution and most economical for the City would be 
a relocation of the water main crossing approximately 220m to the north utilizing a 
trenchless method. Pedersen’s provided staff with a proposal in the amount of $ 
158,850.00 plus applicable taxes and is attached as Appendix 01. 
 
This proposal was discussed at the Public Works Committee and Corporate Services 
Committee meetings held on April 21, 2021. Both committee’s support the methodology 
and utilizing the Environmental Reserve to finance the project. 
 
Therefore, it is staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. for the Emergency Water Main Relocation – Highway 11 
Crossing in the amount of $ 158,850.00, plus applicable taxes. Appendix 02 outlines the 
Single Source Justification. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

• Safe Drinking Water Act 

• By-Law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy 

Consultation / Communication 

• April 9th, 2021 – Consultation with MTO 

• April 21st, 2021 – Public Works Committee Meeting 

• April 21st, 2021 – Corporate Services Committee Meeting 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Public Works Page | 3 
 

This emergency project was not included in the 2021 Budget as it was an unforeseen 
situation. It is recommended to utilize the Environmental Reserve to finance the project 
as there are sufficient funds available. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered  

Submission 

 

Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Steve Burnett 
Manager of Environmental Services 
 

Reviewed and submitted for Council’s 
consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 

 







Emergency relocation of a water main crossing utilizing trenchless methodology 

on Highway 11 in Dymond as a result of a water main leak on the current crossing. 

$ 158,850.00 

 

Single / sole Source Justification 

Attach this completed from to requisitions when competitive bids are not solicited. 

 

Requested Single/Sole Source Supplier: 

 Company Name: Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc.  

 Contact Name: Karl Pedersen  

 Address: 177246 Bedard Road  

 City: New Liskeard     Prov: ON Postal Code: P0J 1P0 

 Phone Number: 705-647-6223 E-mail: kpedersen@pedersenconstruction.ca  

 

 Sole Source X Single Source  No Substitute 
(No other known source or the only source 
meeting specification requirements) 

(Only the designated Supplier is acceptable, 
others may exist) 

(Specified item is required due to uniqueness, 
research continuity, etc.) 

 

Description of  

Product or Service: 

 

 

 

Estimated Cost:  $ 

 

Complete the following checklist: 

A specific contractor is the only source of the required item because (check all that apply): 

    The required items are proprietary to the Contractor 

    A specific item is needed: 

    To be compatible or interchangeable with existing hardware; 

 As spare or replacement hardware; 

X For the repair or modification of existing hardware, or 

 For technical evaluation or test. 

X There is a substantial technical risk in contracting with any other contractor (e.g. 

only one contractor has been successful to date in implementing a difficult 

manufacturing process.) 

X For support services effort, there is no reasonable expectation that a meaningful 

cost or other improvement could be realized over the incumbent contractor’s 

performance (e.g. the chances of another firm winning a competition are clearly 

remote). 



 

 

 

Explain why the recommended company is the only company that can meet the requirement.  

Address the following: Are there any other companies who can do this job? What condition 

exists so that the recommended company has a significant advantage over any other company 

who can do this job? 

 

It is important to sufficiently address the key reason for awarding an order without soliciting 

competitive bids.  The rational must be clear and convincing, avoiding generalities and 

unsupported conclusions. 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. is experienced and qualified in the trenchless methodology 

for the necessary relocation of the water main crossing. 

 

In addition, time is of the essence to have the relocation completed to ensure proper fire 

suppression is restored for the establishments on the west side of highway 11. 

 

Therefore, it is Staff’s recommendation to utilize Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. to complete 

the project as it is in the best interest to the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Requested by:                             Steve Burnett                                             January 25, 2021   
       Department Head                     Date 

 

Reviewed by: ______________________________________ ______________________  
          City Manager                Date 

 

Endorsed by: ______________________________________ ______________________  
             Council                 Date 

 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 1 
 

Subject: Haileybury Fire Station  Report No.: RS-010-2021 

 RFP Results (RS-RFP-002-2021) Agenda Date: May 4, 2021 

Attachments 

Appendix 01 - RS-RFP-002-2021 Submission Summary 

Appendix 02 - CGV Builders RFP Submission 

Appendix 03 - Draft Agreement (Please refer to By-law No. 2021-080) 

Appendix 04 – Addendum to RS-010-2021 (New Haileybury Fire Hall, prepared by 

Treasurer) 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
administrative report RS-010-2021;  
 

2. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores approves an increase in the 2021 
Capital Budget for the Haileybury Fire Station from $1,680,000 to $2,513,000;  

 

3. That Council agrees to fund the increase in the revised Haileybury Fire Station 
Capital Budget as follows: 

 

• Use $604,895 in Gas Tax Funding for the Roads Program 

• Reallocate $604,895 from the Roads Program to the Fire Hall project 

• Defer the New Liskeard Marina Building repairs and reallocate the own 
purpose revenue ($108,000) to the Fire Hall project 

• Utilize Community Development Reserve in the amount of $120,105 for 
the Fire Hall Project; and 

 

4. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an agreement 
with CGV Builders Inc. for the award of the Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build as 
detailed in Request for Proposal RS-RFP-002-2021, for a total upset limit of 
$2,090,000 plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular 
Meeting of Council. 

  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 2 
 

Background 

City of Temiskaming Shores Fire Department Station 1 in Haileybury located at 468 
Georgina Avenue has been the home location of fire fighting services in Haileybury since 
1923. Since that time there have been numerous changes and revisions to how fire 
departments operate and the requirements for health and safety of firefighters. Multiple 
building audits and discussion among stakeholders has determined that the building is at 
the end of its useful life and no longer meets the needs of the City. In 2020, the station 
was budgeted to be replaced with a new building to be located at 25 Rorke Avenue with 
a project budget of $1,500,000. Staff and Council reviewed similar builds in neighbouring 
communities to determine what type of replacement facility would be needed. 

With the uncertainty surrounding COVID-19, the municipality decided to defer the project 
to 2021 to ensure adequate cash-flow could be maintained. 

During budget deliberations for 2021, the Haileybury Fire Station was again approved for 
replacement with an updated budget figure of $1,680,000. This amount was an increase 
from the previous year of $180,000 or 12% to account for inflation. 

Staff prepared RS-RFP-002-2021 with input from multiple municipal departments as well 
as input from our fire department volunteers. Staff also utilized information from the Town 
of Powassan who recently completed a similar facility for around $1,300,000 in 2019. The 
RFP was released on February 17, 2021 with a closing date of April 8, 2021. Addendum 
01 was released on March 18, 2021 which, modified the closing date to April 15, 2021. 
Addendum 02 was released on March 29, 2021. 

The RFP closed on April 15, 2021 with seven proposals being received (Appendix 01). 
The proposals received were, in order of opening: 

1. Sunrize Overhead - $35,820 

2. Domm Construction Ltd - $2,310,000 

3. WS Morgan Construction Ltd - $3,165,000 

4. Matheson Constructors Ltd - $3,732,000 

5. Quinan Construction Ltd - $2,821,000 

6. CGV Builders Inc - $2,060,000 

7. Pegah Construction Ltd - $4,625,113 

Results from the RFP were discussed at the special meeting of the Building Maintenance 

Committee on April 28, 2021. The following recommendation was subsequently passed:  

  



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 3 
 

Recommendation BM-2021-016 
Moved by: Councillor Doug Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Building Maintenance Committee hereby supports the 
recommendations contained in Administrative Report BM-2021-04 for the construction 
of the Haileybury Fire Hall, using Option 1 for financing. 

Carried 

Results from the RFP were also discussed at the special meeting of the Protection to 

Persons and Property Committee on April 28, 2021. The following recommendation was 

subsequently passed:  

Recommendation PPP-2021-021 
Moved by: Councillor Mike McArthur 
 
Be it resolved that the Protection to Persons and Property Committee hereby supports 
the recommendations contained in Administrative Report BM-2021-04 for the 
construction of the Haileybury Fire Hall, using Option 1 for financing. 

Carried 

Results from the RFP were also discussed at the special meeting of the Corporate 

Services Committee on April 28, 2021. The following recommendation was subsequently 

passed:  

Recommendation CS-2021-025 
Moved by: Mayor Carman Kidd 

Be it resolved that the Corporate Services Committee supports the Haileybury Fire Hall 
construction project; and hereby directs staff to investigate funding sources and/or 
reallocation of other capital projects to offset the over budgeted costs.  

Carried 

Analysis 

Staff completed a thorough review of the proposals received. The proposal received from 
Sunrize Overhead was disqualified due to being incomplete. The remaining six proposals 
were scored based upon the matrix that was included in the RFP. The results of the 
scoring were: 

1. CGV Builders - 820 

2. Domm Construction - 805 

3. Quinan Construction - 725 

4. WS Morgan Construction - 645 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 4 
 

5. Matheson Constructors - 585 

6. Pegah Construction - 400 

All proposals were complete with the necessary documentation. All proposals included 
the components as laid out within the RFP and would meet the current and future needs 
of the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department. CGV Builders, scored the highest among 
the six reviewed bids. Their proposal is included in Appendix 02. CGV Builders is 
proposing a 9,300 sq ft building on a reinforced raft foundation with a single pull-through 
bay and two additional bays. The building would have various offices, a training room and 
a small mezzanine. The envelope would be a Steelway Building Systems engineered 
steel building.  

CGV Builders schedule for construction would see working drawings being complete at 
the end of June and on-site work beginning at the end of August. The building would be 
erected in October with interior finishing to be completed in November and December. 
Estimated handover of the building would take place in December 2021. 

The City requested three optional prices within the RFP including pricing for natural gas 
in-floor heating, an asphalt apron and mid-span brick cladding. CGV Builders provided 
the following cost estimates for these items: 

1. Natural Gas In-Floor Heating: $40,000 

2. Asphalt Apron: $15,000 

3. Mid-Span Brick Cladding - $35/sq ft. (Estimated at $15,000) 

During the review of proposals, staff considered the cost of including in-floor natural gas 
heating into the design. Staff are not recommending to proceed with this option.  

Within the pricing provided in their bid, CGV Builders allocated for gravel only in-front of 
the three entrance bays of the building. It is prudent to include the $15,000 for an asphalt 
apron in this location instead. This will limit the amount of loose material which will make 
its way into the facility and provide a more attractive look to the building. Staff are 
recommending to proceed with this option. 

CGV Builders’ preliminary design includes a canopy over the front office / main entrance 
to the building. It is staff’s recommendation that brick cladding be incorporated into the 
design of this space on the newbuilding. In total there would be approximately 425 square 
feet of wall to be cladded with brick. This works out to approximately $15,000 plus HST. 
It is staff’s recommendation to move forward with this option. 

In addition to the cost submitted by CGV Builders, the City will have other costs related 
to this project. These costs are estimated at: 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 5 
 

1. Site Servicing to property line - $150,000 

2. Furnishings - $60,000 

3. Advocate Architect - $50,000 

4. Contingency/Change Orders - $120,000 

5. Non-Recoverable HST - $43,000 

In total, the estimated cost of this project is $2,513,000 or an increase of $833,000 from 
the currently budgeted figure. 

COVID-19 has created immense volatility within the building materials market. Building 
material costs including lumber and steel are increasing at rates well past inflation in just 
a short time frame. Further, there are ongoing supply issues which necessitate shortened 
quotation confirmation times. In fact, Addendum 01 lowered the submission price 
guarantee from 60 days to 30 days due to requests by multiple bidders. Contractors are 
simply not able to get 60 day pricing on building materials at this point in time.  

The design for this facility is based upon the same design as the recently completed 
Powassan Fire Hall. That project was completed by Domm Construction for $1,300,000 
in 2019. Domm Construction’s bid for our project, which is similar in both size, design and 
scope, was $2,300,000.  

Staff are recommending that the Haileybury Fire Hall move forward despite its increased 
estimated cost. There is no reasonable expectation that building material prices will fall in 
the short or long-term. Interest rates continue to stay at historic low-rates which lowers 
the cost of borrowing substantially. And, in the meantime, the current Haileybury Fire Hall 
does not meet current size or code requirements. 

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

• 2021 Capital Budget  

• By-Law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

 
Current budgeted amount: $ 1,680,000 
 
CGV Builders Design-Build Bid $ 2,060,000 



 City of Temiskaming Shores 
 Administrative Report 
 

Recreation Department Page | 6 
 

 Asphalt Apron $ 15,000 
 Mid-Span Brick Cladding $ 15,000  

Site Servicing to Property Line  $ 150,000 
Furnishings/Equipment $ 60,000 
Advocate Architect $ 50,000 
Contingencies/Change Orders $ 120,000 
Non-Recoverable HST $ 43,000 
Total $ 2,513,000 
 
 
Further financial considerations are included within the Addendum prepared by the 
Treasurer, specifically the how the Budget increase would be financed, which is 
attached and forms part of the financial analysis of this report. 

Alternatives 

1. The City could decide to cancel RS-RFP-002-2021 and continue to use the current 

Haileybury Fire Hall 

2. The City could decide to award the RFP to another bidder 

3. The City could re-issue the RFP with a different scope of work. 

 

Prepared by:  Reviewed and Endorsed 
by: 

 Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 

“Original signed by”  “Original signed by”  “Original signed by” 

 
Mathew Bahm 

  
Steve Langford 

  
Christopher W. Oslund 

Director of Recreation  Fire Chief  City Manager 
   
  

 



















































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quality Assurance Plan 
(CGV Builders Design-Build Projects) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

1.0 Introduction 

 

The information, templates and examples provided in this dossier represent a Quality Assurance Plan 

(“QAP”) developed by CGV Builders (“CGV”) and for a typical design-build construction project. 

The QAP will be revised and modified at the outset of each project to ensure that the work is completed in 

compliance with the project specific quality requirements of the Client and other project shareholders.  

This dossier outlines the practices and procedures that CGV Builders and affiliated subcontractors / 

suppliers will undertake for all design activities, fabricating operations, construction processes, preparation 

of documents and inspections / testing with regard to quality control.  

The QAP and all related documents will be maintained and revised for the duration of the project; as 

applicable. 

 

2.0 Quality Policy 

 

The CGV team is committed to quality excellence and will consistently strive to provide services that 

surpass client expectations. Project success will be guaranteed through knowledge, experience, strong 

relations with subcontractors / suppliers, use of best industry practices and a safe work environment for our 

employees and all those that could be affected by our actions. Quality is a requirement, not only in the final 

product, but in our relationships with clients and business partners. 

3.0 Project Quality Control Implementation 

 
3.1 Scheduling and Work Planning 

 
3.1.2 Pre-Construction Meeting 

 

A pre-construction meeting will be held on a date, time and location that has been mutually agreed upon 

by the Client, CGV and all other parties involved in the construction of the project.  

The meeting will outline key elements of the project and will establish the necessary roles and 

responsibilities of all participating parties. 

Critical items to be discussed will include, but not limited to:  

• establishing construction phase procedures,  

• identifying project milestones,  

• determining the work that will require inspections and / or testing, including hold points,  

• establishing lines of communication,  



2 | P a g e  
 

• forming key contacts,  

• reviewing project schedules and submittal requirements,  

• discussing existing site conditions and identifying potential safety concerns, 

• creating / documenting formal meeting minutes.  

 

 

3.1.3  Work Plans 

 

A detailed work plan will be prepared for each major project task. The work plan will describe the proper 

procedures that must undertaken to achieve a compliant outcome. Work plans will be completed no later 

than one week prior to the pre-activity meeting and will consist of a work sequence, a list of materials, a 

safety plan, a list of activity milestones, a sign-off checklist, a list of required inspections and / or testing 

and a thorough description of the responsibilities for all parties involved. Work plans will be revised and 

modified as required throughout the project. 

A sample work plan is included in Appendix A of this QAP. 

 

3.1.4  Work Plan Sign-Off Checklist 

 

A sign-off checklist will be included at the end of each work plan. The field crew quality representative will 

sign-off on each checklist item to confirm that all tasks that are specified in the work plan have been 

completed. A copy of each work plan sign-off checklist will be returned to the CGV head office for review 

and documentation. 

 

3.1.5   Pre-Activity Meetings 

 

Pre-activity meetings will take place 24-hours prior to the start of each new activity. The intent is to 

communicate the details and procedures that are specified in the activity’s work plan. Attendees shall 

include the project superintendent and / or supervisor, the quality assurance officer and all CGV employees 

and sub-trades that will participate in the activity. The project superintendent or supervisor will be 

responsible for coordinating and leading pre-activity meetings.  

 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

3.1.6 Weekly Schedules 

 

Weekly schedules will outline the planned project activities for the upcoming two-week period. The 

schedules will be prepared in Gantt chart format. The schedules will be communicated to the project team 

during weekly progress meetings. Typical information can include planned work for the upcoming period, 

identifying new activities, upcoming pre-activity meetings, required hold points and / or inspections, among 

others. All revisions to the weekly schedule will be promptly communicated to all parties and a revised copy 

of the schedule will be circulated. 

The Client will be notified well in advance of all weekly progress meetings. A sample weekly schedule is 

included in Appendix A.  

 

3.1.7 Job-Forecasting 

 

Project quality management personnel will meet regularly to examine the schedule and discuss future 

activities that could potentially result in setbacks to the project. These can include construction activities, 

deliverables, inspections, and others. Preparatory actions and procedures will be determined in order to 

mitigate the risk of complications or delays to the project schedule. 

 

3.2 Inspection and Testing 

 

3.2.1 Inspection and Test Plans (ITP) 

 

An Inspection and Test Plan (“ITP”) will be prepared for all major activities performed by CGV and 

collaborating sub-trades throughout the duration of the project. ITP’s will identify the elements within an 

activity that require inspection, confirmation and / or verification before initiating subsequent work activities. 

Key components of the ITP include date / time of the inspection, inspector name with credentials, type of 

inspection / test, inspecting / testing procedure requirements, acceptance criterions, cause of rejection, 

commentary on results, corrective actions required and reference drawings / specifications. ITP’s will 

ensure that all work is completed in accordance with project standards, specifications, and applicable 

codes.  

A sample ITP is included in Appendix A.  

 

 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

 

3.2.2   Daily Quality Report 

 

Daily Quality Reports will be completed by the project Quality Assurance Officer and will be used to 

summarize the work performed on-site and outline the observations that pertain to quality control. Other 

items can include weather/site conditions, inspections, deliveries and a list of sub-trades performing work 

on-site. A sample daily inspection report is included in Appendix A.  

 

3.2.3 Witness Point 

 

A witness point is an identified point during the execution of the project that may require a consultant and/or 

a licensed professional engineer to review, witness or inspect the process of work. The succeeding activities 

after witness may proceed and no approval is required.  

All preliminary witness points for this project have been established and are listed in Appendix A.  

 

3.2.4 Hold Points 

 

A hold point is a mandatory verification point during the construction phase that requires the approval of a 

consultant, a licenced professional engineer or a municipality inspector in order to proceed with the 

succeeding activity. Once the quality of the completed work has been verified and approved, the hold is 

released by means of inspection request approval.  

All preliminary hold points for this project have been established and are listed in Appendix A. 

 

3.2.5 Inspection Request 

 

An inspection request will be submitted to the appropriate professional no less than 3 days prior to attaining 

a hold point. In the event that corrective actions are required following an inspection, the instruction to rectify 

will need to be addressed/released within a 3-day maximum turnaround period. This turnaround period is 

required to avoid any significant delays to the project schedule. 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

 

3.2.6 Substantial Inspection 

 

As soon as the contractor believes substantial completion has been achieved, they may apply for a 

Substantial Inspection. This inspection conforms to the Construction Lien Act and requires all Life Safety 

Items and a 97% completion (more information in the Act). This will begin the process for holdback release. 

 

3.3 Receipt of Material  

 

3.3.1 Material Receipt Verification Form 

 

The overall condition of the materials delivered to the construction site will be visually assessed in order to 

confirm that they are compliant based on material specifications.  

The assessment results will be documented in a Material Receipt Verification Form along with field notes 

and other pertinent information. Material characteristics that can be examined include: appropriate 

dimensions, quantities, overall condition, special features and markings, among others. Any non-

conforming material will be handled as instructed in Section 4.3.5.  

A sample Material Receipt Verification Form is included in Appendix A. 

 

3.3.2 Storage of Material 

 

All material will be stored in an environment that will ensure that the preservation of its quality and integrity 

is maintained. On-site material storage areas will be coordinated with the Client and storage 

methods/procedures shall conform to manufacturer recommendations and industry standards. Stored 

material will be re-verified prior to use in order to ensure the condition coincides with the information 

described in the Material Receipt Verification Form. 

 

3.3.3 General Procurement 

 

A schedule listing all key delivery dates for the project will be available on the CGV Builders electronic 

document management system and will be revised as necessary. 

 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

3.3.4 Non-Conforming Work or Material 

 

All work and material not conforming to contract requirements will be identified and mitigation procedures 

will be established. The subject matter will be documented in a Non-Conformance Report. 

  

3.3.5 Non-Conformance Mitigation Procedures 

 

The non-conformance work and/or material rectification process is as follows: 

1. Non-conforming work and/or material are identified, 

2. A Non-Conformance Report is issued and is accompanied with commentary and a proposed 

resolution, 

3. Client to approve or reject the proposed path forward, 

4. In the event of a rejected proposal, both parties shall collaborate until an acceptable resolution is 

mutually agreed upon, 

5. The approved resolution is executed, 

6. Required inspections are performed. 

 

3.3.6 Preventive Action Process 

 

The preventive action process involves identifying the source of non-conforming work and establishing 

guidelines that will help prevent similar situations from occurring in the future. 

 

3.4 Continual Improvement of Quality Management System 

 

CGV Builders have established programs such as management reviews and quality audits that aim to 

continuously improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the quality management system. Quality 

management personnel is responsible for ensuring that all employees and subcontractors are aware of 

the importance of continuous improvement and are actively engaged in its implementation with regard to 

the performance to the work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

3.5 Site and Safety Issues 

 
3.5.1 Health and Safety Policy 

 

CGV Builders is committed to protecting the health and safety of all employees. To achieve this, our 

employees are required to work in a safe manner and are responsible for reporting any unsafe/unhealthy 

conditions to their supervisors, co-workers, Health and Safety Representative.  

Management is responsible for ensuring that appropriate steps have been taken to control or eliminate all 

potential hazards and to ensure that safe and healthy work conditions are maintained throughout our work 

facilities. 

Any contractors/subcontractors hired to perform work or to provide a service to CGV Builders is responsible 

for ensuring that their workers work in compliance with the regulations specified in the Occupational Health 

and Safety Act and any other legislation relating to the work/services being provided.  

The CGV Builders Health and Safety Manual is included in Appendix A.   

 

4 Quality Documentation 

 

4.2 Document Management System 

 

All project documentation including the items stated in Section 4 will be electronically stored/maintained by 

CGV Builders and made accessible to the Client. The web-based document management system that will 

be employed is Dropbox.  

4.3 Retention of Documents 

 

All quality related documents for this project will be retained for a period of 7 years following substantial 

completion. This includes both electronic and hard copy documents. 

4.4 Shop Drawings 

 

Shop drawings that require submission, review and approval will be specified in the Shop Drawing 

Management Schedule. The schedule can be accessed using the online document management system 

described in Section 5.1 and its content will be revised as required. A sample Shop Drawing Management 

Schedule is included in Appendix A. 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

4.5 Quality Control Turnover Package 

 

A complete package of all quality management plan forms and reports will be assembled and bound. This 

package will include, but is not limited to; ITP’s, Work Plans, Daily Quality Reports, Non-Conformance 

Reports, etc.      

 
 

4.6 Close Out Documents 

 

A complete package of all administration items will be compiled and bound. The package will include, but 

is not limited to; as-built drawings, permits, maintenance manuals, specifications, etc.  

 

5 Communications 

 

5.2 Internal Communications 

 

Effective communication practices within the CGV Builders management team will be ensured through 

weekly team meetings. These meetings will cover overall project objectives and risk assessments. Daily 

conference calls with the site superintendent are essential for daily activities. Email correspondence will be 

documented and stored in directories accordingly. 

 

5.3 Client Communications 

 

Client communications will be maintained throughout the duration of the project. Continuous communication 

efforts will be ensured through regular coordination meetings on-site and at management level to discuss 

project concerns. Weekly conference calls will be implemented to ensure roll out of project. Substantial 

meetings can be arranged if the client or contractor deems appropriate for emergency items.  

   

6 Quality Management Personnel 

 

The responsibilities and authorities of key quality management personnel are defined in the following 

sections. 

 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

 

6.2 Quality Management Organizational Chart 

 

All CGV Builders quality management personnel described in Section 7.0 are listed in the name-specific 

organizational chart in Appendix A. Each position is accompanied with relevant qualifications.  

 

 

6.3 Quality Manager (QM) 

 

The Quality Manager is responsible for the overall management and coordination of all quality control 

activities performed by or on behalf of CGV Builders. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. QM 

responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that the Quality Assurance Plan is implemented and maintained. 

• Ensure that quality management personnel responsibilities and authorities are communicated and 

understood. 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart.  

• Identify the activities and processes that require ITP’s, work plans, hold points etc. and 

develop/implement these documents. 

• Coordinate with quality assurance officer to ensure that ITP’s are scheduled and performed. 

• Manage and coordinate all activities related to the quality of material fabrication, material delivery, 

material assembly/erection and all required inspections and testing. 

• Develop mitigation procedures for all non-conforming work and/or material. 

• Establish all hold points and witness points for the project. 

• Provide all necessary resources to meet initial quality objectives. 

• Responsible for approving and storing all documents pertaining to quality control. 

• Main point of contact for all quality related inquiries. 

 

6.4 Quality Assurance Officer (QAO) 

 

The Quality Assurance Officer is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations on the construction site 

and ensuring that quality standards are met. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. QAO responsibilities 

and authorities: 



10 | P a g e  
 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality Management 

Organizational Chart, 

• Participate in pre-activity meetings and communicate the ITP’s that will be performed for the 

activity, 

• Collaborate with project superintendent/supervisor with regards to weekly scheduling to ensure 

quality control requirements are met. 

• Contribute quality related elements to all required project work plans. 

• Ensure ITP’s are performed and documented, 

• Responsible for assessing non-conforming work and material and preparing a Non-Conformance 

Report accompanied with mitigation procedures. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Coordinate and facilitate the quality assurances of all manufacturers, expediters and sub-trades. 

 

6.5 Engineering Manager (EM) 

 

The Engineering Manager is responsible for managing activities related to the overall design of the project. 

Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. EM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage operations of civil, structural, mechanical and electrical departments, 

• Establish working relationship with the client on matters relating to design, 

• Responsible for assuring that all required engineering inspections are performed and approved 
by qualified personnel. 

 

6.6 Project Manager (PM) 

 

The Project Manager is responsible for the overall planning, coordination, control and execution of the 

project. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. PM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage all operations related to the execution of the project, 

• Prepare and maintain project schedule, 

• Collaborate with quality manager to develop mitigation procedures for non-conforming work 

and/or material, 

• Develop a list of activities that will require a pre-activity meeting, 

• Main point of contact for all project related inquiries. 

 



11 | P a g e  
 

6.7 Site Superintendent/Supervisor (SS) 

 

The Site Superintendent/Supervisor is responsible for overseeing all on-site operations and controlling the 

short-term schedule. SS Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. SS responsibilities and authorities: 

 
Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Coordinate quality related inspections with daily operations performed by CGV Builders and sub-

trades.  

• Prepare Daily Quality Reports, 

• Schedule and lead pre-activity meetings. 

• Develop and distribute weekly schedules that outline project activities for the following two week 

period. 

• Control and maintain short term scheduling of the project. 

• Ensure that sub-trades/suppliers are provided with the most recent set of drawings and project 

specifications. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Ensure subcontractor field operations meet project quality objectives, 

• Verify the overall condition/characteristics of all material delivered on-site and confirm that storage 

areas are suitable. Document this information in a Material Receipt Report, 

• Responsible for subcontractor coordination. 

• Promptly communicate on-site issues and all non-conforming material and work to quality 

management personnel. 

• Responsible for timely submitting inspection requests. 

• Main point of contact for all on-site inquiries. 

 

6.8 Project Administrator (PA) 

 

The Project Administrator will control, maintain and coordinate all contractual and project related 

documentation for the entire project. The PA will correspond with the Project Manager and the Quality 

Assurance Manager on a day to day basis to ensure project administration activities are in compliance with 

the Quality Management Plan. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. PA responsibilities and 

authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Maintain the document management system, 

• Responsible for processing project documents, 



12 | P a g e  
 

• Expedite flow of project communication and deliverables, 

• Main point of contact for all administration related inquiries. 

 

 

 

6.9 Manufacturing Manager (MM) 

 

The Manufacturing Manager is responsible for managing daily operations and performance of the 

manufacturing facility. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. MM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Oversee the manufacturing process of materials and ensure that they meet design, quality and 

safety requirements. 

 

6.10 Quality Control Inspectors (QCI) 

 

Third party Quality Control Inspector’s are responsible for performing required inspections during all phases 

of the project. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. 

QCI responsibilities and authorities: 

• Perform all required ITP’s and prepare related documentation, 

• Recognize non-conforming work and/or material and promptly inform CGV quality management 
personnel. 

 

6.11  Expediter 

 

The Expediter is responsible for the safe and timely transportation of materials to the construction site. The 

expediter’s responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that materials are delivered in-line with the project schedule. 

• Ensuring the safe transportation and surveillance of materials. 

• Verify that shipment contains appropriate materials and quantities. 

 

 

 





98
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 2.1.

Aerial Axonometric View









1716
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.1.

Main Entrance Perspective



1918
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.2.

Front Perspective

Front Elevation



2120
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.3.

Rear Entrance PerspectiveMain Entrance Close-up

















 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quality Assurance Plan 
(Template - Design Build Projects) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

1.0 Introduction 

The data, information and examples portrayed in this dossier represent a Quality Assurance Plan developed 

by CGV Builders and prepared for review by the Client as it relates to the Design Build Project. 

The Quality Assurance Plan has been established to ensure the project is completed in compliance and 

conforms to every aspect of the quality requirements described in the contract documents. 

This manuscript outlines the practices and procedures that CGV Builders and affiliated 

subcontractors/suppliers will employ for all; design activities, fabricating operations, construction 

processes, preparation of documents and inspections/testing, with regard to quality control.  

The Quality Assurance Plan and all related documents will be maintained and revised for the duration of 

the project, as applicable. 

 

2.0 Reference Documents 

The following documents were compiled and utilized in the creation of this Quality Assurance Plan: 

• TBD 

 

3.0 Quality Policy 

The CGV team is committed to quality excellence and will consistently strive to provide services that 

surpass client expectations. Project success will be guaranteed through; knowledge, experience, strong 

relations with subcontractors / suppliers, use of best industry practices and a safe work environment for our 

employees and all those affected by our actions. Quality is a requirement, not only in the final product, but 

in our relationships with clients and business partners. 

 

4.0 Project Quality Control Implementation 

 
4.1 Scheduling and Work Planning 

 
4.1.2  Pre-Construction Meeting 

A pre-construction meeting will be held on a date, time and location that has been mutually agreed upon 

by; the Client, CGV Builders and all other parties involved in the construction of the design-build project. 

The meeting will outline key elements of the project and will establish the necessary roles and 

responsibilities of all participating parties. 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

Critical items to be discussed include, but not limited to:  

• establishing the construction phase procedures,  

• identifying project milestones,  

• work requiring inspections including hold points,  

• lines of communication,  

• forming key contacts,  

• schedules and submittal requirements,  

• site and safety issues, 

• creation of formal Meeting Minutes on a recorded and documented basis,  

• follow-up actions to be established and monitored during the project. 

 

4.1.3  Work Plans 

A detailed work plan will be prepared for each major project activity and will describe the procedures 

required to achieve a compliant outcome. Work plans will be completed no later than one week prior to the 

pre-activity meeting and will consist of, but are not limited to: a work sequence, a list of materials, a safety 

plan, a list of activity milestones, a sign-off checklist, a list of required inspections and a thorough description 

of responsibilities for all parties involved. Work plans will be modified and revised as required. 

4.1.2 Work Plan Sign-Off Checklist 

A sign-off checklist will be included at the end of each work plan. The field crew quality representative will 

sign-off on each checklist item confirming that all tasks specified in the work plan have been completed and 

meet requirements.    

 

4.1.3   Pre-Activity Meetings 

Pre-activity meetings will take place 24-hours prior to the start of each new activity. The goal is to 

communicate the details and procedures specified in the work plan. Attendees may include: the project 

superintendent/supervisor, the quality assurance officer and all CGV employees and sub-trades required 

to complete the activity. The project superintendent/supervisor will be responsible for coordinating and 

executing the pre-activity meetings.  

 

4.1.4 Weekly Schedules 

Weekly schedules will outline the planned project activities for the following two-week period. The content 

will be communicated through weekly progress meetings and can include: all planned work for the period, 

identification of new activities, upcoming pre-activity meetings, required hold points and/or inspections, 



3 | P a g e  
 

among others. All revisions to the weekly schedule will be promptly communicated to all parties and a 

revised copy of the schedule will be distributed. 

 

4.1.5 Job-Forecasting 

Project/Quality management personnel will meet regularly to examine the schedule and anticipate future 

activities that could potentially result in setbacks to the project. These can include construction activities, 

deliverables, inspections and others. Preparatory steps and procedures will be established in order to 

reduce the possibility of complications at all levels of the activity execution. 

 

4.2 Inspection and Testing 

 

4.2.1 Inspection and Test Plans (ITP) 

An Inspection and Test Plan shall be prepared for all major activities performed by CGV Builders and 

collaborating sub-trades throughout the duration of the project. ITP’s will identify the elements within an 

activity that require inspection, confirmation and/or verification before initiating subsequent work activities. 

Key components of the ITP can include: date/time of the inspection, inspector name with credentials, type 

of inspection/test, inspecting/testing procedure requirements, acceptance criterions, cause of rejection, 

commentary results, corrective actions required and reference drawings/specifications. ITP’s will ensure 

that all work is completed in accordance with project standards, specifications and applicable codes. 

 

4.2.2  Daily Quality Report 

Daily Quality Reports will summarize the work performed on-site and outline the observations that pertain 

to quality control. Other items can include weather/site conditions, inspections, deliveries, and a list of sub-

trades performing work on-site.  

 

4.2.3 Witness Point 

A witness point is an identified point during the execution of the project that may require a consultant and/or 

a licensed professional engineer to review, witness or inspect the process of work. The succeeding activities 

after witness may proceed and no approval is required.  

 

 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

4.2.4 Hold Points 

A hold point is a mandatory verification point during the construction phase that requires the approval of a 

consultant, a licenced professional engineer, or a municipality inspector in order to proceed with the 

succeeding activity. Once the quality of the completed work has been verified and approved, the hold is 

released by means of inspection request approval.  

 

4.2.5 Inspection Request 

An inspection request will be submitted to the appropriate professional no less than 3 days prior to attaining 

a hold point. In the event that corrective actions are required following an inspection, the instruction to rectify 

will need to be addressed/released within a 3-day maximum turnaround period. This turnaround period is 

required to avoid any significant delays to the project schedule. 

 

4.2.6 Substantial Inspection 

As soon as the contractor believes substantial completion has been achieved, they may apply for a 

Substantial Inspection. This inspection conforms to the Construction Lien Act and requires all Life Safety 

Items and a 97% completion (more information in the Act). This will begin the process for holdback release. 

 

4.3 Receipt of Material  

 

4.3.1 Material Receipt Verification Form 

The overall condition of the materials delivered to the construction site will be visually assessed in order to 

confirm that they are compliant based on material specifications.  

The assessment results will be documented in a Material Receipt Verification Form along with field notes 

and other pertinent information. Material characteristics that can be examined include: appropriate 

dimensions, quantities, overall condition, special features and markings, among others. Any non-

conforming material will be handled as instructed in Section 4.3.5.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

4.3.2 Storage of Material 

All material will be stored in an environment that will ensure that the preservation of its quality and integrity 

is maintained. On-site material storage areas will be coordinated with the Client and storage 

methods/procedures shall conform to manufacturer recommendations and industry standards. Stored 

material will be re-verified prior to use in order to ensure the condition coincides with the information 

described in the Material Receipt Verification Form. 

 

4.3.3 General Procurement 

A schedule listing all key delivery dates for the project will be available on the CGV Builders electronic 

document management system and will be revised, as necessary. 

 

4.3.4 Non-Conforming Work or Material 

All work and material not conforming to contract requirements will be identified and mitigation procedures 

will be established. The subject matter will be documented in a Non-Conformance Report. 

  

4.3.5 Non-Conformance Mitigation Procedures 

The non-conformance work and/or material rectification process is as follows: 

1. Non-conforming work and/or material are identified, 

2. A Non-Conformance Report is issued and is accompanied with commentary and a proposed 

resolution, 

3. Client to approve or reject the proposed path forward, 

4. In the event of a rejected proposal, both parties shall collaborate until an acceptable resolution is 

mutually agreed upon, 

5. The approved resolution is executed, 

6. Required inspections are performed. 

 

4.3.6 Preventive Action Process 

The preventive action process involves identifying the source of non-conforming work and establishing 

guidelines that will help prevent similar situations from occurring in the future. 

 

 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

4.4 Continual Improvement of Quality Management System 

CGV Builders have established programs such as management reviews and quality audits that aim to 

continuously improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the quality management system. Quality 

management personnel is responsible for ensuring that all employees and subcontractors are aware of 

the importance of continuous improvement and are actively engaged in its implementation with regard to 

the performance to the work. 

 

4.5 Site and Safety Issues 

 
4.5.1 Health and Safety Policy 

CGV Builders is committed to protecting the health and safety of all employees. To achieve this, our 

employees are required to work in a safe manner and are responsible for reporting any unsafe/unhealthy 

conditions to their supervisors, co-workers, Health and Safety Representative.  

Management is responsible for ensuring that appropriate steps have been taken to control or eliminate all 

potential hazards and to ensure that safe and healthy work conditions are maintained throughout our work 

facilities. 

Any contractors/subcontractors hired to perform work or to provide a service to CGV Builders is responsible 

for ensuring that their workers work in compliance with the regulations specified in the Occupational Health 

and Safety Act and any other legislation relating to the work/services being provided.  

 

5.0 Quality Documentation 

 

5.1 Document Management System 

All project documentation including the items stated in Section 4 will be electronically stored/maintained by 

CGV Builders and made accessible to the Client. The web-based document management system that will 

be employed is SharePoint. All document distribution will be done through the SharePoint access system. 

5.2 Retention of Documents 

All quality related documents for this project will be retained for a period of 7 years following substantial 

completion. This includes both electronic and hard copy documents. 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

5.3 Shop Drawings 

Shop drawings that require submission, review and approval will be specified in the Shop Drawing 

Management Schedule. The schedule can be accessed using the online document management system 

described in Section 5.1 and its content will be revised as required. 

 

5.4 Quality Control Turnover Package 

A complete package of all quality management plan forms and reports will be assembled and bound. This 

package will include, but is not limited to, ITP’s, Work Plans, Daily Quality Reports, Non-Conformance 

Reports, etc.      

 

5.5 Close Out Documents 

A complete package of all administration items will be compiled and bound. The package will include, but 

is not limited to; as-built drawings, permits, maintenance manuals, specifications, etc.  

 

6.0 Communications 

 

6.1 Internal Communications 

Effective communication practices within the CGV Builders management team will be ensured through 

weekly team meetings. These meetings will cover overall project objectives and risk assessments. Daily 

conference calls with the site superintendent are essential for daily activities. Email correspondence will be 

documented and stored in directories accordingly. 

 

6.2 Client Communications 

Client communications will be maintained throughout the duration of the project. Continuous communication 

efforts will be ensured through regular coordination meetings on-site and at management level to discuss 

project concerns. Weekly conference calls will be implemented to ensure roll out of project. Substantial 

meetings can be arranged if the client or contractor deems appropriate for emergency items.  

   

 

 

 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

7.0 Quality Management Personnel 

 

The responsibilities and authorities of key quality management personnel are defined in the following 

sections. 

7.1 Quality Management Organizational Chart 

 

All CGV Builders quality management personnel described in Section 7.0 are listed in a name-specific 

organizational chart.  Each position is accompanied with relevant qualifications.  

 

7.2 Quality Manager (QM) 

The Quality Manager is responsible for the overall management and coordination of all quality control 

activities performed by or on behalf of CGV Builders. QM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that the Quality Assurance Plan is implemented and maintained. 

• Ensure that quality management personnel responsibilities and authorities are communicated and 

understood. 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart.  

• Identify the activities and processes that require ITP’s, work plans, hold points etc. and 

develop/implement these documents. 

• Coordinate with quality assurance officer to ensure that ITP’s are scheduled and performed. 

• Manage and coordinate all activities related to the quality of material fabrication, material delivery, 

material assembly/erection and all required inspections and testing. 

• Develop mitigation procedures for all non-conforming work and/or material. 

• Establish all hold points and witness points for the project. 

• Provide all necessary resources to meet initial quality objectives. 

• Responsible for approving and storing all documents pertaining to quality control. 

• Main point of contact for all quality related inquiries. 

 

7.3 Quality Assurance Officer (QAO) 

The Quality Assurance Officer is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations on the construction site 

and ensuring that quality standards are met. QAO responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality Management 

Organizational Chart, 



9 | P a g e  
 

• Participate in pre-activity meetings and communicate the ITP’s that will be performed for the 

activity, 

• Collaborate with project superintendent/supervisor with regards to weekly scheduling to ensure 

quality control requirements are met. 

• Contribute quality related elements to all required project work plans. 

• Ensure ITP’s are performed and documented, 

• Responsible for assessing non-conforming work and material and preparing a Non-Conformance 

Report accompanied with mitigation procedures. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Coordinate and facilitate the quality assurances of all manufacturers, expediters and sub-trades. 

 
 

7.4 Engineering Manager (EM) 

The Engineering Manager is responsible for managing activities related to the overall design of the project. 

EM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage operations of civil, structural, mechanical and electrical departments, 

• Establish working relationship with the client on matters relating to design, 

• Responsible for assuring that all required engineering inspections are performed and approved 
by qualified personnel. 
 
 
7.5 Project Manager (PM) 

The Project Manager is responsible for the overall planning, coordination, control and execution of the 

project. PM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage all operations related to the execution of the project, 

• Prepare and maintain project schedule, 

• Collaborate with quality manager to develop mitigation procedures for non-conforming work 

and/or material, 

• Develop a list of activities that will require a pre-activity meeting, 

• Main point of contact for all project related inquiries. 

 

 

 

 



10 | P a g e  
 

7.6 Site Superintendent/Supervisor (SS) 

The Site Superintendent/Supervisor is responsible for overseeing all on-site operations and controlling the 

short-term schedule. SS responsibilities and authorities: 

 
Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Coordinate quality related inspections with daily operations performed by CGV Builders and sub-

trades.  

• Prepare Daily Quality Reports, 

• Schedule and lead pre-activity meetings. 

• Develop and distribute weekly schedules that outline project activities for the following two week 

period. 

• Control and maintain short term scheduling of the project. 

• Ensure that sub-trades/suppliers are provided with the most recent set of drawings and project 

specifications. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Ensure subcontractor field operations meet project quality objectives, 

• Verify the overall condition/characteristics of all material delivered on-site and confirm that storage 

areas are suitable. Document this information in a Material Receipt Report, 

• Responsible for subcontractor coordination. 

• Promptly communicate on-site issues and all non-conforming material and work to quality 

management personnel. 

• Responsible for timely submitting inspection requests. 

• Main point of contact for all on-site inquiries. 

 

 

7.7 Project Administrator (PA) 

The Project Administrator will control, maintain, and coordinate all contractual and project related 

documentation for the entire project. The PA will correspond with the Project Manager and the Quality 

Assurance Manager on a day-to-day basis to ensure project administration activities are in compliance with 

the Quality Management Plan. PA responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Maintain the document management system, 

• Responsible for processing project documents, 

• Expedite flow of project communication and deliverables, 



11 | P a g e  
 

• Main point of contact for all administration related inquiries. 

  

7.8 Manufacturing Manager (MM) 

The Manufacturing Manager is responsible for managing daily operations and performance of the 

manufacturing facility. MM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Oversee the manufacturing process of materials and ensure that they meet design, quality and 

safety requirements. 

 

7.9 Quality Control Inspectors (QCI) 

Third party Quality Control Inspector’s are responsible for performing required inspections during all phases 

of the project. QCI responsibilities and authorities: 

• Perform all required ITP’s and prepare related documentation, 

• Recognize non-conforming work and/or material and promptly inform CGV quality management 
personnel. 

 

7.10  Expediter 

The Expediter is responsible for the safe and timely transportation of materials to the construction site. The 

expediter’s responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that materials are delivered in-line with the project schedule. 

• Ensuring the safe transportation and surveillance of materials. 

• Verify that shipment contains appropriate materials and quantities. 

 

 

 

 



 

Corporate Services Page | 1 
 

Recreation 
RS-010-2021 

Addendum 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Laura-Lee MacLeod, Treasurer 

Date: May 4, 2021 

Subject: New Haileybury Fire Hall 

Attachments: Original Final Budget Summary  

Proposed Final Budget Summary 

 
Mayor and Council:  
 
As per Administrative Report RS-010-2021, the estimates for the construction of a new 
Fire Hall in Haileybury are $833,000 over the budget approved in principle in Resolution 
2020-606 on December 15, 2020. 
 
The Treasurer reviewed options to fund the overage while keeping within the approved 
borrowing limits as per the direction of the Corporate Services Committee on April 28, 
2021. 
 
2021 Gas Tax Fund Top Up - $604,895 

AMO announced top up funding thru the Gas Tax Fund (formerly Federal Gas Tax).  

The City of Temiskaming Shores will be receiving an additional $604,895 in 2021 to be 

used towards eligible projects.  There are eighteen (18) categories available thru this 

program. 

Unfortunately, the Fire Hall does not meet the requirements for gas tax funding, so it is 

being recommended to use the 2021 top up funding to offset some of the borrowing 

which was approved by Council for the roads program.  The debenture by-law was 

passed on April 20th and the funds are to be deposited on May 3rd.   $604,895 in 

borrowing will shift to the fire hall project, thereby keeping the amount of borrowing 

within the limits previously approved by Council. 

New Liskeard Marina Building Project - $108,000 

The City Manager, Recreation Director and Treasurer discussed projects which could 

be deferred or have funds reallocated from.  The recommendation is the defer the New 

Liskeard Marina Building project until 2022, shifting the own purpose revenue to the Fire 

Hall project in the amount of $108,000 



 

Corporate Services Page | 2 
 

  

Community Development Fund - $120,105 

At the end of 2020 there was approximately $361,372 in this reserve.  $300,000 has 

been allocated for use in the 2021 capital budget.  As we will have additional revenues 

in the Community Development Reserve from land/asset sales completed in 2021 we 

can utilize reserve funds of $120,105 to cover the additional funds required for the fire 

hall project. 

The Treasurer recommends the following resolution for Council consideration: 
 
Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores directs the Treasurer to 
amend the final 2021 capital budget for the fire hall project as follows: 
  

• Use $604,895 in Gas Tax Funding for the Roads Program 

• Reallocate $604,895 from the Roads Program to the Fire Hall project 

• Defer the New Liskeard Marina Building repairs and reallocate the own purpose 
revenue ($108,000) to the Fire Hall project 

• Utilize Community Development Reserve in the amount of $120,105 for the Fire 
Hall Project 

 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Laura-Lee MacLeod 
Treasurer 

 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Shelly Zubyck 
Director of Corporate 
Services 

 
Reviewed and submitted for 
Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” 

 
Christopher W. Oslund 
City Manager 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-073 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2019-018, as amended to 
appoint community representatives to various Committees and 

Boards for the 2019-2022 Term of Council 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 
considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, a 
municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 
purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality considers 
necessary or desirable for the public; and  

Whereas Council adopted By-law No. 2019-018 to appoint community representatives to 
various Committees and Boards for 2019-2022 term of Council; and 

Whereas Council acknowledges the resignation of Ms. Angela Hunter as community 
representative from the New Liskeard Business Improvement Area Board of Management 
Committee; and 

Whereas Council acknowledges the recommendation from the Temiskaming Shores 
Public Library Board to remove Ms. Jamie Lindsay as a community representative for 
non-attendance, in accordance with the Board’s By-law. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2019-018, as amended be further amended by 
removing Angela Hunter as a community representative to the New Liskeard 
Business Improvement Area (BIA) Board of Management Committee for the 2019-
2022 Term of Council; 

2. That Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2019-018, as amended be further amended by 
removing Jamie Lindsay as community representatives to the Public Library Board 
for the 2019-2022 Term of Council; 

3. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor changes or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the By-law 
and schedule, after the passage of this By-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the By-law. 

 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 

 
Mayor 

 
Clerk 

 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-Law 2021-074 

Being a By-law to adopt an Agreement between the City of Timmins and the City 

of Temiskaming Shores for Interim Building Services 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, the 

powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 

considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 

issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, a 

municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 

purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, 

a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality considers 

necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas the Municipal Act, 2001, Section 20(1) provides that a municipality may enter 
into an agreement with one or more municipalities or local bodies, as defined in Section 
19, or a combination of both to jointly provide, for their joint benefit, any matter which all 
of them have the power to provide within their own boundaries; and 

Whereas Council considered Memo No. 018-2021-CS at the May 4, 2021 Regular 
Council meeting, and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a n 
Interim Building Services Agreement with the City of Timmins for consideration at the May 
4, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores enacts 
as follows: 
 

1. That the Agreement between The City of Timmins and The City of Temiskaming 
Shores for the provision of providing Interim Building Services, as attached hereto 
as Schedule A, is hereby adopted. 
 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf 
of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores. 
 

3. That this By-law shall come into force and take effect on April 19, 2021. 
 

4. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule 
as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such 
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law.  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th, day of May, 2021. 

 

 
Mayor 

 
Clerk 

 



 

 

 
Schedule A to 

By-law No. 2021-074 

Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Timmins 

and 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

for Interim Building Services 



      

BUILDING RELATED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The City of Timmins agrees to provide the City of Temiskaming Shores the following Building 

Related Professional Services on an as needed basis effective April 20th, 2021. 

SERVICES 

Plans Examination Services: 

• Provide cursory review of development plans submitted under the Ontario Building Code 

(OBC); 

• Liaison with architects and engineers to ensure that OBC requirements are addressed in 

the design and engineering plans; 

• Note any amendment or refinements required to the plans based on OBC requirements; 

• Review amended plans to ensure compliance with the requirements of the OBC; and 

• Qualified staff will strive to have plans examination services completed within five (5) 

working days for more routine, and 10 working days for more complex developments, 

from the date of receipt of complete drawings by the Chief Building Official. 

Inspection Services: 

• Conduct mandatory on-site inspections of items covered under the OBC; 

• Liaise closely with contractors, engineers and architects during the construction phase to 

ensure that actual construction is taking place in compliance with the requirements of the 

OBC; 

• Note any construction that is inconsistent with the final approved plans and with the 

requirements of the OBC; 

• Conduct subsequent inspections as required to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of the OBC; and 

• Qualified staff will strive to conduct inspections within three (3) working days from the 

time the inspection was requested by the applicant.  Where possible, inspections form 

different developments should be coordinated n order to maximize efficiencies. 

Other Services: 

Additional services to those listed above may be considered and would be based on the costing 

structure provided below. 

  



Accessibility: 

The Building Department is accessible, Monday to Friday from 8:30 am to 4:30 pm and after 

hours by telephone message, cell phone or by email.  Esa Saarela would be the key contact 

person and can be contacted at: 

Esa Saarela 

Chief Building Official 

The Corporation of the City of Timmins 

Tel (705) 360-2600 Ext 2980 

Fax (705) 360-2699 

Email: esa.saarela@timmins.ca 

Qualifications & Experience: 

Building Department Staff will be providing the above noted services listed in this document.  

The Department is currently staffed with four (4) qualified building inspectors with extensive 

cumulative work experience and who are competent in conducting plans review and inspection 

services required under the Ontario Building Code.  The Department is also supported by an 

administrative assistant. Mr. Saarela will be responsible for allocating the necessary resources 

to meet work demands. 

Competitive Costs: 

Hourly rates, per diem and mileage and other expenses are very competitive.  See cost 

structure below. 

COST STRUCTURE 

Plans Examination Services: 

Hourly rate of $125.00 

Inspection Services: 

Hourly rate of $125.00 plus mileage @ 45 cents per kilometer 

Other Expenses & Disbursements: 

Any other expenses and disbursements resulting from services being provided to the client will 

be charged at cost plus a 15% administrative fee.  Such charges would deem to include, among 

other charges, telephone/cell charges, long distance charges, photocopying, printing, meals, 

mail/courier, etc. 

Above rates apply to the 2021 (January 1 to December 31) and any continuation of services 

beyond this period will result in a review and update of the cost structure. 

 

  



LIABILITY & INSURANCE 

1. The City of Temiskaming Shores agrees that it shall, at all times, indemnify and save 

harmless the City of Timmins, its officers, employees and agents from and against all 

claims, demands, losses, costs, damages, actions, suits or other proceedings made, 

sustained, brought or prosecuted that are based upon, or caused in any way by anything 

done or omitted to be done by the City of Timmins or any of its officers, directors, 

employees or agents in connection with services performed, purportedly performed or 

required to be performed by the City of Timmins under this agreement; and 

 

2. The City of Temiskaming Shores agrees to provide a Certificate of Liability (municipal 

errors and omissions liability) for minimum limits of $5 million to include the City of 

Timmins as an additional named insured. 

 

 

Dated this 20th day of April, 2021. 

 

 

              

Dave Landers      Mayor Carman Kidd 

City of Timmins      City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

             

        Logan Belanger – Clerk 

        City of Temiskaming Shores  

       



 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-075 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2021-005 to Authorize the Execution of 
the Contribution Agreement for the Virtual Northern Ontario Mining 

Showcase at the 2021 Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada 
International Convention between Her Majesty the Queen in Right of 
Canada Represented by the Minister of Economic Development and 

Official Languages and the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores  
Project No. 852-512885 – Amendment No. 1 

 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to respond to municipal issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas Council entered into a Funding Agreement with Industry Canada 
(FedNor) for the Northern Ontario Pavilion at the 2021 PDAC Event in Toronto– 
Project No. 852-512885, through By-law No. 2021-005 on January 5, 2021; and 

Whereas Council considered Memo No. 020-2021-CS at the May 4, 2021 Regular 
Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law No. 2021-005 being an agreement with FedNor the 2021 PDAC Event in 
Toronto, for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Schedule A to By-law No. 2021-005, be hereby amended by Amending 
Agreement No. 1, a copy of which is hereto attached as Schedule A and forms 
part of this by-law. 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk have the delegation of authority to execute any and 
all required documentation and amendments, on behalf of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores, as required under the Contribution Agreement, as long 
as the amendments do not create any financial liability for the City that is 
beyond a budget approved by Council. 

3. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and 



 

schedule as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 2021. 

 

 
Mayor 

 
Clerk  

 

 



 

 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2021-075 

 
Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2021-005 to Authorize the Execution of 

the Contribution Agreement for the Virtual Northern Ontario Mining 
Showcase at the 2021 Prospectors and Developers Association of Canada 

International Convention between Her Majesty the Queen in Right of 
Canada Represented by the Minister of Economic Development and 

Official Languages and the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores  
Project No. 852-512885 – Amendment No. 1 

 



II Innovation, Science and Innovation, Sciences et
Economic Development Canada Développement économique Canada

FedNor FedNor

19 Lisgar Street 19 rue Lisgar
Suite 307 Bureau 307
Sudbury, Ontario Sudbury (Ontario)
P3E3L4 P3E3L4

April 19, 2021

Project Number: 852-51285

Mr. Carman Kidd
Mayor
City of Teiniskaming Shores
325 Farr Drive, P0 Box 2050
Haileybury ON POJIK0

Dear Mr. Kidd:

Re: PDAC 2021
Amendment Number: 1

As a result of your request dated April 8, 2021, FedNor is prepared to amend our

Contribution agreement of December 22, 2020 as follows:

Delete: Clause 2.1 The Recipient shall ensure that the Project described in Aimex I (the
“Project”) commences on or before December 1, 2020 (the “Commencement Date”) and
is completed on or before April 30, 2021 (the “Completion Date”).

Substitute: Clause 2.1 The Recipient shall ensure that the Project described in Annex 1
(the “Project”) commences on or before December 1, 2020 (the “Commencement
Date”) and is completed on or before June 30, 2021 (the “Completion Date”).

I”Canada



-2-

Delete: Annex 1 THE PROJECT - STATEMENT OF WORK

iii) Dates: b) Completion Date - April 30, 2021

Project Costs and F112nrin

$500,000 $42,500 $542,500

Project Costs: Financing:
Eligible Costs FedNor $500,000

- Supported $500,000 Other Federal
- Not Supported $42,500 Provincial

Ineligible Costs Municipal
Financial Institution
Recipient

___________

Other $42.500
Total $542,500 $542,500

Eligible Costs:

Event Facility Rental (virtual space)

SME Support (upgrades to on-line
presence, equipment and technical
support)

Suppoed Not Supported Total

$250,000

$110,000

Consulting Fees

$250,000

$110,000

$55,000

Marketing & Promotion

Professional Development & Training —

In-kind Event Costs (Other — design of
custom virtual pavilion)
Event Facility Rental (participating
exhibitors)

$35,000

$50,000

$55,000

$35,000

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS

$50M00

Ineligible Costs:

$42,500 $42,500

TOTAL INELIGIBLE COSTS
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $542,500



Substitute: Annex I THE PROJECT - STATEMENT OF WORK

iii) Dates: b) Completion Date - June 30, 2021

Project Costs and Financing:
Project Costs: Financing:

Eligible Costs FedNor $500.000
- Supported $500,000 Other Federal
- Not Supported $33,500 Provincial

Ineligible Costs Municipal
Financial Institution
Recipient
Other $33,500

Total $533,500 $533,500

Supported Not Suppotied Total
Eligible Costs:

Event Facility Rental (virtual space) $179,500 $179,500
SME Support (upgrades to on-line $160,000 $160,000
presence, equipment and technical
support)
Consulting Fccs $50,000 $50,000
Marketing & Promotion $110,500 $110,500
Event Facility Rental (participating $33,500 $33,500
exhibitors)

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS $500,000 $33,500 $533,500

Ineligible Costs:

TOTAL INELIGIBLE COSTS
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS

— $533,500



-4-

All other terms and conditions of our Contribution agreement remain unchanged.

This amendment is open for acceptance for a period of 30 days following the date on the first
page, after which it will be null and void. This amendment shall be effective the date the
duplicate copy of this amendment, unconditionally accepted and duly executed by the Recipient,
is received by FedNor.

If further information is required, please contact Denise Deschamps toll-free at 1-877-333-6673
ext. 3276 or 705-471-3276 in our North Bay office.

Yours sincerely,

P t Digitally signed by Perreault, Luciee rrea U , U cie Date: 2021.04.1913:30:42 -0400’

Lucie Perreault
Director of Program Delivery
FedNor

City of Temiskaming Shores
Project Number: 852-512885 Amendment Number: 1

The foregoing is hereby accepted this C’ day of____________

Per:

_______

Signature of Recipient

k4yd i(

Title

Per:

_____________________

ignature of Recipi

Title



The Corporation of The City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

By-Law No. 2021-076 
 

Being a By-Law to Adopt an Outdoor Patio Policy 
for the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 
considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; and 
 
Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, a 
municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 
purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; and 
 
Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
a municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality considers necessary 
or desirable for the public; and 
 
Whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. CS-019-2021 at the May 4, 2021 
Regular Council meeting, and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to adopt an 
Outdoor Patio Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores, for consideration at the May 4, 
2021, Regular Council meeting. 
 
Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 
 

1. That Council adopts an Outdoor Patio Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores, 
identified as Schedule “A”, attached hereto and forming part of this by-law. 
 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
By-law and schedule, after the passage of this By-law, where such modifications 
or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated schedule. 

 
Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 

 
Mayor  

 
Clerk  

 



 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

 

By-law No. 2021-076  

 
Being a By-Law to Adopt an Outdoor Patio Policy 

for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

 

 

 

  

  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

1 

 

1. Purpose 
 

1.1 The City of Temiskaming Shores considers the establishment of outdoor patios on 
public lands within the downtown areas to be advantageous between May 1st and 
September 30th. Where such patios need a lease agreement to occupy public 
space such as on City rights-of-way, regulation of the occupation is necessary to 
protect the public interest. 

2. Definitions  
 

1.2 Lease Agreement means the agreement prepared by the City of Temiskaming Shores 
setting out the terms by which occupation of the City owned right-of-way or other public 
lands over which the City has jurisdiction, can occur. 

1.3 City means the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shore. 

1.4 Outdoor Patio means an area within the City of Temiskaming Shores, which is 
contiguous to an indoor restaurant or business which is not enclosed by a roof or walls 
other than the exterior walls of the restaurant or an adjoining building or structure, 
where food is served, seating accommodation is provided and where beverages and 
alcoholic beverages may be served to the public on an annual basis for consumption 
on the premises and which is located wholly or partially on the City’s property as 
owner, or having jurisdiction over, public sidewalks or other public lands pursuant to 
a lease agreement as the City shall deem appropriate. 

3. Exclusions 
 

3.1 This policy is not intended to address planning issues such as zoning provision, 
parking and setback requirements. This policy applies to the lease of occupation, 
enforcement, safety and noise regulations as currently set out in the applicable by-
laws are addressed. 

3.2 This policy does not apply to the issuance of the temporary (short term) special 
occasions permits. 

4. Implementation of Policy 
 

4.1 The Lease Agreement requires the applicant to obtain the following inspections, 
approvals and documents through the application process: 

• Zoning Approval 

• Health Unit Certificate of Inspection 

• Copy of Liquor Licence for patio area 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

2 

 

• Site Plan of patio and sidewalk, including all features (streetlights, garbage 
receptables, street trees, etc.) dimensions, and measurements from all 
proposed installations to the features listed above. 

• Certificate of Insurance naming the City as an additional insured 
 

4.2 The Lease Agreement is intended to provide a lease for a specified period during 
the spring, summer and fall months only (May 1st to September 30th). These dates 
are subject to change based on the City’s Public Works operations and 
maintenance of roadways and sidewalks. 

4.3 The Director of Corporate Services shall be responsible for the administration and 
execution of the Lease Agreement considered by this policy. 

4.4 The restaurant or business owner shall submit an application for a Lease 
Agreement to the Director of Corporate Services, not less than thirty (30) business 
days prior to the date the Lease Agreement is to be drafted for signature and 
acceptance. The application is attached as Appendix 1. 

4.5 The safety and day to day guidelines for uses on the patio shall be addressed in 
the Lease Agreement. 

4.6 The construction and design of the patio is to be addressed within the Lease 
Agreement.  

4.7 The sidewalk deck design and construction must be in accordance with the 
engineered design as approved by City. 

5. Fees 
 

5.1 The application fee for an outdoor patio will be $400. This fee covers the 
administrative and inspection costs associated with the application approval 
process. 

5.2 The lease agreement fee recommended and charged will be based on a 
conservative approach which attempts to charge based on the amount of City 
property utilized to a flat fee. The lease agreement fee structure will be reviewed 
and amended as determined by market conditions on the approval of Council. The 
lease agreement fee may also be prorated to the date of approval of the licence. 
The lease agreement fee for the use of City property will be included in the Lease 
Agreement. 

 

 

  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

3 

 

6. APPENDIX 1 –APPLICATION FORM 
 

Outdoor Patios on Municipal Property  
in the City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

 

 
 

 

 Applicant Information 

Application Date:  

Applicant Name:  

Applicant Phone Number:  

Email:   

Registered Name of Business:  

Operating Name of Business  

Street Address:  

City:  

Postal Code:  

After Hour Contact Name:  

Phone Number:  

Date of Installation:   

Subject to Approval from City of Temiskaming Shores upon completion of annual 
spring maintenance (street sweeping, catch basin cleanout, etc.) 

Date of Removal:  

(Deadline) September 30th  
 

Activity Information 

Occupancy Type:  

Width of sidewalk occupied:  Length of Sidewalk Occupied:  

Number of parking spaces required for installation of sidewalk deck:  

Does the Patio and Temporary Sidewalk maintain a 1.5m pedestrian sidewalk?   

 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

4 

 

CONDITIONS  
 

I/We hereby make application to The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(The “Corporation”) to occupy the right of way for the purpose described and agreed to 
abide by the terms of By-Law 2021-075 and the conditions established on the 
application.  
 

I/We agree to assume all liability and/or cost incurred by the Corporation as a result of 
road occupancy to maintain the work area and to indemnify and save harmless the 
Corporation until final completion and approval. 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  
 

1. The completed application must be received, for processing, no later than 30 
(thirty) working days prior to the beginning of the activity.  
 

2. An application fee of $400 must be paid at the time the application is submitted. 
 

3. By-Law 2021-075, available on City of Temiskaming Shores website, was 
reviewed by the applicant.  
 

4. The Applicant shall be responsible for attaining any and all other permissions and 
permits necessary to perform the permitted work, including those from all 
applicable federal, provincial, and local government or agencies. 
 

5. No person shall operate or maintain an outdoor patio extension to a restaurant or 
business on municipal property without first having a lease agreement to do so.  
 

6. No person shall operate an outdoor patio on any municipal property other than 
that for which permission has been granted.  
 

7. Where such premise is licensed to permit the consumption of alcoholic 
beverages, no person shall serve or allow the consumption of alcoholic 
beverages contrary to any law.  
 

8. The applicant hereby certifies that the at-grade Patio or Sidewalk by-pass 
walkway is to be constructed in accordance with the standard drawings, 
approved by the City of Temiskaming Shores provided in the sidewalk patio 
package, engineering drawings STS 2020-020 as prepared by STS Ltd. 

 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE INFORMATION 
PROVIDED AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY ALL CONDITIONS LISTED ON THIS 
APPLICATION.  
 
 

Authorized Representative 
 
 

 Date 
 

Director of Corporate Services  Date 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

5 

 

7. APPENDIX 1 –OUTDOOR PATIO CHECKLIST 
 
 

 
OUTDOOR PATIO CHECKLIST 

The following documents are required for the review and approval of an Outdoor Patio 
in the City of Temiskaming Shores downtown areas (Haileybury and New Liskeard 
extending along Whitewood Avenue to Regina Street). If all items listed below are not 
submitted, the processing of the application may be delayed or considered incomplete.  

   Completed Application Form 

   Application Fee of $400 

   Health Unit Certificate  

   Liquor License for Patio Area, if applicable.  

   Copy of Current Liability Insurance • General Liability Insurance from an insurer 
licensed in the province of Ontario for $2,000,000 per occurrence with an 
aggregate limit of no less than $5,000,000 to the Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores against any liability for property damage or personal injury, 
negligence including death which may arise from the applicant’s operations 
under this agreement. • The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores must 
be included as an “Additional Named Insured”.  

   Patio Site Plan  

The applicant is required to provide a site plan properly labelled with the following 
minimum information:  

• The location and dimension of the building establishment, including the 
entrances and exits and washrooms; 

• The location and use of the adjacent buildings, including the entrances 
and exits; 

• The location and dimension of the patio, including the entrances & exits;  

• The area of the patio (in square feet);  

• Location and dimension of any enclosures, umbrellas/tents, awnings, etc; 

• The location, height and construction material to be used for the boundary 
fence, gate location and width of gate(s);  

• Location of fire extinguishers;  

• Location of table, chairs, etc;  

• Expected occupant load;  

• Location of all municipal services and/or assets within the patio or close 
proximity (e.g. location of curbs, municipal parking spaces to be utilized, 
sidewalk, hydrants, storm sewer grates, manholes, trees and diameter of 
trees etc.), all below grade and above grade utilities including below grade 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

6 

 

chambers/vaults and hydro poles fire hydrants, along with distances 
between the Patio and services/fixtures. This can be completed with 
assistance from the Public Works department. Also identify whether any 
public street fixtures/furniture is required to be removed or relocated to 
accommodate the design. Additional fees may apply for removal or 
relocation.;  

• The construction and design shall consider the following matters to be 
addressed on the site plan:  
- Location of services such as hydro, water and gas; 
- Railing installation, height, construction; 
- Effect on public sidewalk; 
- Accessibility;  
- Installation of any other fixtures to premises or lands;  
- Maintenance of City improvements, such as trees and shrubs; 
- Liquor License requirements; and 
- Road Right-of-Way requirements.  

 

Minimum Information Requirements for Outdoor Patios  

This information is included for applicant’s consideration in order that information 
requirements and responsibility are fully understood. 

a) Design of the outdoor patio. Proposed patios at-grade or ones that are not 
structurally supported are not subject to the Building Code. However, proposed 
outdoor patios that are elevated and require structural support are subject to the 
Building and Zoning Department review and applicable fees.  

b) Installation of patios on corner lots where sight lines may be impacted. All 
proposed corner lot patios that occupy the municipal sidewalk must be review 
sight lines and ensure that the patio, its furniture, fencing, etc. will not negatively 
impact vehicle travel and sight lines within the intersection. A traffic impact study 
may be required. This is to be provided by the applicant at their expense. Due to 
circumstances, certain proposed patios may not be permitted due to the 
proximity of the patio to the intersection and the maintenance of existing and safe 
sight lines.  

c) Obstruction of underground utilities, drainage flows or fire department 
connections. Applications must be accompanied by a site plan that describes and 
depicts all underground and above grade utilities, drainage flows and municipal 
fixtures such as fire hydrants, parking meters, trees and grates, catch basins, 
manholes etc. Due to the site-specific circumstances, certain proposed patios 
may not be permitted due to required access to the utilities or their proximity. 
Applicants will be required to demonstrate that no municipal fixture or utility is 
being impacted and how the drainage flow is maintained. In the event that a 
fixture or utility appears to be impacted, written approval is required from the 
agency or department responsible for the fixture.  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Outdoor Patio Policy  By-law 2021-076 

 

7 

 

d) Maintenance of a 1.5m sidewalk width (municipal or by temporary construction) 
for pedestrian movement is mandatory. Only sidewalk decks as per design STS 
2020-020 by STS Ltd. will be permitted to be installed. 

e) Garbage/Recycling Pick Up. If outdoor patios are supported with an on-street 
temporary sidewalk, garbage and recycling bins are to be placed to the side of 
the patio on the sidewalk and not in front of the patio on the street in accordance 
with Public Works requirements. 

f) Design of the Temporary Sidewalk. All temporary sidewalks extending onto the 
on-street parking area must be in accordance with Drawing STS 2020-020 by 
STS Ltd. 

g) There are accessible parking spaces and bus stops in the downtown core. 
Outdoor patios that propose to temporarily remove these parking spaces and/or 
bus stops will not be permitted. 

 

Outdoor Patio Fee Schedule 

Application Fee: This fee covers the administrative and inspection costs associated with 
the approval of the application. 

Lease Agreement Fee: This fee is a per square foot per month for the lease of City 
property for the purpose of an outdoor patio in accordance with the Policy for Outdoor 
Patios. All fees are payable to The City of Temiskaming Shores. 

 

 



 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-077 

Being a by-law to remove Part Lot Control from Part of Block C, Plan 
M79NB, Temiskaming Shores (Roll No. 54-18-010-008-007.03) 

 

Whereas under Section 50(7) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended 
the Council of a municipality may by by-law provide that part-lot control does not apply 
to lands within a registered plan of subdivision or parts of them as are designated in the 
by-law; and 

Whereas 2373775 Ontario Inc. has submitted an application to the Corporation of the 
City of Temiskaming Shores to removed part lot control for a temporary period of time 
so as to permit the transfer of properties; and 

Whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. CS-020-2021 at the May 4, 
2021 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
remove part lot control for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council meeting. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. Section 50(5) of the Planning Act does not apply to Part of PIN 61339-0754, Part 
of Block C Plan M79NB, Part 5 Plan 54R-6121; Temiskaming Shores; District of 
Timiskaming. 

2. The description of the resulting lot is: 108 Rivard Court – Pt Block C PL M79NB, 
Pt 5 PL 54R6121. 

3. Pursuant to Section 50(7.3) of the Planning Act, this By-law shall expire on 
December 31, 2021 unless it shall have prior to that date been repealed or 
extended by the Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

4. This By-law shall not become effective until a certified copy of duplicate of the 
By-law has been registered in the proper Land Registry Office. 

5. That this by-law shall come into force and take effect upon the enactment 
thereof. 

6. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the By-law and 
schedule as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this By-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the By-law. 

      
  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 

 

 
Mayor 

 
Clerk 

 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-078 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Neptune 
Technology Group Canada Co. for the Supply and Installation 

of water meters for the Industrial, Commercial, and institutional 
(ICI) sector in the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-012-2021 at the May 
4, 2021 Regular Council meeting, and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-
law to enter into an agreement with Neptune Technology Group for the supply 
and installation of water meters for the ICI sector in the amount of $ 93,899.00, 
plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Council 
meeting. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute an agreement with 
Neptune Technology Group Canada Co. for the supply and installation of 
water meters for the ICI sector in the amount of $93,899.00, plus 
applicable taxes a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and 
forms part of this by-law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 
2021. 

 
 

Mayor 

 
Clerk 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2021-078 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

And 
 

Neptune Technology Group Canada Co. 
 

for the supply and installation of water meters for the ICI sector 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
ICI Water Meters - Neptune By-law No. 2021-078 

 

 

This agreement made this 4th, day of May, 2021. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Neptune Technology Group Canada Co. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described within this Agreement. 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Form of 
Agreement attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement. 

c) Complete, as certified by the Manager of Environmental Services, all the work by 
August 15, 2021. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for services aforesaid, in the 
amount of Ninety-Three Thousand, Eight-Hundred and Ninety-Nine Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($93,899.00) plus applicable taxes, subject to additions and 
deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, as authorized by an approved 
Contract Change Order. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties shall be deemed to have been 
received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or to a member of the firm or to 
an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if sent by hand, Canada Post, 
courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication where, during or after the 
transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a failure or suspension of 
transmission has been communicated to the sender. For deliveries by courier or by 
hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery; by 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
ICI Water Meters - Neptune By-law No. 2021-078 

 

 

Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A communication sent by 
facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of failure or suspension of 
delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next 
day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in which case it shall be 
deemed to have been received on the next working day of the recipient at the opening of 
business. 

The Contractor:  

Neptune Technology Group Canada Co.  
7275 West Credit Avenue 
Mississauga, Ontario 
L5N 5M9 
 
Attn.:  Scott Norris  

 
The Owner: 
 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive / P.O. Box 2050 
Haileybury, Ontario  P0J 1K0 
 
Attn.:  Steve Burnett, Manager of Environmental Services 
 

 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
ICI Water Meters - Neptune By-law No. 2021-078 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 

Signed and Sealed in 
the presence of 

) 
) 

Neptune Technology Group Canada Co. 

 ) 
) 
) 

 
 ) 

) 

Scott Norris, Territory Manager – Central and 
Northeastern Ontario 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 

Municipal Seal ) 
) 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Clerk – Logan Belanger 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2021-078 

Form of Agreement 
 













































































































Putting Your Data in View 

Having the data is one thing, seeing the data 
and making sense of it is another. Neptune 360 
delivers an intuitive, user-friendly design,  
making the data clear and easy to interpret. 
Examining your entire AMI network using 
system-wide Key Performance Indicators and 
geographical views assists with identifying 
areas of concern and finding ways to maximize 
operational efficiencies. 

Quickly access a dashboard view of your  
largest water consumers, providing you with 
information needed to take action. Analysis  
of individual trends and usage patterns helps 
resolve customer service calls with confidence. 
Detailed reporting of consumption activity, 
potential leaks, and reverse flow will keep  
you ahead of issues that could impact your 
utility’s revenue.  

  

  

  

  
    

  
 

Lift Your IT Burden with a 
Cloud-Based Solution

Boost utility efficiency with  
Neptune 360. No longer install 
servers or perform upgrades. All that 
is needed is an Internet browser. 
Just log on to access anywhere 
at any time.

A True Sense of Security

Ease your security concerns and 
stay focused on the business of 
water. Continuously-monitored 
Neptune 360 operates from a world-
class data center, providing the 
highest level of security, redundancy, 
and disaster recovery services. 













Neptune® 360™
File Mapper Layout

Version 1.4





Contents

Chapter 1: General Information 1

Glossary 1

References 1

Character Types 2

Chapter 2: Import File 3

File Types / Extensions 3

Header Row 3

Import Record 4

Record and Field Formatting 4

Data Formatting Examples 4

Field Use Requirements 5

REQUIRED Fields 5

Account Holder City 5

Account Holder Delivery Address 6

Account Holder Name 6

Account Holder State 6

Account Holder Zip 7

Account Number 7

Account Status 7

Company 8

Customer Name 8

Cycle 9

Decimals 9

Meter Manufacturer 9

Meter Number 10

Meter Size 10

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 iii



Number of Dials 10

Office 11

Premises City 11

Premises Delivery Address 11

Premises Key 12

Premises State 12

Premises Zip 12

Read Sequence 13

Register ID 13

Register Manufacturer 13

Register Multiplier 14

Register UOM 14

Route 14

OPTIONAL Fields 15

Account Holder Email 15

Account Holder Phone 15

High Limit 15

IsSensor 16

Low Limit 16

Meter Latitude 16

Meter Longitude 17

Meter Type 17

MIU ID 17

Premises Email 18

Premises Phone 18

Previous Read 18

Read Type 18

iv Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Contents



Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 v

Special Instruction 1 19

Special Instruction 2 19

Utility Custom 1 19

Utility Custom 2 19

Utility Custom 3 19

Utility Custom 4 20

Utility Custom 5 20

Utility Custom 6 20

Utility Custom 7 20

Utility Custom 8 20

Utility Custom 9 20

Utility Custom 10 20

Chapter 3: Export File 21

Export Header Row 21

Export Record 22

ROUTE MANAGEMENT 23

Company 23

Office 23

Cycle 23

Route 23

ACCOUNT and PREMISES INFORMATION 24

Account Number 24

Premises Key 24

METER READING INFORMATION 24

METER READING_A 25

Meter Number_A 25

MIU ID_A 25

Register ID_A 25

Contents



Reading_A 25

Raw Reading_A 26

Read DateTime_A 26

35 Day No Flow flag_A 26

Reverse Flow flag_A 27

35 Day Leak flag_A 27

Current Leak flag_A 28

Reader ID_A 28

Order Status_A 29

Skip Code_A 29

Comment Code 1_A 29

Comment Code 2_A 29

Note_A 30

Re-entry Count_A 30

METER READING_B 30

Meter Number_B 30

MIU ID_B 30

Register ID_B 30

Reading_B 30

Raw Reading_B 31

Read DateTime_B 31

35 Day No Flow flag_B 31

Reverse Flow flag_B 31

35 Day Leak flag_B 31

Current Leak flag_B 31

Reader ID_B 31

Order Status_B 31

vi Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Contents



Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 vii

Skip Code_B 31

Comment Code 1_B 31

Comment Code 2_B 31

Note_B 31

Re-entry Count_B 31

METER READING_C 32

Meter Number_C 32

MIU ID_C 32

Register ID_C 32

Reading_C 32

Raw Reading_C 32

Read DateTime_C 32

35 Day No Flow flag_C 32

Reverse Flow flag_C 32

35 Day Leak flag_C 32

Current Leak flag_C 32

Reader ID_C 32

Order Status_C 33

Skip Code_C 33

Comment Code 1_C 33

Comment Code 2_C 33

Note_C 33

Re-entry Count_C 33

METER READING_D 33

Meter Number_D 33

MIU ID_D 33

Register ID_D 33

Contents



Reading_D 33

Raw Reading_D 33

Read DateTime_D 34

35 Day No Flow flag_D 34

Reverse Flow flag_D 34

35 Day Leak flag_D 34

Current Leak flag_D 34

Reader ID_D 34

Order Status_D 34

Skip Code_D 34

Comment Code 1_D 34

Comment Code 2_D 34

Note_D 34

Re-entry Count_D 34

METER READING_E 35

Meter Number_E 35

MIU ID_E 35

Register ID_E 35

Reading_E 35

Raw Reading_E 35

Read DateTime_E 35

35 Day No Flow flag_E 35

Reverse Flow flag_E 35

35 Day Leak flag_E 35

Current Leak flag_E 35

Reader ID_E 35

Order Status_E 36

viii Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Contents



Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 ix

Skip Code_E 36

Comment Code 1_E 36

Comment Code 2_E 36

Note_E 36

Re-entry Count_E 36

UTILITY PASS THROUGH 36

Utility Custom 1 36

Utility Custom 2 36

Utility Custom 3 36

Utility Custom 4 37

Utility Custom 5 37

Utility Custom 6 37

Utility Custom 7 37

Utility Custom 8 37

Utility Custom 9 37

Utility Custom 10 37

Export Record Terminator 37

Contents



x Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

This page intentionally left bank.

Contents



Tables

Table 1: Glossary Terms 1

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 xi



xii Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

This page intentionally left

Tables





Character Types

For both the import and export file, field definitions include a character type specifying
the expected data within that field. Character types are shown in a different font
throughout this document (DIGIT for example,) and when used they are to be
interpreted as described below and as adapted from RFC 5234. Character types do not
directly reflect nor prescribe the database types used to store field values.

l ALPHA – ASCII letters A-Z or a-z (%x41-5A or %x61-7A).

l CRLF – Standard carriage return linefeed characters (%x0D and %x0A).

l DIGIT – Numbers 0 - 9 (%30x-39).

l DQUOTE – Double quote " (%x22).

l SP – Space character (%x20).

l ALPHANUM – Visible characters (%x21-7E) and spaces (%x20) are allowed.

l VTEXT – Visible characters (%x21-7E), accented ASCII letters (%80-A5), and spaces (SP)
are allowed.

l DECIMAL – Only numbers (DIGIT) and the punctuation characters en dash (-) or
period (.) are allowed (%2D-2E).

l BOOL – Only the uppercase letters Y or N are allowed (%x59 or %x4E).

l EMAIL – Visible characters (%x21-7E) and punctuation (PUNCT) are allowed.

l PUNCT – Only these characters are allowed: at sign (@), period (.), exclamation (!),
number sign (#), dollar sign ($), percent (%), ampersand (&), single quote ('), asterisk
(*), plus sign (+), en dash (-), forward slash (/), equal sign (=), question mark (?), caret
(^), underline (_), accent mark (`), braces ({ }), and tilde (~).

l SIZE – Only numbers (DECIMAL) , the letter x, spaces (SP), and the special characters
forward slash (/), en dash (-), or DQUOTE are allowed.

l ERRREAD – Only numbers (DIGIT), special characters colon (:) or question mark (?), or
uppercase letters M or U are allowed.

l DELIM – Vertical bar or pipe character (|) (%x7C).

2 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 1: General Information





Import Record

The Import Record is used to transfer account-related data from the CIS into
Neptune 360. An import file can have any quantity of Import Records; however, there is
at least one Import Record per file. Each data field within an Import Record is separated
by a delimiter character and each Import Record in the file ends with CRLF. Each Import
Record contains the same number of fields as indicated in the header row.

Record and Field Formatting

This list provides information on formatting a field.

l Each row / line for a specific record type contains the same quantity of fields.

l Every field in a record except the final field ends with a delimiter character, even if the
field is not populated with data. The final field in a record cannot end with a delimiter
character.

l When a field is populated, data cannot include preceding or trailing space characters
—white space may be trimmed by the system.

l Field data containing letters are not case-sensitive; “ABCD”, “abcd”, “aBcD” are
considered the same values.

l Field data containing commas, spaces, double quotes, or other escapable characters
can be enclosed within two DQUOTE characters (example: "Smith, John".) A double
quote inside the field can be preceded (i.e., escaped) with another DQUOTE
(examples: 5/8"" or "5/8""".)

l Every record is terminated with a CRLF . The CRLF for the final record in the file also
serves as the end of file indicator. Note that CRLF characters are non-visible and non-
printing and are represented as letters or symbols throughout this document for
illustrative purposes only.

Data Formatting Examples

The following example has three records and each record has four fields. Each field is
separated from the next by a delimiter character—in these examples, the vertical bar or
pipe | character—and there is no delimiter character between the last field and record-
terminating CRLF.

record1field1|field2|field3|field4CRLF

record2field1|field2|field3|field4CRLF

record3field1|field2|field3|field4CRLF

4 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



In this example, field2 data contains a comma, a space, and is enclosed within two
DQUOTE characters.

record4field1|"field, 2"|field3|field4CRLF

In this example, the second and third fields are optional and have not been specified.
They must have their own delimiter character to demarcate the fields and to ensure the
field count is correct for that record.

record5field1|||field4CRLF

In this example, the record contains spaces at the end of field1 and at the beginning
of field3. Neither condition is prohibited, but both are discouraged. These
extraneous spaces can cause validation and data integrity issues within Neptune 360.

record6field1 |field2| field3|field4CRLF

Field Use Requirements

Each field in the import file is either required or optional.

l A REQUIRED field is populated with data that complies with their corresponding field
specifications.

l An OPTIONAL field can either be populated with data or left empty. However, when
an optional field is populated with data, the data must comply with the
corresponding field specifications.

REQUIRED Fields

The fields in this section are required by Neptune 360 and have an equivalent field and
data in the import file. For each import record field, the field name is given along with a
brief description of the field. Requirements for the field’s use— including any
recognized values—are specified along with the character type, minimum and
maximum allowed character counts. Example data is provided for reference; each
example includes a reference delimeter character. These fields are listed in alphabetical
order.

Account Holder City

Account Holder City indicates the city associated with the account holder address.
Account Holder City contains at least 1 and up to 26 VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l Duluth|

l La Côte-de-Gaspé|

l Española|

Account Holder City can be the same as Premises City.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 5

Chapter 2: Import File



Account Holder Delivery Address

Account Holder Delivery Address Indicates the address number and street name
associated with the account holder. Account Holder Delivery Address contains at least 1
to 64 VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l 3100 Breckinridge Blvd Bldg 2100|

l 832 Avenue Sévigny|

l "1234-A NW Main St S Apt 1201"|

Account Holder Delivery Address cannot contain the city, state / province, or zip / postal
code. Account Holder Delivery Address conforms with the USPS or Canada Post
guidelines for Delivery Address Line or Civic Address line, respectively, which can
include other address information such as pre-direction, unit, or post direction.
Account Holder Delivery Address can be the same as Premises Delivery Address.

Account Holder Name

Account Holder Name indicates the full name or names of the account holder(s).
Account Holder Name contains at least 1 and up to 26 VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l Johnny Appleseed|

l Hélène François|

l "Appleseed, Johnny & Jane"|

l Smith, Donna / Jones, Dave|

Account Holder Name can contain embedded commas, forward slashes, and
ampersand characters, especially if representing multiple persons.

Account Holder State

Account Holder State indicates the state or province associated with the account holder
delivery address. Account Holder State contains two ALPHA characters.

Examples:

l GA|

l ON|

Account Holder State is expressed as a standardized two-letter abbreviation and is
capitalized. Account Holder State can be the same as Premises State.

6 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



Account Holder Zip

Account Holder Zip indicates the zip or postal code associated with the account holder
delivery address. Account Holder Zip contains at least 5 and up to 10 characters and is
formatted as indicated below.

Examples:

l 30096|

l 30096 - 4985|

l L5N 5M9|

U.S. zip codes contain at least five DIGIT characters and can be followed by a dash and
an additional four DIGIT characters. U.S. zip codes cannot include spaces. Canadian
postal codes have seven total characters and can be in ALPHA DIGIT ALPHA SP DIGIT
ALPHA DIGIT format. The ALPHA characters are capitalized. Account Holder Zip can be
the same as Premises Zip.

Account Number

Account Number identifies the account number associated with the premises. Account
Number contains at least 1 and up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l DLTH0987654321|

l abcde12345fghjk67890|

l 123-0000293847

Each Account Number is unique within the CIS.

Account Status

Account Status indicates the current billing status of the customer account. Account
Status contains at least one to four ALPHA characters. Neptune 360 recognizes four
Account Status types:

l Active – customer account is active in the CIS.

l Active Warn on Zero Use – customer account is active in the CIS; indicate if there is
no service usage.

l Inactive – customer account is inactive in the CIS.

l Inactive Warn on Use – customer account is inactive in the CIS; indicate if there is
service usage.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 7

Chapter 2: Import File



Examples:

l ACTI|

l Inac|

l A|

Minimally, an Account Status value is mapped to Active. Any non-mapped value
indicated in Account Status is treated by Neptune 360 as Inactive.

Company

Company identifies the entity administering the locations, offices, and personnel
responsible for meter reading and billing. Company contains at least one and up to
four ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l NEPT|

l nep|

l 00A1|

Company is most often the name or an abbreviated name of the utility. In Neptune 360,
a Route ID is the combination of the Company, Office, Cycle, and Route fields, joined by
dash characters.

Customer Name

Customer Name indicates the full name or names of the customers at the address
where the meter / service is located. Customer Name contains at least 1 and up to 26
VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l Johnny Appleseed|

l Hélène François|

l "Appleseed, Johnny & Jane"|

l Smith, Donna / Jones, Dave|

Customer Name can be the same as Account Holder Name, and can contain
embedded commas, spaces, forward slashes, and ampersand characters, especially if
representing multiple persons.

8 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



Cycle

Cycle Identifies a grouping of routes. Cycle contains at least one and up to four
ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l Mwk1|

l 0 02|

l A|

Cycle is often a designator for the period in which the accounts within a route are to be
billed. In Neptune 360, a Route ID is the combination of the Company, Office, Cycle, and
Route fields, joined by dash characters.

Decimals

Decimals indicate the number of digits placed to the right of the decimal point on a
meter reading. Decimals are specified as a one DIGIT character with values between
zero and eight, inclusive. Decimals can contain two DIGIT characters with values
between 00 and 08, inclusive.

Examples:

l 0|

l 01|

Meter Manufacturer

Meter Manufacturer names the manufacturer of the meter installed at the premise.
Meter Manufacturer contains at least 1 and up to 25 ALPHANUM characters.
Neptune 360 recognizes the following values: Neptune, Sensus, MasterMeter, Other,
Itron, Hersey / Mueller, Badger, Elster / Amco, Metron-Farnier.

Examples:

l Neptune|

l Other|

Each Neptune 360 Meter Manufacturer value has a mapped import value. Any non-
mapped value indicated in Meter Manufacturer are considered as Other by
Neptune 360.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 9

Chapter 2: Import File



Meter Number

Meter Number identifies the physical meter body installed at a premises. Meter
Number contains at least 1 and up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l W1AH8201|

l 09876543211234567890|

Meter Number is the meter body serial number or other identifier designated by the
meter manufacturer and is unique within the CIS. Meter Number can have one or more
leading zeros.

Meter Size

Meter Size denotes the size of the meter installed at the premises. Meter size contains at
least 1 and up to 20 SIZE characters. Neptune 360 recognizes the following core meter
size values: 5/8, 3/4, 1, 1 1/2, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 20.

Examples:

l 5/8|

l 6x8"|

l "1 1/2"""|(see "Record and Field Formatting" on page 4 for notes on double
quotes)

Each Neptune 360 Meter Size value is a mapped import value. Any non-mapped value
indicated in Meter Size is considered as 5/8 by Neptune 360. Single fractional
characters such as ½, ¾, and ⅝ cannot be used. Alternate lay lengths, decimal
equivalents (e.g., .75 for 3/4), and numeric-only fractional representations (e.g., 58 for
5/8) can be mapped to a Meter Size.

Number of Dials

Number of Dials indicates the number of digits expected for a meter reading. Number
of Dials is specified; it contains one DIGIT character with values between one and eight,
inclusive. Number of Dials can contain two DIGIT characters with values between 01 and
08, inclusive.

Examples:

l 8|

l 06|

10 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



Number of Dials can be used to audit the entered reading and / or to control the
reading field size displayed on the handheld device. Number of Dials cannot have a
value of 0 or 00 and the value indicated cannot include the decimal nor the digits after
the decimal. A register’s combined values for Number of Dials and Decimals cannot
exceed nine.

Office

Office identifies an individual location or working group of personnel within the
Company. Office contains at least one and up to four ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l Off1|

l 1234|

l Of 1|

In Neptune 360, a Route ID is the combination of the Company, Office, Cycle, and Route
fields, joined by dash characters.

Premises City

Premises City indicates the city where the meter / service is located. Premises City
contains at least 1 and up to 26 VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l Duluth|

l La Côte-de-Gaspé|

l Española|

Premises City can be the same as Account Holder City

Premises Delivery Address

Premises Delivery Address indicates the address number and street name where the
meter / service is located. Premises Delivery Address contains at least 1 and up to 64
VTEXT characters.

Examples:

l 3100 Breckinridge Blvd Bldg 2100|

l 832 Avenue Sevigny|

l "1234-A NW Main St S Apt 1201"|

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 11

Chapter 2: Import File



Premises Delivery Address cannot contain city, state / province, or zip / postal code.
Premises Delivery Address conforms with USPS or Canada Post guidelines for Delivery
Address Line or Civic Address line, respectively, which can include other address
information such as pre-direction, unit, or post-direction. Premises Delivery Address
can be the same as Account Holder Delivery Address.

Premises Key

Premises key provides a unique identifier for a physical premises or service location.
Premises Key contains at least 1 and up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l 001-1234567890|

l A270C75BB6398AE02D14|

l "102 /9876543"|

If an alternate unique key cannot be generated by the CIS, each Premises Key can be the
same as Account Number. Premises Key is unique within the CIS and remains the same
for any records corresponding with the same premises or location.

Premises State

Premises State indicates the state or province where the meter / service is located.
Premises State is two ALPHA characters.

Examples:

l GA|

l ON|

Premises State is expressed as a standardized two-letter abbreviation and is capitalized.
Premises State can be the same as Account Holder State.

Premises Zip

Premises Zip indicates the zip or postal code where the meter / service is located.
Premises Zip contains at least 1 and up to 10 characters and is formatted as indicated
below.

Examples:

l 30096|

l 30096-4985|

l L5N 5M9|

12 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



U.S. zip codes contains at least 5 DIGIT characters and can be followed by a dash and an
additional four DIGIT characters. U.S. zip codes cannot include spaces. Canadian postal
codes contains seven characters and i ALPHA DIGIT ALPHA SP DIGIT ALPHA DIGIT format.
The ALPHA characters are capitalized. Premises Zip can be the same as Account Holder
Zip.

Read Sequence

Read Sequence is used to convey the order in which meters are expected to be read.
Read Sequence contains at least one and up to six DIGIT characters.

Examples:

l 13|

l 000971|

Each Read Sequence value within a specific route is unique. Read Sequence can have
leading zeros and cannot contain spaces.

Register ID

Register ID contains the serial number for the register associated with a meter at a
premises. Register ID contains at least 1 and up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Examples:

l 1234867530|

l 2011417|

The identifier represented in Register ID is unique within a given utility and cannot be
repeated within a transfer file.

Register Manufacturer

Register Manufacturer identifies the manufacturer of the register used to collect reading
data. Register Manufacturer contains at least 1 and up to 25 ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l Neptune|

l Other|

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 13

Chapter 2: Import File



Register Multiplier

Register Multiplier indicates the value used for multiplication of raw reads when
calculating consumption. Register Multiplier contains at least one and up to six DECIMAL
characters and is a power of 10 between .00001 and 100000.

Examples:

l 0.0001|

l 1|

l 100|

Register Multiplier cannot contain a zero or a dash. The zero before the decimal can be
omitted. If the actual value is not known, Multiplier is set to one.

Register UOM

Register UOM identifies the unit of measure designated by the meter’s register. Register
UOM contains at least one and up to eight ALPHANUM characters and is one of the
following values:

Cubic Feet = FT3, CF, CF3, CCF, F^3, Cu Ft or Cu. Ft.

Cubic Meters = M3, CM, CM3, CCM, M^3, kl, Cu M or Cu. M.

Gallons = Gallons, G, Gal. or GAL

Imperial Gallons = IPG, Imp gal, Imp. gal. or galUK

Liters = LTR, 1, liters or DM3                

Examples:

l CCF|

l "M^3"|

Route

Route identifies the route associated with the cycle to which a premises or account
belongs. A Route contains at least 1 and up to 10 ALPHANUM characters.

Examples:

l DuluthGA01|

l DULUTH1|

l 22|

In Neptune 360, a Route ID is the combination of the Company, Office, Cycle, and Route
fields, joined by dash characters.

14 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



OPTIONAL Fields

The fields in this section are optional for import into Neptune 360. The source import
file can contain equivalent fields and data. These fields are listed below in alphabetical
order.

Account Holder Email

Account Holder Email indicates an email address associated with the account holder.
Account Holder Email can be specified and contain up to 50 EMAIL characters.

Examples:

l marketing@neptunetg.com|

l "sales@neptunetg.com"|

Account Holder Email can be the same as Premises Email.

Account Holder Phone

Account Holder Phone indicates the phone number associated with the account
holder. Account Holder Phone can be specified and contain up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Examples:

l 5552034032|

l 8006338754|

Account Holder Phone data is numeric and excludes dashes, spaces, plus signs or
parentheses. Account Holder Phone can be the same as Premises Phone.

High Limit

High Limit defines the highest reading expected to be captured for the given register.
High Limit can be specified; if present, it contains at least 1 and up to 10 DIGIT
characters.

Examples:

l 2598| (Number of Dials = 4)

l 002598| (Number of Dials = 6)

The number of characters used for High Limit matches the value specified for the
corresponding Number of Dials. High Limit can contain leading zeros. If a high reading
limit is not prescribed by the CIS, High Limit is left empty.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 15

Chapter 2: Import File







Premises Email

Premises Email indicates an email address associated with the customer at the address
where the meter / service is located. Premises Email can be specified and up to 50
EMAIL characters.

Premises email address: marketing@neptunetg.com|

Example: "sales@neptunetg.com"|

Premises Email can be the same as Account Holder Email.

Premises Phone

Premises Phone indicates the phone number associated with the customer at the
address where the meter / service is located. Premises Phone can be specified and
contain up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Premises Phone: 3342836555|

Example: 9058584211|

Premises Phone data is numeric and excludes dashes, spaces, plus signs or
parentheses. Premises Phone can be the same as Account Holder Phone.

Previous Read

Previous Read displays the reading recorded by the CIS for the previous billing period.
Previous Read can be specified; if present, it contains at least 1 and up to 10 DIGIT
characters for a normal, numeric reading.

Previous Read examples:

l 17294|

l 0000654321|

Previous Read can contain leading zeros and excludes non-numeric data. If the
previous reading recorded by the CIS contained errors / non-numeric data, Previous
Read should be empty.

Read Type

Read Type describes the type of read or measurement expected for an individual
register. Used in conjunction with Meter Type. Read Type is at least one and up to four
ALPHANUM characters.

18 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File



Read Type_A examples:

l WAT|

l HIGH|

l LOW|

Special Instruction 1

Special Instruction 1 contains account or premises-related information or instructions
for use by a meter reader on a handheld device. Special Instruction 1 can be specified
and contain up to 300 VTEXT characters.

Special Instruction 1: contact homeowner before accessing property|

Example: "gate code = 0625; park to side of garage"|

Special Instruction 2

Special Instruction 2 contains additional account or premises-related information or
instructions for use by a meter reader on a handheld device. Special Instruction 2 can
be specified and contain up to 300 VTEXT characters.

Special Instruction 2 examples are the same as Special Instruction 1.

Utility Custom 1

Utility Custom 1 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 1
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 1 examples:

l Check w/bldg mgr. before accessing meter|

l 001 /17590378164|

Utility Custom 2

Utility Custom 2 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 2
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 2 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 3

Utility Custom 3 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 3
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 3 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 19

Chapter 2: Import File



Utility Custom 4

Utility Custom 4 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 4
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 4 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 5

Utility Custom 5 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 5
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 5 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 6

Utility Custom 6 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 6
can be specified and n contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 6 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 7

Utility Custom 7 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 7
can be specified and can contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 7 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 8

Utility Custom 8 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 8
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 8 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 9

Utility Custom 9 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom 9
can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 9 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 10

Utility Custom 10 allows any utility-defined information to be provided. Utility Custom
10 can be specified and contain up to 40 VTEXT characters.

Utility Custom 10 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

20 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 2: Import File







ROUTE MANAGEMENT

The CIS sources all Route Management fields (Company, Office, Cycle, and Route),
which pass through from the Import Record to the Export Record unchanged.

Company

Company has the same value in the Export Record as was in the Import Record and
contains up to four ALPHANUM characters.

Company examples:

l NEPT|

l nep|

l 00A1|

Office

Office has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains up
to four ALPHANUM characters.

Office examples:

l Off1|

l 1234|

l Of 1|

Cycle

Cycle has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains up
to four ALPHANUM characters.

Cycle examples:

l Mwk1|

l 0 02|

l A|

Route

Route has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains up
to 10 ALPHANUM characters.

Route examples:

l DuluthGA01|

l DULUTH1|

l 22|

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 23

Chapter 3: Export File



ACCOUNT and PREMISES INFORMATION

These few Account and Premises Information fields are present in the Export Record to
facilitate matching with the corresponding Import Record the CIS produces. The CIS
sources all Account and Premises Information fields, which pass through from the
Import Record to the Export Record unchanged.

Account Number

Account Number has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains at least 1 and up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Account Number examples:

l DLTH0987654321|

l abcde12345fghjk67890|

l 123-0000293847|

Premises Key

Premises Key has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains at least 1 and up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Premises Key examples:

l 001-1234567890|

l A270C75BB6398AE02D14|

l "102 /9876543"|

METER READING INFORMATION

The Meter Reading Information category of fields provides meter reading-related data
from Neptune 360 back to the CIS for the purposes of billing. The Export Record
includes five (5) independent Meter Reading structures which correlate with the meter
configurations in the Import Record. Field descriptions, requirements for use, and
examples are given for Meter Reading_A. Those same specifications apply to each of
Meter Reading_B, Meter Reading _C, Meter Reading _D, and Meter Reading _E.

An Export Record only includes Meter Reading data for the same meter configurations
specified in the corresponding Import Record. For Meter configurations not specified in
an Import Record, all corresponding Meter Reading fields are empty in the Export
Record. For example, if only Meter_A and Meter_B were specified in an Import Record,
only Meter Reading_A and Meter Reading_B contain data in the Export Record. The CIS
sources some Meter Reading fields, which pass through from the Import Record to the
Export Record unchanged.

24 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



METER READING_A

Meter Number_A

Meter Number_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Meter Number_A examples:

l W1AH8201|

l 09876543211234567890|

MIU ID_A

MIU ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains
up to 13 DIGIT characters.

MIU ID_A examples:

l 1112223333|

l 2223334444555|

Register ID_A

Register ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Register ID_A examples:

l 1234867530|

l 2011417|

Reading_A

Represents the meter reading for the order formatted using Number of Dials. Reading
should be specified; if present, it contains at least one and up to eightDIGIT characters
for a normal, numeric register reading.

Reading_A examples:

l 3108|(Number of Dials = 4)

l 002407| (Number of Dials = 6)

l ::::::::| (read error)

Reading can represent either a reading manually keyed into a handheld device or a
reading collected via radio or probe. If Order Status has a value of “skipped” or
“incomplete,” the corresponding Reading is not specified. Reading may contain leading
zeros and may contain up to eight ERRREAD characters.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 25

Chapter 3: Export File



Raw Reading_A

Represents all transmittable digits for a radio or probe-collected meter reading on the
order. Raw Reading should be specified; if present, it contains at least six and up to
eightDIGIT characters for a normal, numeric register reading.

Raw Reading_A examples:

l 31082302| (radio read)

l 074326| (probe read)

l ::::::::|(read error)

If Order Status has a value of “skipped” or “incomplete,” or if the reading for an order
was manually keyed and the corresponding Raw Reading is not specified. Raw Reading
may contain leading zeros and may contain up to eight ERRREAD characters.

Read DateTime_A

Represents the UTC date and time the Order Status was recorded. Read DateTime
contains 20 ALPHANUM characters and is expressed in MM/DD/YYYY 24HH:MM:SS
format.

Read DateTime _A examples:

l 08/01/2019 18:37:21|

l 12/14/2018 01:12:58|

35 Day No Flow flag_A

Code representing a range of consecutive days out of the previous 35 days the system
recorded no consumption (no flow) for a register. A 35 Day No Flow flag may be
specified; if present, it is one DIGIT character and one of the following values:

l 0 = 0 days (flow every day) 4 = 15 to 21 days

l 1 = 1 to 2 days 5 = 22 to 34 days

l 2 = 3 to 7 days 6 = 35 days (no flow detected)

l 3 = 8 to 14 days

l 4 = 15 to 21 days

l 5 = 22 to 34 days

l 6 = 35 days (no flow detected)

35 Day No Flow flag _A examples:

l 0|

l 6|

26 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



Only a register operating in E-CODER PLUS mode reports a 35 Day No Flow flag. For all
other register types (or if the reading for an E-CODER register has been manually keyed),
35 Day No Flow flag is empty. If there are multiple, separate periods of consecutive days
with no consumption, the 35 Day No Flow flag returns the code that correlates with the
longest period. If a value of 7 is received for 35 Day No Flow flag, you can ignore it.

Reverse Flow flag_A

Code indicating the level of any reverse flow event measured by a register within the
past 24-hours. Reverse Flow flag may be specified; if present, it is one DIGIT character
and one of the following values:

l 0 = No reverse flow indicated

l 1 = minor reverse flow

l 2 = major reverse flow

Reverse Flow flag _A examples (all valid values):

l 0|

l 1|

l 2|

Only a register operating in E-CODER PLUS mode reports Reverse Flow flag. For all
other register types, or if the reading for an E-CODER register has been manually keyed,
Reverse Flow flag is empty. The water volumes that trigger values of 1 or 2 for Reverse
Flow flag vary based on meter size and register unit of measure. If a value of 3 is
received for Reverse Flow flag, you can ignore it.

35 Day Leak flag_A

Code representing a range of the total number of days out of the previous 35 there was
intermittent or continuous consumption reported by a register. The 35 Day Leak flag
may be specified; if present, it is one DIGIT character and one of the following values:

l 0 = 0 days

l 1 = 1 to 2 days

l 2 = 3 to 7 days

l 3 = 8 to 14 days

l 4 = 15 to 21 days

l 5 = 22 to 34 days

l 6 = 35 days (intermittent or continuous consumption every day)

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 27

Chapter 3: Export File



35 Day Leak flag _A examples:

l 5|

l 2|

Only a register operating in E-CODER PLUS mode reports 5 Day Leak flag. For all other
register types, or if the reading for an E-CODER register has been manually keyed, 35
Day Leak flag is empty. If a value of 7 is received for 35 Day Leak flag, you can ignore it.

Current Leak flag_A

Code categorizing the quantity of 15-minute periods of consumption measured by a
register within the past 24-hours. Current Leak flag MAY be specified; if present, it is one
DIGIT character and one of the following values:

l 0 = normal (0 to 49 15-minute periods within 24 hours)

l 1 = intermittent consumption (50 to 95 15-minute periods within 24 hours)

l 2 = continuous consumption (All 96 15-minute periods within 24 hours)

Current Leak flag _A examples (all valid values):

l 0|

l 1|

l 2|

Only a register operating in E-CODER PLUS mode reports Current Leak flag. For all other
register types, or if the reading for an E-CODER register has been manually keyed,
Current Leak flag is empty. A value of 1 or 2 for Current Leak flag may indicate a leak
condition at the premises associated with the register. If a value of 3 is received for
Current Leak flag, you can ignore it.

Reader ID_A

Identifies the person or handheld device that obtained the reading for the order.
Reader ID is at least 1 and up to 50 ALPHANUM characters.

Reader ID_A examples:

l bmadison@neptune360.com|

l HANDHELD12|

Reader ID should be a Neptune 360 username (email address) and may be a handheld
device identifier depending on the device used. Note that the data in the Reader ID field
may appear truncated.

28 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



Order Status_A

Indicates the status of the order when it was recorded. Order Status is up to 10 ALPHA
characters and one of the following values:

l Complete = valid reading obtained

l Incomplete = reading not yet obtained

l Skipped = reading not obtained and skip code applied

Order Status_A examples (all valid values):

l Complete|

l Incomplete|

l Skipped|

Skip Code_A

Code entered on a handheld device indicating a specific reason why a reading for an
order was not obtained. Skip Code may be specified; if present it is at least one and up
to four ALPHANUM characters.

Skip Code 1_A examples:

l SK01|

l s3|

Skip Code is specified if Order Status has a value of “skipped” and is specified if Order
Status is either “complete” or “incomplete.” All Skip Code values and related descriptions
originate within Neptune 360.

Comment Code 1_A

Code entered on a handheld device representing a meter situation or conditions at the
premise which could affect obtaining a reading on future orders. Comment Code 1 may
be specified and can contain up to four ALPHANUM characters.

Comment Code 1_A examples:

l INSC|

l c7|

Comment Code 1 may be associated to an order via a handheld device. All Comment
Code values and related descriptions originate within Neptune 360.

Comment Code 2_A

Code representing an additional meter situation or condition at the premise. Comment
Code 2 may be specified and can contain up to four ALPHANUM characters.

Comment Code 2_A examples same as Comment Code 1_A.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 29

Chapter 3: Export File



Comment Code 2 may be associated to an order via a handheld device. All Comment
Code values and related descriptions originate within Neptune 360.

Note_A

Represents freeform text notes input on a handheld device regarding a premises or
meters at a premises.

Note may be specified and can contain up to 128 ALPHANUM characters.

Note_A examples:

l mulch and dirt covering pit cover|

l major renovation@residence; owner says water shut off inside|

Re-entry Count_A

Indicates the number of different manually keyed readings attempted by a user for the
order. Re-entry Count may be specified; if present, it is one DIGIT character.

Re-entry Count_A examples:

l 1|

l 6|

METER READING_B

Meter Number_B

Meter Number_B has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Meter Number_B examples are the same as Meter Number_A.

MIU ID_B

MIU ID_B has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains
up to 13 DIGIT characters.

MIU ID_B examples are the same as MIU ID_A.

Register ID_B

Register ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Register ID_B examples are the same as Register ID_A.

Reading_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reading_A.

30 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



Raw Reading_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Raw Reading_A.

Read DateTime_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Read DateTime_A.

35 Day No Flow flag_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day No Flow flag_A.

Reverse Flow flag_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reverse Flow flag_A.

35 Day Leak flag_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day Leak flag_A.

Current Leak flag_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Current Leak flag_A.

Reader ID_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reader ID_A.

Order Status_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Order Status_A.

Skip Code_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Skip Code_A.

Comment Code 1_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 1_A,

Comment Code 2_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 2_A.

Note_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Note_A.

Re-entry Count_B

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Re-entry Count_A.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 31

Chapter 3: Export File



METER READING_C

Meter Number_C

Meter Number_C has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Meter Number_C examples are the same as Meter Number_A.

MIU ID_C

MIU ID_C has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains
up to 13 DIGIT characters.

MIU ID_C examples are the same as MIU ID_A.

Register ID_C

Register ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Register ID_C examples are the same as Register ID_A.

Reading_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reading_A.

Raw Reading_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Raw Reading_A.

Read DateTime_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Read DateTime_A.

35 Day No Flow flag_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day No Flow flag_A.

Reverse Flow flag_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reverse Flow flag_A.

35 Day Leak flag_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day Leak flag_A.

Current Leak flag_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Current Leak flag_A.

Reader ID_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reader ID_A.

32 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



Order Status_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Order Status_A.

Skip Code_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Skip Code_A.

Comment Code 1_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 1_A,

Comment Code 2_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 2_A.

Note_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Note_A.

Re-entry Count_C

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Re-entry Count_A.

METER READING_D

Meter Number_D

Meter Number_D has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Meter Number_D examples are the same as Meter Number_A.

MIU ID_D

MIU ID_D has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains
up to 13 DIGIT characters.

MIU ID_D examples are the same as MIU ID_A.

Register ID_D

Register ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Register ID_D examples are the same as Register ID_A.

Reading_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reading_A.

Raw Reading_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Raw Reading_A.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 33

Chapter 3: Export File



Read DateTime_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Read DateTime_A.

35 Day No Flow flag_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day No Flow flag_A.

Reverse Flow flag_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reverse Flow flag_A.

35 Day Leak flag_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day Leak flag_A.

Current Leak flag_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Current Leak flag_A.

Reader ID_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reader ID_A.

Order Status_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Order Status_A.

Skip Code_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Skip Code_A.

Comment Code 1_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 1_A.

Comment Code 2_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 2_A.

Note_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Note_A.

Re-entry Count_D

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Re-entry Count_A.

34 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



METER READING_E

Meter Number_E

Meter Number_E has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 20 ALPHANUM characters.

Meter Number_E examples are the same as Meter Number_A.

MIU ID_E

MIU ID_E has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and contains
up to 13 DIGIT characters.

MIU ID_E examples are the same as MIU ID_A.

Register ID_E

Register ID_A has the same value in the Export Record as in the Import Record and
contains up to 10 DIGIT characters.

Register ID_E examples are the same as Register ID_A.

Reading_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reading_A.

Raw Reading_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Raw Reading_A.

Read DateTime_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Read DateTime_A.

35 Day No Flow flag_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day No Flow flag_A.

Reverse Flow flag_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reverse Flow flag_A.

35 Day Leak flag_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as 35 Day Leak flag_A.

Current Leak flag_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Current Leak flag_A.

Reader ID_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Reader ID_A.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 35

Chapter 3: Export File



Order Status_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Order Status_A.

Skip Code_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Skip Code_A.

Comment Code 1_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 1_A.

Comment Code 2_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Comment Code 2_A.

Note_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Note_A.

Re-entry Count_E

Same meaning, requirements, and examples as Re-entry Count_A.

UTILITY PASS THROUGH

The CIS sources all Utility Pass Through fields, which pass through from the Import
Record to the Export Record unchanged.

Utility Custom 1

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 1 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 1 examples:

l Check w/bldg mgr. before accessing meter|

l 001 /17590378164|

Utility Custom 2

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 2 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 2 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 3

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 3 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 3 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

36 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

Chapter 3: Export File



Utility Custom 4

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 4 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 2 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 5

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 5 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 5 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 6

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 6 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 6 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 7

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 7 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 7 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 8

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 8 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 8 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 9

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 9 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 9 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Utility Custom 10

If specified in the Import Record, Utility Custom 10 has the same value in the Export
Record and may contain up to 40 ALPHANUM characters.

Utility Custom 10 examples are the same as Utility Custom 1.

Export Record Terminator

Each Export Record in an export file is terminated with a CRLF.

Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4 37

Chapter 3: Export File



Chapter 3: Export File

38 Neptune® 360™ File Mapper Layout v1.4

This page intentionally left blank.





 

A NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP WARRANTY STATEMENT 

MACH 10® Ultrasonic Meter 
 
1. TERMS OF LIMITED WARRANTY 
With respect to its Neptune® MACH 10® water meter (“MACH 10”), Neptune Technology Group Inc. (“Neptune”) warrants 

that for meters sold after 02/01/2019 for potable water or combined potable water and residential fire service 

applications the MACH 10 meter will be warranted to be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material 

as follows: 

 

The MACH 10 will be, at the later of (i) the date of original purchase from Neptune or (ii) the date of original shipment 

from a Neptune-authorized distributor of water meters (that later date is referred to as “the Date of Shipment”), and will 

remain for a period of 18 months from the Date of Shipment, or 12 months from date of installation, whichever comes 

first, free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material. Neptune makes the following additional warranties 

with respect to certain MACH 10 components, dependent upon the size of meter: 

 
a) Lead Free Bronze Maincase  

i) 5/8” – 1” MACH 10 

Neptune warrants that the MACH 10 lead free bronze maincase will be free from manufacturing defects in 

workmanship and material for twenty (20) years from the Date of Shipment. 

 

ii) 1½” – 2” MACH 10 

Neptune warrants that the MACH 10 lead free bronze maincase will be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material for ten (10) years from the Date 

of Shipment. 

 

b) Electronics (Battery, PCB, Transducers, LCD) 
i) 5⁄8” – 1” MACH 10 

Neptune warrants that the electronics of the MACH 10 will be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material for a period of twenty (20) years from the 

Date of Shipment. Neptune will repair or replace a non-performing MACH 10 free of charge for the first ten (10) years and at a discount of the then-current contract 

price, or the then-current list price, whichever is less, during the following ten (10) years per the following table. The MACH 10 warranty does not include the external 

housing that encapsulates the electronics. 

 

ii) 1½” – 2” MACH 10 

Neptune warrants the electronics of the MACH 10 will be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material for a period of ten (10) years from the Date of 

Shipment. Neptune will repair or replace a non-performing MACH 10 free of charge during the ten (10) year Warranty Period. The MACH 10 warranty does not include 

the external housing that encapsulates the electronics. 

 

 

 

Year of Failure MACH 10® 

 Replacement Price Discount* 

1-10 Full replacement 100% 

11 50% 

12 50% 

13 40% 

14 40% 

15 30% 

16 30% 

17 20% 

18 20% 

19 10% 

20 10% 



 

 

 

With respect to Section 1 and subparts a) and b), the period from the Date of Shipment to the expiration of the specified time period is the “Warranty Period” with respect 

to each specified component. Neptune shall not be responsible for any defects in the MACH 10 or any specified component (whether due to design, materials, manufacture, 

or otherwise) that manifest themselves after the expiration of the specified Warranty Period. 
 
2. MACH 10 METER ACCURACY  
Provided that the MACH 10 meter and the components specified in Section 1 and subparts a) and b) are functioning properly (regardless of whether the MACH 10 meter 

and specified components are within or outside an applicable Warranty Period), Neptune makes the following warranties with respect to meter accuracy, dependent upon 

the size of meter: 

 

i) 5⁄8” – 1” MACH 10 

Neptune MACH 10 meters are warranted to meet or exceed meter accuracy of ±1.5% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current product sheet in existence at 

the time of the Date of Shipment of the MACH 10 meter for twenty (20) years from Date of Shipment. Neptune further warrants the MACH 10 to meet or exceed extended 

low flow accuracy of ±3% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current product sheet in existence at the time of the Date of Shipment of the MACH 10 meter for 

twenty (20) years from Date of Shipment. 

 

ii) 11⁄2” – 2” MACH 10 

Neptune MACH 10 meters are warranted to meet or exceed meter accuracy of ±1.5% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current product sheet in existence at 

the time of the Date of Shipment of the MACH 10 meter for ten (10) years from date of shipment. Neptune further warrants the MACH 10 to meet or exceed extended 

low flow accuracy of ±3% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current product sheet in existence at the time of the Date of Shipment of the MACH 10 meter for 

ten (10) years from Date of Shipment. 

 

3. WARRANTY RETURNS 
If a Neptune MACH 10 meter fails an accuracy test during an applicable Warranty Period, it may be returned to Neptune for evaluation. Any MACH 10 meter proved to the 

satisfaction of Neptune to have failed the warranties set forth in this Certificate of Warranty will, at the option of Neptune, be repaired or replaced at no cost to the 

customer. An accuracy test shall be conducted by the customer according to then-current AWWA testing standards. Any meter being returned for repair to Neptune under 

this performance warranty must be returned with a copy of the customer’s test results. If the meter is returned to Neptune without a copy of the test results or if Neptune’s 

factory test shows the meter to meet Neptune’s published accuracy specifications, then the customer will be charged a nominal testing fee by Neptune in such cases. If 

after the meter has been tested by Neptune, Neptune determines that the meter has failed the warranties set forth in this Certificate of Warranty, then Neptune will repair 

or replace the meter at Neptune’s option. Repaired or replacement MACH 10 meters are warranted for one (1) year after Date of Shipment of the repaired or replacement 

MACH 10 meter or the balance of the original MACH 10 meter warranty, whichever is greater. 

 
4. RESPONSIBILITY LIMITED TO COSTS OF REPLACEMENT AND REPAIR 
If the MACH 10 fails to meet the warranties set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Certificate of Warranty, then Neptune, at its option shall repair or replace the MACH 10 or 

part thereof, provided that (a) the MACH 10 is delivered to a Neptune representative, (b) the MACH 10 is accompanied by a Return Material Authorization (RMA), and (c) all 

costs of delivery to Neptune are assumed by the purchaser of the MACH 10. Neptune’s liability is limited to its  

 



 

 
© 2019 Neptune Technology Group Inc. All Rights Reserved. The trademarks, logos and service marks displayed in this document herein are the property of Neptune 
Technology Group Inc., its affiliates or other third parties. Availability and technical specifications are subject to change without notice. W MACH 10 03.19 

 

 

costs of replacement and repair of the non-performing MACH 10, and without limitation, this warranty does not include field replacement, labor, or materials costs, which 

are the responsibility of the customer. Damages resulting from miscalculation of water usage or lost revenue or profit are not recoverable from Neptune. It is the 

responsibility of the customer to periodically verify the operation and accuracy of its meters.  

 
5. WARRANTIES ARE INAPPLICABLE UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS 
The warranties set forth in this Certificate of Warranty do not apply to any MACH 10 meter that has been damaged by, or subjected to, conditions which, in the opinion of 

Neptune, have affected the ability of the MACH 10 to perform, including but not limited to: misuse; improper handling, application or installation; excessive operating 

conditions; foreign materials in the water; aggressive water conditions; tampering or unauthorized repairs or modifications; accidental or intentional damage; or acts of 

God. This Certificate of Warranty shall not apply if the product is placed in a non-recommended installation, is connected or altered by other than Neptune recommended 

procedures or is read by equipment not approved or licensed by Neptune. Neptune makes no claims concerning operability and/or compatibility or third-party reading 

systems. In addition, this Certificate of Warranty shall not apply if third-party reading equipment is believed to have caused damage to the MACH 10. In order to determine 

its liability, if any, under this Certificate of Warranty, Neptune shall have the right to inspect any MACH 10 meter or part thereof that is claimed to be defective at Neptune or 

other location designated by Neptune. 

 

THE ABOVE WARRANTY FOR THE MACH 10 WATER METER IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY GIVEN BY NEPTUNE WITH RESPECT TO THE MACH 10. ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, TERMS, REPRESENTATIONS, OR OTHER LEGALLY OPERATIVE PROVISIONS CONCERNING THE MACH 10 ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY 
EXCLUDED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY, CONDITION, TERM, AND REPRESENTATION OR OTHER LEGALLY OPERATIVE PROVISION AS TO 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THIS PARAGRAPH IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED TO EXCLUDE FROM THIS CONTRACT ALL STATUTORY AND 

COMMON LAW WARRANTIES TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. TO AVOID ANY AMBIGUITY OR MISUNDERSTANDING, ALL PROBLEMS ARISING WITH A MACH 

10 WATER METER AFTER THIS POINT SHALL BE BUYER’S RESPONSIBILITY. NEPTUNE’S LIABILITY SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE MACH 10 WATER 

METER. NEPTUNE SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO AND DISCLAIMS THE FOLLOWING: (1) ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT OR 

OF WARRANTY, (2) ANY OBLIGATIONS WHATSOEVER ARISING FROM TORT CLAIMS (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR ARISING UNDER OTHER THEORIES 

OF LAW WITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS SOLD OR SERVICES RENDERED BY NEPTUNE, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS, OR OMISSIONS RELATING THERETO, AND (3) ALL 

CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, MULTIPLE, EXEMPLARY, AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER. 

 

 



 

A NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP WARRANTY STATEMENT 

3” to 12” MACH 10® Ultrasonic Meter 
 
1. TERMS OF LIMITED WARRANTY 
With respect to its Commercial and Industrial Neptune® MACH 10® water meter (“MACH 10”), Neptune Technology Group Inc. (“Neptune”) warrants that MACH 10 meters 

sold after 02/01/2020 for potable water or combined potable water and fire service applications will be warranted to be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship 

and material as follows: 

 

The MACH 10 will be, at the later of (i) the date of original purchase from Neptune or (ii) the date of original shipment from a Neptune-authorized distributor of water 

meters (that later date is referred to as “the Date of Shipment”), and will remain for a period of 18 months from the Date of Shipment, or 12 months from date of 

installation, whichever comes first, free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and material. Neptune makes the following additional warranties with respect to 

certain MACH 10 components.  

 
a) Lead Free Bronze Maincase  
Neptune warrants at the Date of Shipment that the lead free, high copper bronze maincase of the MACH 10 will be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and 

material for the life of the meter. 

 

b) Electronics (Battery, PCB, Transducers, LCD) 
Neptune warrants that the electronics of the MACH 10 will be free from manufacturing defects in workmanship and  

material for a period of ten (10) years from the Date of Shipment. Neptune will repair or replace a non-performing  

MACH 10 free of charge for the first five (5) years and at a discount of the then-current contract price, or the  

then-current list price, whichever is less, during the following five (5) years per the following table. The MACH 10  

warranty does not include the external housing that encapsulates the electronics. 

 

With respect to Section 1 and subparts a) and b), the period from the Date of Shipment to the expiration of the specified 

time period is the “Warranty Period” with respect to each specified component. Neptune shall not be responsible for any 

defects in the MACH 10 or any specified component (whether due to design, materials, manufacture, or otherwise) that 

manifest themselves after the expiration of the specified Warranty Period. 

 

2. MACH 10 METER ACCURACY WARRANTY  
Provided that the MACH 10 meter and the components specified in Section 1 and subparts a) and b) are functioning 

properly (regardless of whether the MACH 10 meter and specified components are within or outside an applicable Warranty Period detailed above), Neptune makes the 

following warranties with respect to meter accuracy: 

 

Neptune MACH 10 meters are warranted to meet or exceed new meter accuracy per AWWA specifications of ±1.5% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current 

product sheet in existence at the time of the Date of Shipment of the MACH 10 meter for ten (10) years from Date of Shipment. Neptune further warrants the MACH 10 to 

meet or exceed extended low flow accuracy of ±3% for the published ranges set forth in Neptune’s current product sheet in existence at the time of the Date of Shipment of 

the MACH 10 meter for ten (10) years from Date of Shipment (that period being the “Accuracy Warranty Period”). 

Year of Failure MACH 10® 

 Replacement Price Discount 

1-5 Full replacement 100% 

6 50% 

7 40% 

8 30% 

9 20% 

10 10% 



3. WARRANTY RETURNS 
If a Neptune MACH 10 meter fails an accuracy test during the Accuracy Warranty Period, it may be returned to Neptune for evaluation. An accuracy test shall be conducted 

by the customer according to then-current AWWA testing standards. Any meter being returned for repair to Neptune under the accuracy warranty must be returned with a 

copy of the customer’s test results. If the meter is returned to Neptune without a copy of the test results or if Neptune’s factory test shows the meter to meet Neptune’s 

published accuracy specifications, then the customer will be charged a nominal testing fee by Neptune in such cases. If after the meter has been tested by Neptune, 

Neptune determines that the meter has failed the accuracy warranty set forth in this Certificate of Warranty, then Neptune will repair or replace the meter at Neptune’s 

option. Repaired or replacement MACH 10 meters are warranted for one (1) year after Date of Shipment of the repaired or replacement MACH 10 meter or the balance of 

the applicable original MACH 10 meter warranty (maincase, electronics, or accuracy), whichever is greater. 

 
4. RESPONSIBILITY LIMITED TO COSTS OF REPLACEMENT AND REPAIR 
If the MACH 10 fails to meet the warranties set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Certificate of Warranty, then Neptune, at its option shall repair or replace the MACH 10 or 

part thereof, provided that (a) the MACH 10 is delivered to a Neptune representative, (b) the MACH 10 is accompanied by a Return Material Authorization (RMA), and (c) all 

costs of delivery to Neptune are assumed by the purchaser of the MACH 10. Neptune’s liability is limited to its costs of replacement and repair of the non-performing MACH 

10, and without limitation, this warranty does not include field replacement, labor, or materials costs, which are the responsibility of the customer. Damages resulting from 

miscalculation of water usage or lost revenue or profit are not recoverable from Neptune. It is the responsibility of the customer to periodically verify the operation and 

accuracy of its meters.  

 
5. WARRANTIES ARE INAPPLICABLE UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS 
The warranties set forth in this Certificate of Warranty do not apply to any MACH 10 meter that has been damaged by, or subjected to, conditions which, in the opinion of 

Neptune, have affected the ability of the MACH 10 to perform, including but not limited to: misuse; improper handling, application or installation; excessive operating 

conditions; foreign materials in the water; aggressive water conditions; tampering or unauthorized repairs or modifications; accidental or intentional damage; or acts of 

God. This Certificate of Warranty shall not apply if the product is placed in a non-recommended installation, is connected or altered by other than Neptune recommended 

procedures or is read by equipment not approved or licensed by Neptune. Neptune makes no claims concerning operability and/or compatibility or third-party reading 

systems. In addition, this Certificate of Warranty shall not apply if third-party reading equipment is believed to have caused damage to the MACH 10. In order to determine 

its liability, if any, under this Certificate of Warranty, Neptune shall have the right to inspect any MACH 10 meter or part thereof that is claimed to be defective at Neptune or 

other location designated by Neptune. 

 

THE ABOVE WARRANTY FOR THE MACH 10 WATER METER IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY GIVEN BY NEPTUNE WITH RESPECT TO THE MACH 10. ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, TERMS, REPRESENTATIONS, OR OTHER LEGALLY OPERATIVE PROVISIONS CONCERNING THE MACH 10 ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY 
EXCLUDED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY, CONDITION, TERM, AND REPRESENTATION OR OTHER LEGALLY OPERATIVE PROVISION AS TO 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THIS PARAGRAPH IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED TO EXCLUDE FROM THIS CONTRACT ALL STATUTORY AND 

COMMON LAW WARRANTIES TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. TO AVOID ANY AMBIGUITY OR MISUNDERSTANDING, ALL PROBLEMS ARISING WITH A MACH 

10 WATER METER AFTER THIS POINT SHALL BE BUYER’S RESPONSIBILITY. NEPTUNE’S LIABILITY SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE MACH 10 WATER 

METER. NEPTUNE SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO AND DISCLAIMS THE FOLLOWING: (1) ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT OR 

OF WARRANTY, (2) ANY OBLIGATIONS WHATSOEVER ARISING FROM TORT CLAIMS (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY) OR ARISING UNDER OTHER THEORIES 

OF LAW WITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS SOLD OR SERVICES RENDERED BY NEPTUNE, OR ANY UNDERTAKINGS, ACTS, OR OMISSIONS RELATING THERETO, AND (3) ALL 

CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, MULTIPLE, EXEMPLARY, AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER. 

 

 
© 2020 Neptune Technology Group Inc. All Rights Reserved. The trademarks, logos and service marks displayed in this document herein are the property of Neptune 
Technology Group Inc., its affiliates or other third parties. Availability and technical specifications are subject to change without notice. W CI MACH 10 11.20 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-079 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. for the Highway 11 Emergency 

Casing and Watermain Installation Project 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-011-2021 at the May 
4, 2021 Regular Council meeting, and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-
law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for the 
Highway 11 Emergency Casing and Watermain Installation Project, in the 
amount of $158,850.00, plus applicable taxes, for consideration at the May 4, 
2021 Regular Council meeting. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute an agreement with 
Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for the Highway 11 Emergency Casing 
and Watermain Installation Project, in the amount of $158,850.00, plus 
applicable taxes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and 
forms part of this by-law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 
2021. 

 
 

Mayor 

 
Clerk 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2021-079 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 

for the Highway 11 Emergency Casing and Watermain Installation Project



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Emergency Watermain Relocation - Pedersen By-law No. 2021-079 

 

 

This agreement made this 4th, day of May, 2021. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Pedersen Construction Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described within this Agreement. 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Form of 
Agreement attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement. 

c) Complete, as certified by the Manager of Environmental Services, all the work by 
August 31, 2021. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for services aforesaid, in the 
amount of One-Hundred and Fifty-Eight Thousand, Eight-Hundred and Fifty 
Dollars and Zero Cents ($158,850.00) plus applicable taxes, subject to additions 
and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, as authorized by an 
approved Contract Change Order. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties shall be deemed to have been 
received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or to a member of the firm or to 
an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if sent by hand, Canada Post, 
courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication where, during or after the 
transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a failure or suspension of 
transmission has been communicated to the sender. For deliveries by courier or by 
hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery; by 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Emergency Watermain Relocation - Pedersen By-law No. 2021-079 

 

 

Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A communication sent by 
facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of failure or suspension of 
delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next 
day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in which case it shall be 
deemed to have been received on the next working day of the recipient at the opening of 
business. 

The Contractor:  

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc.  
177246 Bedard Road 
New Liskeard, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 
 
Attn.:  Karl Pedersen  

 
The Owner: 
 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive / P.O. Box 2050 
Haileybury, Ontario  P0J 1K0 
 
Attn.:  Steve Burnett, Manager of Environmental Services 
 

 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Emergency Watermain Relocation - Pedersen By-law No. 2021-079 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 

Signed and Sealed in 
the presence of 

) 
) 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 

 ) 
) 
) 

 
 ) 

) 

Karl Pedersen, President 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 

Municipal Seal ) 
) 

Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Clerk – Logan Belanger 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2021-079 

Form of Agreement 
 







The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-080 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with CGV 
Builders Inc. for the Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. RS-010-2021 at the May 
4, 2021 Regular Council meeting, and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-
law to enter into an agreement with CGV Builders Inc. for the award of the 
Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build, as detailed in Request for Proposal RS-
RFP-002-2021, for a total upset limit of $2,090,000 plus applicable taxes, for 
consideration at the May 4, 2021 Regular Meeting of Council. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute an agreement with 
CGV Builders Inc. for the Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build, as detailed 
in Request for Proposal RS-RFP-002-2021, for a total upset limit of 
$2,090,000 plus applicable taxes, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Schedule “A” and forms part of this by-law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 
2021. 

 

Mayor 

 
Clerk 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2021-080 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

CGV Builders Inc. 

For the Haileybury Fire Station Design-Build 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Haileybury Fire Hall – CGV Builders Inc. By-law No. 2021-080 

 

 

This agreement made this 4th, day of May, 2021. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

CGV Builders Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described within this Agreement, in 
accordance to the specifications contained in their submission in relation to the 
following: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Request for Proposal 

RS-RFP-002-2021 Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Form of 
Agreement attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement. 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director of Recreation, all the work by December 31, 
2021. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 

aforesaid in the upset amount of Two-Million and Ninety-Thousand Dollars and 

Zero Cents ($2,090,000), plus applicable taxes, subject to additions and 

deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, as authorized by an approved 

Contract Change Order. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Haileybury Fire Hall – CGV Builders Inc. By-law No. 2021-080 

 

 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties shall be deemed to have been 
received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or to a member of the firm or to 
an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if sent by hand, Canada Post, 
courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication where, during or after the 
transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a failure or suspension of 
transmission has been communicated to the sender. For deliveries by courier or by 
hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery; by 
Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A communication sent by 
facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of failure or suspension of 
delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next 
day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in which case it shall be 
deemed to have been received on the next working day of the recipient at the opening of 
business. 

The Contractor:  
 
CGV Builders Inc.  
56 Connaught Avenue  
Cochrane, Ontario  P0L 1C0  

 
Attn: Robert Vezeau, Vice President 
 
The Owner: 
 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive / P.O. Box 2050 
Haileybury, Ontario  P0J 1K0 
 
Attn.:  Mathew Bahm, Director of Recreation 
 

 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Haileybury Fire Hall – CGV Builders Inc. By-law No. 2021-080 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 

Signed and Sealed in 
the presence of 

) 
) 

CGV Builders Inc. 

 ) 
) 
) 

 
 ) 

) 

Robert Vezeau, Vice President 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 

Municipal Seal ) 
) 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 ) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 ) Clerk – Logan Belanger 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2021-080 

Form of Agreement 
 















































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quality Assurance Plan 
(CGV Builders Design-Build Projects) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

1.0 Introduction 

 

The information, templates and examples provided in this dossier represent a Quality Assurance Plan 

(“QAP”) developed by CGV Builders (“CGV”) and for a typical design-build construction project. 

The QAP will be revised and modified at the outset of each project to ensure that the work is completed in 

compliance with the project specific quality requirements of the Client and other project shareholders.  

This dossier outlines the practices and procedures that CGV Builders and affiliated subcontractors / 

suppliers will undertake for all design activities, fabricating operations, construction processes, preparation 

of documents and inspections / testing with regard to quality control.  

The QAP and all related documents will be maintained and revised for the duration of the project; as 

applicable. 

 

2.0 Quality Policy 

 

The CGV team is committed to quality excellence and will consistently strive to provide services that 

surpass client expectations. Project success will be guaranteed through knowledge, experience, strong 

relations with subcontractors / suppliers, use of best industry practices and a safe work environment for our 

employees and all those that could be affected by our actions. Quality is a requirement, not only in the final 

product, but in our relationships with clients and business partners. 

3.0 Project Quality Control Implementation 

 
3.1 Scheduling and Work Planning 

 
3.1.2 Pre-Construction Meeting 

 

A pre-construction meeting will be held on a date, time and location that has been mutually agreed upon 

by the Client, CGV and all other parties involved in the construction of the project.  

The meeting will outline key elements of the project and will establish the necessary roles and 

responsibilities of all participating parties. 

Critical items to be discussed will include, but not limited to:  

• establishing construction phase procedures,  

• identifying project milestones,  

• determining the work that will require inspections and / or testing, including hold points,  

• establishing lines of communication,  



2 | P a g e  
 

• forming key contacts,  

• reviewing project schedules and submittal requirements,  

• discussing existing site conditions and identifying potential safety concerns, 

• creating / documenting formal meeting minutes.  

 

 

3.1.3  Work Plans 

 

A detailed work plan will be prepared for each major project task. The work plan will describe the proper 

procedures that must undertaken to achieve a compliant outcome. Work plans will be completed no later 

than one week prior to the pre-activity meeting and will consist of a work sequence, a list of materials, a 

safety plan, a list of activity milestones, a sign-off checklist, a list of required inspections and / or testing 

and a thorough description of the responsibilities for all parties involved. Work plans will be revised and 

modified as required throughout the project. 

A sample work plan is included in Appendix A of this QAP. 

 

3.1.4  Work Plan Sign-Off Checklist 

 

A sign-off checklist will be included at the end of each work plan. The field crew quality representative will 

sign-off on each checklist item to confirm that all tasks that are specified in the work plan have been 

completed. A copy of each work plan sign-off checklist will be returned to the CGV head office for review 

and documentation. 

 

3.1.5   Pre-Activity Meetings 

 

Pre-activity meetings will take place 24-hours prior to the start of each new activity. The intent is to 

communicate the details and procedures that are specified in the activity’s work plan. Attendees shall 

include the project superintendent and / or supervisor, the quality assurance officer and all CGV employees 

and sub-trades that will participate in the activity. The project superintendent or supervisor will be 

responsible for coordinating and leading pre-activity meetings.  

 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

3.1.6 Weekly Schedules 

 

Weekly schedules will outline the planned project activities for the upcoming two-week period. The 

schedules will be prepared in Gantt chart format. The schedules will be communicated to the project team 

during weekly progress meetings. Typical information can include planned work for the upcoming period, 

identifying new activities, upcoming pre-activity meetings, required hold points and / or inspections, among 

others. All revisions to the weekly schedule will be promptly communicated to all parties and a revised copy 

of the schedule will be circulated. 

The Client will be notified well in advance of all weekly progress meetings. A sample weekly schedule is 

included in Appendix A.  

 

3.1.7 Job-Forecasting 

 

Project quality management personnel will meet regularly to examine the schedule and discuss future 

activities that could potentially result in setbacks to the project. These can include construction activities, 

deliverables, inspections, and others. Preparatory actions and procedures will be determined in order to 

mitigate the risk of complications or delays to the project schedule. 

 

3.2 Inspection and Testing 

 

3.2.1 Inspection and Test Plans (ITP) 

 

An Inspection and Test Plan (“ITP”) will be prepared for all major activities performed by CGV and 

collaborating sub-trades throughout the duration of the project. ITP’s will identify the elements within an 

activity that require inspection, confirmation and / or verification before initiating subsequent work activities. 

Key components of the ITP include date / time of the inspection, inspector name with credentials, type of 

inspection / test, inspecting / testing procedure requirements, acceptance criterions, cause of rejection, 

commentary on results, corrective actions required and reference drawings / specifications. ITP’s will 

ensure that all work is completed in accordance with project standards, specifications, and applicable 

codes.  

A sample ITP is included in Appendix A.  

 

 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

 

3.2.2   Daily Quality Report 

 

Daily Quality Reports will be completed by the project Quality Assurance Officer and will be used to 

summarize the work performed on-site and outline the observations that pertain to quality control. Other 

items can include weather/site conditions, inspections, deliveries and a list of sub-trades performing work 

on-site. A sample daily inspection report is included in Appendix A.  

 

3.2.3 Witness Point 

 

A witness point is an identified point during the execution of the project that may require a consultant and/or 

a licensed professional engineer to review, witness or inspect the process of work. The succeeding activities 

after witness may proceed and no approval is required.  

All preliminary witness points for this project have been established and are listed in Appendix A.  

 

3.2.4 Hold Points 

 

A hold point is a mandatory verification point during the construction phase that requires the approval of a 

consultant, a licenced professional engineer or a municipality inspector in order to proceed with the 

succeeding activity. Once the quality of the completed work has been verified and approved, the hold is 

released by means of inspection request approval.  

All preliminary hold points for this project have been established and are listed in Appendix A. 

 

3.2.5 Inspection Request 

 

An inspection request will be submitted to the appropriate professional no less than 3 days prior to attaining 

a hold point. In the event that corrective actions are required following an inspection, the instruction to rectify 

will need to be addressed/released within a 3-day maximum turnaround period. This turnaround period is 

required to avoid any significant delays to the project schedule. 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

 

3.2.6 Substantial Inspection 

 

As soon as the contractor believes substantial completion has been achieved, they may apply for a 

Substantial Inspection. This inspection conforms to the Construction Lien Act and requires all Life Safety 

Items and a 97% completion (more information in the Act). This will begin the process for holdback release. 

 

3.3 Receipt of Material  

 

3.3.1 Material Receipt Verification Form 

 

The overall condition of the materials delivered to the construction site will be visually assessed in order to 

confirm that they are compliant based on material specifications.  

The assessment results will be documented in a Material Receipt Verification Form along with field notes 

and other pertinent information. Material characteristics that can be examined include: appropriate 

dimensions, quantities, overall condition, special features and markings, among others. Any non-

conforming material will be handled as instructed in Section 4.3.5.  

A sample Material Receipt Verification Form is included in Appendix A. 

 

3.3.2 Storage of Material 

 

All material will be stored in an environment that will ensure that the preservation of its quality and integrity 

is maintained. On-site material storage areas will be coordinated with the Client and storage 

methods/procedures shall conform to manufacturer recommendations and industry standards. Stored 

material will be re-verified prior to use in order to ensure the condition coincides with the information 

described in the Material Receipt Verification Form. 

 

3.3.3 General Procurement 

 

A schedule listing all key delivery dates for the project will be available on the CGV Builders electronic 

document management system and will be revised as necessary. 

 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

3.3.4 Non-Conforming Work or Material 

 

All work and material not conforming to contract requirements will be identified and mitigation procedures 

will be established. The subject matter will be documented in a Non-Conformance Report. 

  

3.3.5 Non-Conformance Mitigation Procedures 

 

The non-conformance work and/or material rectification process is as follows: 

1. Non-conforming work and/or material are identified, 

2. A Non-Conformance Report is issued and is accompanied with commentary and a proposed 

resolution, 

3. Client to approve or reject the proposed path forward, 

4. In the event of a rejected proposal, both parties shall collaborate until an acceptable resolution is 

mutually agreed upon, 

5. The approved resolution is executed, 

6. Required inspections are performed. 

 

3.3.6 Preventive Action Process 

 

The preventive action process involves identifying the source of non-conforming work and establishing 

guidelines that will help prevent similar situations from occurring in the future. 

 

3.4 Continual Improvement of Quality Management System 

 

CGV Builders have established programs such as management reviews and quality audits that aim to 

continuously improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the quality management system. Quality 

management personnel is responsible for ensuring that all employees and subcontractors are aware of 

the importance of continuous improvement and are actively engaged in its implementation with regard to 

the performance to the work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

3.5 Site and Safety Issues 

 
3.5.1 Health and Safety Policy 

 

CGV Builders is committed to protecting the health and safety of all employees. To achieve this, our 

employees are required to work in a safe manner and are responsible for reporting any unsafe/unhealthy 

conditions to their supervisors, co-workers, Health and Safety Representative.  

Management is responsible for ensuring that appropriate steps have been taken to control or eliminate all 

potential hazards and to ensure that safe and healthy work conditions are maintained throughout our work 

facilities. 

Any contractors/subcontractors hired to perform work or to provide a service to CGV Builders is responsible 

for ensuring that their workers work in compliance with the regulations specified in the Occupational Health 

and Safety Act and any other legislation relating to the work/services being provided.  

The CGV Builders Health and Safety Manual is included in Appendix A.   

 

4 Quality Documentation 

 

4.2 Document Management System 

 

All project documentation including the items stated in Section 4 will be electronically stored/maintained by 

CGV Builders and made accessible to the Client. The web-based document management system that will 

be employed is Dropbox.  

4.3 Retention of Documents 

 

All quality related documents for this project will be retained for a period of 7 years following substantial 

completion. This includes both electronic and hard copy documents. 

4.4 Shop Drawings 

 

Shop drawings that require submission, review and approval will be specified in the Shop Drawing 

Management Schedule. The schedule can be accessed using the online document management system 

described in Section 5.1 and its content will be revised as required. A sample Shop Drawing Management 

Schedule is included in Appendix A. 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

4.5 Quality Control Turnover Package 

 

A complete package of all quality management plan forms and reports will be assembled and bound. This 

package will include, but is not limited to; ITP’s, Work Plans, Daily Quality Reports, Non-Conformance 

Reports, etc.      

 
 

4.6 Close Out Documents 

 

A complete package of all administration items will be compiled and bound. The package will include, but 

is not limited to; as-built drawings, permits, maintenance manuals, specifications, etc.  

 

5 Communications 

 

5.2 Internal Communications 

 

Effective communication practices within the CGV Builders management team will be ensured through 

weekly team meetings. These meetings will cover overall project objectives and risk assessments. Daily 

conference calls with the site superintendent are essential for daily activities. Email correspondence will be 

documented and stored in directories accordingly. 

 

5.3 Client Communications 

 

Client communications will be maintained throughout the duration of the project. Continuous communication 

efforts will be ensured through regular coordination meetings on-site and at management level to discuss 

project concerns. Weekly conference calls will be implemented to ensure roll out of project. Substantial 

meetings can be arranged if the client or contractor deems appropriate for emergency items.  

   

6 Quality Management Personnel 

 

The responsibilities and authorities of key quality management personnel are defined in the following 

sections. 

 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

 

6.2 Quality Management Organizational Chart 

 

All CGV Builders quality management personnel described in Section 7.0 are listed in the name-specific 

organizational chart in Appendix A. Each position is accompanied with relevant qualifications.  

 

 

6.3 Quality Manager (QM) 

 

The Quality Manager is responsible for the overall management and coordination of all quality control 

activities performed by or on behalf of CGV Builders. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. QM 

responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that the Quality Assurance Plan is implemented and maintained. 

• Ensure that quality management personnel responsibilities and authorities are communicated and 

understood. 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart.  

• Identify the activities and processes that require ITP’s, work plans, hold points etc. and 

develop/implement these documents. 

• Coordinate with quality assurance officer to ensure that ITP’s are scheduled and performed. 

• Manage and coordinate all activities related to the quality of material fabrication, material delivery, 

material assembly/erection and all required inspections and testing. 

• Develop mitigation procedures for all non-conforming work and/or material. 

• Establish all hold points and witness points for the project. 

• Provide all necessary resources to meet initial quality objectives. 

• Responsible for approving and storing all documents pertaining to quality control. 

• Main point of contact for all quality related inquiries. 

 

6.4 Quality Assurance Officer (QAO) 

 

The Quality Assurance Officer is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations on the construction site 

and ensuring that quality standards are met. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. QAO responsibilities 

and authorities: 



10 | P a g e  
 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality Management 

Organizational Chart, 

• Participate in pre-activity meetings and communicate the ITP’s that will be performed for the 

activity, 

• Collaborate with project superintendent/supervisor with regards to weekly scheduling to ensure 

quality control requirements are met. 

• Contribute quality related elements to all required project work plans. 

• Ensure ITP’s are performed and documented, 

• Responsible for assessing non-conforming work and material and preparing a Non-Conformance 

Report accompanied with mitigation procedures. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Coordinate and facilitate the quality assurances of all manufacturers, expediters and sub-trades. 

 

6.5 Engineering Manager (EM) 

 

The Engineering Manager is responsible for managing activities related to the overall design of the project. 

Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. EM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage operations of civil, structural, mechanical and electrical departments, 

• Establish working relationship with the client on matters relating to design, 

• Responsible for assuring that all required engineering inspections are performed and approved 
by qualified personnel. 

 

6.6 Project Manager (PM) 

 

The Project Manager is responsible for the overall planning, coordination, control and execution of the 

project. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. PM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage all operations related to the execution of the project, 

• Prepare and maintain project schedule, 

• Collaborate with quality manager to develop mitigation procedures for non-conforming work 

and/or material, 

• Develop a list of activities that will require a pre-activity meeting, 

• Main point of contact for all project related inquiries. 

 



11 | P a g e  
 

6.7 Site Superintendent/Supervisor (SS) 

 

The Site Superintendent/Supervisor is responsible for overseeing all on-site operations and controlling the 

short-term schedule. SS Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. SS responsibilities and authorities: 

 
Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Coordinate quality related inspections with daily operations performed by CGV Builders and sub-

trades.  

• Prepare Daily Quality Reports, 

• Schedule and lead pre-activity meetings. 

• Develop and distribute weekly schedules that outline project activities for the following two week 

period. 

• Control and maintain short term scheduling of the project. 

• Ensure that sub-trades/suppliers are provided with the most recent set of drawings and project 

specifications. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Ensure subcontractor field operations meet project quality objectives, 

• Verify the overall condition/characteristics of all material delivered on-site and confirm that storage 

areas are suitable. Document this information in a Material Receipt Report, 

• Responsible for subcontractor coordination. 

• Promptly communicate on-site issues and all non-conforming material and work to quality 

management personnel. 

• Responsible for timely submitting inspection requests. 

• Main point of contact for all on-site inquiries. 

 

6.8 Project Administrator (PA) 

 

The Project Administrator will control, maintain and coordinate all contractual and project related 

documentation for the entire project. The PA will correspond with the Project Manager and the Quality 

Assurance Manager on a day to day basis to ensure project administration activities are in compliance with 

the Quality Management Plan. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. PA responsibilities and 

authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Maintain the document management system, 

• Responsible for processing project documents, 



12 | P a g e  
 

• Expedite flow of project communication and deliverables, 

• Main point of contact for all administration related inquiries. 

 

 

 

6.9 Manufacturing Manager (MM) 

 

The Manufacturing Manager is responsible for managing daily operations and performance of the 

manufacturing facility. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. MM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Oversee the manufacturing process of materials and ensure that they meet design, quality and 

safety requirements. 

 

6.10 Quality Control Inspectors (QCI) 

 

Third party Quality Control Inspector’s are responsible for performing required inspections during all phases 

of the project. Qualifications are attached in Appendix A. 

QCI responsibilities and authorities: 

• Perform all required ITP’s and prepare related documentation, 

• Recognize non-conforming work and/or material and promptly inform CGV quality management 
personnel. 

 

6.11  Expediter 

 

The Expediter is responsible for the safe and timely transportation of materials to the construction site. The 

expediter’s responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that materials are delivered in-line with the project schedule. 

• Ensuring the safe transportation and surveillance of materials. 

• Verify that shipment contains appropriate materials and quantities. 

 

 

 





98
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 2.1.

Aerial Axonometric View









1716
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.1.

Main Entrance Perspective



1918
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.2.

Front Perspective

Front Elevation



2120
Architectural Design Services | City of Temiskaming Shores - Haileybury Fire Station

Critchley Hill Architecture Inc.

SECTION 3.3.

Rear Entrance PerspectiveMain Entrance Close-up

















 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Quality Assurance Plan 
(Template - Design Build Projects) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

1.0 Introduction 

The data, information and examples portrayed in this dossier represent a Quality Assurance Plan developed 

by CGV Builders and prepared for review by the Client as it relates to the Design Build Project. 

The Quality Assurance Plan has been established to ensure the project is completed in compliance and 

conforms to every aspect of the quality requirements described in the contract documents. 

This manuscript outlines the practices and procedures that CGV Builders and affiliated 

subcontractors/suppliers will employ for all; design activities, fabricating operations, construction 

processes, preparation of documents and inspections/testing, with regard to quality control.  

The Quality Assurance Plan and all related documents will be maintained and revised for the duration of 

the project, as applicable. 

 

2.0 Reference Documents 

The following documents were compiled and utilized in the creation of this Quality Assurance Plan: 

• TBD 

 

3.0 Quality Policy 

The CGV team is committed to quality excellence and will consistently strive to provide services that 

surpass client expectations. Project success will be guaranteed through; knowledge, experience, strong 

relations with subcontractors / suppliers, use of best industry practices and a safe work environment for our 

employees and all those affected by our actions. Quality is a requirement, not only in the final product, but 

in our relationships with clients and business partners. 

 

4.0 Project Quality Control Implementation 

 
4.1 Scheduling and Work Planning 

 
4.1.2  Pre-Construction Meeting 

A pre-construction meeting will be held on a date, time and location that has been mutually agreed upon 

by; the Client, CGV Builders and all other parties involved in the construction of the design-build project. 

The meeting will outline key elements of the project and will establish the necessary roles and 

responsibilities of all participating parties. 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

Critical items to be discussed include, but not limited to:  

• establishing the construction phase procedures,  

• identifying project milestones,  

• work requiring inspections including hold points,  

• lines of communication,  

• forming key contacts,  

• schedules and submittal requirements,  

• site and safety issues, 

• creation of formal Meeting Minutes on a recorded and documented basis,  

• follow-up actions to be established and monitored during the project. 

 

4.1.3  Work Plans 

A detailed work plan will be prepared for each major project activity and will describe the procedures 

required to achieve a compliant outcome. Work plans will be completed no later than one week prior to the 

pre-activity meeting and will consist of, but are not limited to: a work sequence, a list of materials, a safety 

plan, a list of activity milestones, a sign-off checklist, a list of required inspections and a thorough description 

of responsibilities for all parties involved. Work plans will be modified and revised as required. 

4.1.2 Work Plan Sign-Off Checklist 

A sign-off checklist will be included at the end of each work plan. The field crew quality representative will 

sign-off on each checklist item confirming that all tasks specified in the work plan have been completed and 

meet requirements.    

 

4.1.3   Pre-Activity Meetings 

Pre-activity meetings will take place 24-hours prior to the start of each new activity. The goal is to 

communicate the details and procedures specified in the work plan. Attendees may include: the project 

superintendent/supervisor, the quality assurance officer and all CGV employees and sub-trades required 

to complete the activity. The project superintendent/supervisor will be responsible for coordinating and 

executing the pre-activity meetings.  

 

4.1.4 Weekly Schedules 

Weekly schedules will outline the planned project activities for the following two-week period. The content 

will be communicated through weekly progress meetings and can include: all planned work for the period, 

identification of new activities, upcoming pre-activity meetings, required hold points and/or inspections, 



3 | P a g e  
 

among others. All revisions to the weekly schedule will be promptly communicated to all parties and a 

revised copy of the schedule will be distributed. 

 

4.1.5 Job-Forecasting 

Project/Quality management personnel will meet regularly to examine the schedule and anticipate future 

activities that could potentially result in setbacks to the project. These can include construction activities, 

deliverables, inspections and others. Preparatory steps and procedures will be established in order to 

reduce the possibility of complications at all levels of the activity execution. 

 

4.2 Inspection and Testing 

 

4.2.1 Inspection and Test Plans (ITP) 

An Inspection and Test Plan shall be prepared for all major activities performed by CGV Builders and 

collaborating sub-trades throughout the duration of the project. ITP’s will identify the elements within an 

activity that require inspection, confirmation and/or verification before initiating subsequent work activities. 

Key components of the ITP can include: date/time of the inspection, inspector name with credentials, type 

of inspection/test, inspecting/testing procedure requirements, acceptance criterions, cause of rejection, 

commentary results, corrective actions required and reference drawings/specifications. ITP’s will ensure 

that all work is completed in accordance with project standards, specifications and applicable codes. 

 

4.2.2  Daily Quality Report 

Daily Quality Reports will summarize the work performed on-site and outline the observations that pertain 

to quality control. Other items can include weather/site conditions, inspections, deliveries, and a list of sub-

trades performing work on-site.  

 

4.2.3 Witness Point 

A witness point is an identified point during the execution of the project that may require a consultant and/or 

a licensed professional engineer to review, witness or inspect the process of work. The succeeding activities 

after witness may proceed and no approval is required.  

 

 

 



4 | P a g e  
 

4.2.4 Hold Points 

A hold point is a mandatory verification point during the construction phase that requires the approval of a 

consultant, a licenced professional engineer, or a municipality inspector in order to proceed with the 

succeeding activity. Once the quality of the completed work has been verified and approved, the hold is 

released by means of inspection request approval.  

 

4.2.5 Inspection Request 

An inspection request will be submitted to the appropriate professional no less than 3 days prior to attaining 

a hold point. In the event that corrective actions are required following an inspection, the instruction to rectify 

will need to be addressed/released within a 3-day maximum turnaround period. This turnaround period is 

required to avoid any significant delays to the project schedule. 

 

4.2.6 Substantial Inspection 

As soon as the contractor believes substantial completion has been achieved, they may apply for a 

Substantial Inspection. This inspection conforms to the Construction Lien Act and requires all Life Safety 

Items and a 97% completion (more information in the Act). This will begin the process for holdback release. 

 

4.3 Receipt of Material  

 

4.3.1 Material Receipt Verification Form 

The overall condition of the materials delivered to the construction site will be visually assessed in order to 

confirm that they are compliant based on material specifications.  

The assessment results will be documented in a Material Receipt Verification Form along with field notes 

and other pertinent information. Material characteristics that can be examined include: appropriate 

dimensions, quantities, overall condition, special features and markings, among others. Any non-

conforming material will be handled as instructed in Section 4.3.5.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

4.3.2 Storage of Material 

All material will be stored in an environment that will ensure that the preservation of its quality and integrity 

is maintained. On-site material storage areas will be coordinated with the Client and storage 

methods/procedures shall conform to manufacturer recommendations and industry standards. Stored 

material will be re-verified prior to use in order to ensure the condition coincides with the information 

described in the Material Receipt Verification Form. 

 

4.3.3 General Procurement 

A schedule listing all key delivery dates for the project will be available on the CGV Builders electronic 

document management system and will be revised, as necessary. 

 

4.3.4 Non-Conforming Work or Material 

All work and material not conforming to contract requirements will be identified and mitigation procedures 

will be established. The subject matter will be documented in a Non-Conformance Report. 

  

4.3.5 Non-Conformance Mitigation Procedures 

The non-conformance work and/or material rectification process is as follows: 

1. Non-conforming work and/or material are identified, 

2. A Non-Conformance Report is issued and is accompanied with commentary and a proposed 

resolution, 

3. Client to approve or reject the proposed path forward, 

4. In the event of a rejected proposal, both parties shall collaborate until an acceptable resolution is 

mutually agreed upon, 

5. The approved resolution is executed, 

6. Required inspections are performed. 

 

4.3.6 Preventive Action Process 

The preventive action process involves identifying the source of non-conforming work and establishing 

guidelines that will help prevent similar situations from occurring in the future. 

 

 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

4.4 Continual Improvement of Quality Management System 

CGV Builders have established programs such as management reviews and quality audits that aim to 

continuously improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the quality management system. Quality 

management personnel is responsible for ensuring that all employees and subcontractors are aware of 

the importance of continuous improvement and are actively engaged in its implementation with regard to 

the performance to the work. 

 

4.5 Site and Safety Issues 

 
4.5.1 Health and Safety Policy 

CGV Builders is committed to protecting the health and safety of all employees. To achieve this, our 

employees are required to work in a safe manner and are responsible for reporting any unsafe/unhealthy 

conditions to their supervisors, co-workers, Health and Safety Representative.  

Management is responsible for ensuring that appropriate steps have been taken to control or eliminate all 

potential hazards and to ensure that safe and healthy work conditions are maintained throughout our work 

facilities. 

Any contractors/subcontractors hired to perform work or to provide a service to CGV Builders is responsible 

for ensuring that their workers work in compliance with the regulations specified in the Occupational Health 

and Safety Act and any other legislation relating to the work/services being provided.  

 

5.0 Quality Documentation 

 

5.1 Document Management System 

All project documentation including the items stated in Section 4 will be electronically stored/maintained by 

CGV Builders and made accessible to the Client. The web-based document management system that will 

be employed is SharePoint. All document distribution will be done through the SharePoint access system. 

5.2 Retention of Documents 

All quality related documents for this project will be retained for a period of 7 years following substantial 

completion. This includes both electronic and hard copy documents. 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

5.3 Shop Drawings 

Shop drawings that require submission, review and approval will be specified in the Shop Drawing 

Management Schedule. The schedule can be accessed using the online document management system 

described in Section 5.1 and its content will be revised as required. 

 

5.4 Quality Control Turnover Package 

A complete package of all quality management plan forms and reports will be assembled and bound. This 

package will include, but is not limited to, ITP’s, Work Plans, Daily Quality Reports, Non-Conformance 

Reports, etc.      

 

5.5 Close Out Documents 

A complete package of all administration items will be compiled and bound. The package will include, but 

is not limited to; as-built drawings, permits, maintenance manuals, specifications, etc.  

 

6.0 Communications 

 

6.1 Internal Communications 

Effective communication practices within the CGV Builders management team will be ensured through 

weekly team meetings. These meetings will cover overall project objectives and risk assessments. Daily 

conference calls with the site superintendent are essential for daily activities. Email correspondence will be 

documented and stored in directories accordingly. 

 

6.2 Client Communications 

Client communications will be maintained throughout the duration of the project. Continuous communication 

efforts will be ensured through regular coordination meetings on-site and at management level to discuss 

project concerns. Weekly conference calls will be implemented to ensure roll out of project. Substantial 

meetings can be arranged if the client or contractor deems appropriate for emergency items.  

   

 

 

 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

7.0 Quality Management Personnel 

 

The responsibilities and authorities of key quality management personnel are defined in the following 

sections. 

7.1 Quality Management Organizational Chart 

 

All CGV Builders quality management personnel described in Section 7.0 are listed in a name-specific 

organizational chart.  Each position is accompanied with relevant qualifications.  

 

7.2 Quality Manager (QM) 

The Quality Manager is responsible for the overall management and coordination of all quality control 

activities performed by or on behalf of CGV Builders. QM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that the Quality Assurance Plan is implemented and maintained. 

• Ensure that quality management personnel responsibilities and authorities are communicated and 

understood. 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart.  

• Identify the activities and processes that require ITP’s, work plans, hold points etc. and 

develop/implement these documents. 

• Coordinate with quality assurance officer to ensure that ITP’s are scheduled and performed. 

• Manage and coordinate all activities related to the quality of material fabrication, material delivery, 

material assembly/erection and all required inspections and testing. 

• Develop mitigation procedures for all non-conforming work and/or material. 

• Establish all hold points and witness points for the project. 

• Provide all necessary resources to meet initial quality objectives. 

• Responsible for approving and storing all documents pertaining to quality control. 

• Main point of contact for all quality related inquiries. 

 

7.3 Quality Assurance Officer (QAO) 

The Quality Assurance Officer is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations on the construction site 

and ensuring that quality standards are met. QAO responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality Management 

Organizational Chart, 



9 | P a g e  
 

• Participate in pre-activity meetings and communicate the ITP’s that will be performed for the 

activity, 

• Collaborate with project superintendent/supervisor with regards to weekly scheduling to ensure 

quality control requirements are met. 

• Contribute quality related elements to all required project work plans. 

• Ensure ITP’s are performed and documented, 

• Responsible for assessing non-conforming work and material and preparing a Non-Conformance 

Report accompanied with mitigation procedures. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Coordinate and facilitate the quality assurances of all manufacturers, expediters and sub-trades. 

 
 

7.4 Engineering Manager (EM) 

The Engineering Manager is responsible for managing activities related to the overall design of the project. 

EM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage operations of civil, structural, mechanical and electrical departments, 

• Establish working relationship with the client on matters relating to design, 

• Responsible for assuring that all required engineering inspections are performed and approved 
by qualified personnel. 
 
 
7.5 Project Manager (PM) 

The Project Manager is responsible for the overall planning, coordination, control and execution of the 

project. PM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Manage all operations related to the execution of the project, 

• Prepare and maintain project schedule, 

• Collaborate with quality manager to develop mitigation procedures for non-conforming work 

and/or material, 

• Develop a list of activities that will require a pre-activity meeting, 

• Main point of contact for all project related inquiries. 

 

 

 

 



10 | P a g e  
 

7.6 Site Superintendent/Supervisor (SS) 

The Site Superintendent/Supervisor is responsible for overseeing all on-site operations and controlling the 

short-term schedule. SS responsibilities and authorities: 

 
Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Coordinate quality related inspections with daily operations performed by CGV Builders and sub-

trades.  

• Prepare Daily Quality Reports, 

• Schedule and lead pre-activity meetings. 

• Develop and distribute weekly schedules that outline project activities for the following two week 

period. 

• Control and maintain short term scheduling of the project. 

• Ensure that sub-trades/suppliers are provided with the most recent set of drawings and project 

specifications. 

• Submit inspection requests prior to attaining hold points, 

• Ensure subcontractor field operations meet project quality objectives, 

• Verify the overall condition/characteristics of all material delivered on-site and confirm that storage 

areas are suitable. Document this information in a Material Receipt Report, 

• Responsible for subcontractor coordination. 

• Promptly communicate on-site issues and all non-conforming material and work to quality 

management personnel. 

• Responsible for timely submitting inspection requests. 

• Main point of contact for all on-site inquiries. 

 

 

7.7 Project Administrator (PA) 

The Project Administrator will control, maintain, and coordinate all contractual and project related 

documentation for the entire project. The PA will correspond with the Project Manager and the Quality 

Assurance Manager on a day-to-day basis to ensure project administration activities are in compliance with 

the Quality Management Plan. PA responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart, 

• Maintain the document management system, 

• Responsible for processing project documents, 

• Expedite flow of project communication and deliverables, 



11 | P a g e  
 

• Main point of contact for all administration related inquiries. 

  

7.8 Manufacturing Manager (MM) 

The Manufacturing Manager is responsible for managing daily operations and performance of the 

manufacturing facility. MM responsibilities and authorities: 

• Establish effective lines of communication with the individuals specified in the Quality 

Management Organizational Chart. 

• Oversee the manufacturing process of materials and ensure that they meet design, quality and 

safety requirements. 

 

7.9 Quality Control Inspectors (QCI) 

Third party Quality Control Inspector’s are responsible for performing required inspections during all phases 

of the project. QCI responsibilities and authorities: 

• Perform all required ITP’s and prepare related documentation, 

• Recognize non-conforming work and/or material and promptly inform CGV quality management 
personnel. 

 

7.10  Expediter 

The Expediter is responsible for the safe and timely transportation of materials to the construction site. The 

expediter’s responsibilities and authorities: 

• Ensure that materials are delivered in-line with the project schedule. 

• Ensuring the safe transportation and surveillance of materials. 

• Verify that shipment contains appropriate materials and quantities. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
Request for Proposal 

RS-RFP-002-2021 
Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 2 

1.0 Purpose and Intent 

This Request for Proposal describes the requirements of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
to receive proposals from qualified companies for the design-build construction of a new Fire Station to be 
located in the former Town of Haileybury 

2.0 Introduction 

Located at the head of Lake Temiskaming, Temiskaming Shores is located in Northeastern Ontario, near the 
Quebec border. Temiskaming Shores covers 163.32 km2 and has a population of approximately 9,900. 
 
The former Towns of Haileybury, New Liskeard and the Township of Dymond amalgamated in January 2004 
to become the City of Temiskaming Shores, which is a single tier municipality.  

3.0 Definitions 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores shall hereinafter be referred to as the “City”. 

4.0 Submission 

Submissions must be in .pdf format and submitted electronically to: 

tenders@temiskamingshores.ca  

Subject line: RS-RFP-002-2021 “Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build” 

Addressed to: Logan Belanger, Clerk 

The closing date for the submission of proposals will be at 2:00 pm local time on Thursday April 8, 2021. 

➢ Late proposals will not be accepted; 

➢ Proposals by fax will not be accepted; 

➢ Proposals by mail will not be accepted; 

➢ Partial proposals are not accepted; 

➢ The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals; 

➢ The lowest priced proposal will not necessarily be accepted; 

➢ The City reserves the right to enter into negotiations with a firm and any changes to the 

proposal that are acceptable to both parties will be binding. 

➢ The proposals shall be valid for 60 (sixty) days from submission date. 

5.0 Questions 

Any questions or concerns with respect to the RFP document and contents are to be directed to: 

Mathew Bahm 
Director of Recreation 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive 

mailto:tenders@temiskamingshores.ca


City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 3 

Temiskaming Shores, ON   P0J 1K0 
Phone: (705) 672-3363 ext. 4106 
mbahm@temiskamingshores.ca  

6.0 Background 

The City of Temiskaming Shores Fire Department consists of two full-time staff and a compliment of three 

volunteer brigades. Volunteers are stationed at one of three stations: Dymond Station, New Liskeard Station 

and Haileybury Station. 

Haileybury Station (also known as Station #1) is located at 468 Georgina Ave within downtown Haileybury. 

The building was constructed in 1923 and has been in continual use as a fire station since its construction. 

Station 1 provides primary fire protection coverage to approximately 91 km2 of the southern node of the City 

of Temiskaming Shores. In addition, this station provides backup emergency response to Station 2 and 

Station 3. Station 1 also provides heavy rescue services outside the City’s borders, responds to mutual aid 

activations as part of the mutual aid plan, and houses special wildland firefighting equipment. 

7.0 Scope of Work 

The successful bidder shall provide all engineering, labor, material and all other associated items for the 

construction of a new fire hall to be located within the limits of the former municipality of Haileybury. This 

building must meet Post Disaster building requirements as per the most current version of the Ontario 

Building Code. Located below is a proposed list of specifications for this design build.  The successful bidder 

shall be responsible for the inclusion of all components of this build as per the Ontario Building Code.  

General scope of work shall include: 

1. Preparation of Construction Documents for development of the site and construction of a 

building meeting the requirements of the concept building and site layout. 

2. Preparation and Submittal of Site Development Drawings to the City of Temiskaming Shores for 

review and approval. Addressing any and all comments and/or conditions of approval for said 

Site Development Drawings. 

3. Preparation and Submittal of Building Design Drawings to the City of Temiskaming Shores for 

review and approval 

4. Obtaining all necessary Permits prior to start of construction activities on the site. 

5. Providing a cost to complete all necessary Tasks, as listed herein, for completion of the Design-

Build Process including construction of the approved Site Improvements and approved Building 

to house Fire services. 

The proposed location for this building is 25 Rorke Avenue, Haileybury Ont. P0J 1K0. Lot size for the proposed 

location is 164 ft x 393 ft = 64,452 ft2. Further details on proposed lot location are included on Appendix 2. 

A conceptual layout, developed in consultation with volunteer firefighters from Haileybury Fire Station, is 

included as Appendix 1. 

 

mailto:mbahm@temiskamingshores.ca


City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 4 

Proposed Specifications 

Space Notes / Approximate Sizing 

Apparatus Bays 

 

• 3 apparatus bays, 80 ft long 

• 14’ X 14’ Overhead Doors (automatic) x3 

• Additional rear door (Center) 

• Interior of bays to be waterproof material for 

washing of trucks inside during winter 

weather. 

• Floor trough in center of bay floor. 

• Vehicle exhaust system. 

• Natural Gas in-floor heating – OPTIONAL 

• Deluge Shower/Eye Wash Station 

• Wall Height approx. 18 ft 

• Fall arrest anchor points 

Based on current fleet requirements. 

• 1 Pumper/Tanker 

• 1 Pumper 

• 1 Heavy Rescue 

• 1 Forestry Unit. 

Firefighter Lockers 

 

(25) Firefighter Gear/PPE Storage Lockers 

W – 24”, D – 30”, H – 8’ including bench. 

 

Lockers required to be included within pricing 

submitted 

SCBA Room 

 

SCBA Compressor/Air Fill/Bottle Storage/Air 

Compressor Room 

Large enough to accommodate a Jordair refill 

station & compressor (Approximately 3’x6’). 

Include stainless counter / work space. 

Required to have one outside wall 

10 ft. x 15 ft. = 150ft2 

Maintenance/Work Room 

 

Work Bench Storage Room & Laundry Facilities 

 

 

10 ft. x 12 ft. = 120ft2 

Firefighter Washrooms 

 

1 - (1 toilet, 1 urinal, 1 shower, 1 lavatory) 

1 - (1 toilet, 1 shower, 1 lavatory) 

 

 

10 ft. x 10 ft. = 100ft2 

10 ft. x 10 ft. = 100ft2 

Upper Utility Room 

 

For general mechanical equipment 

 

 

10 ft. x 15 ft. = 150ft2 

Upper Storage Room 10 ft. x 10 ft. = 100ft2 

District Chief Office 10 ft. x 14 ft. = 140ft2 

Debriefing Room / Training Office 10 ft. x 18 ft. = 180ft2 

Radio/Communication Room/IT Room 10 ft. x 14 ft. = 140ft2 

Meeting/Training Room 25 ft. x 35 ft. = 875 ft2 

Mechanical/Furnace Room 

 

Electrical and plumbing plans/layouts. 

10 ft. x 10 ft. = 100ft2 

Space as required to provide adequate room for 

electrical panels and heating source 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 5 

Kitchenette / Lounge 

Cabinets, sink 

 

10 ft. x 18 ft. = 180ft2 

Unisex Accessible Washroom 10 ft. x 10 ft. = 100ft2 

Other Items 

Electrical Supply 

 

Electrical lines throughout apparatus bay to fleet. 

 

Back-up Generator 

 

Automatic power back-up generator. 

Natural Gas Generator – located outside to power 

whole facility. 

Asphalt Apron – OPTIONAL  

 

40’ long apron front of apparatus bays. (min) 6’ 

long apron rear of apparatus bays. 

Incorporate with appropriate exits. 

Driveway/Parking 

 

Driveway and parking lot around the building. 

Area for volunteer firefighter vehicles, area for 

customer parking. 

Combination of paving and aggregates.   

Water Supply 

 

Interior hydrant for filling pumper and tanker. 

Exterior fill point for filling Fire and Public Works 

vehicles. 

Water and Sewer to be hooked up to City services. 

Main feed will be 6” 

Lighting 

 

LED lighting throughout facility 

Occupancy sensors required where applicable 

Fire Pole Incorporate existing fire pole into design for 

decorative purposes. 

Roof/Cladding 

 

Steel roof and siding 

Mid-span brick cladding on front wall – OPTIONAL  

 

Service Connections 

 

Hydro 

Natural Gas 

Water and Sewer 

Telephone/IT 

Radio Communications 

Water and sewer lines will be provided to property 

line by city at south-east corner of property. Exact 

location to be determined with winning bidder. 

 

City of Temiskaming Shores sewer line locations 

and grading requires a force main connection from 

property. 

Storm Water Management Plan Required 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 6 

All furnishings and equipment within the building will be provided by the City of Temiskaming Shores 

(unless otherwise noted) including all furniture, desks, chairs, a/v equipment, appliances, firefighting 

equipment, radio and communications equipment, computers etc.   

8.0 Proposal Evaluation Criteria 

An evaluation team consisting of key municipal staff will conduct the evaluation of proposals. 

The City of Temiskaming Shores reserves the right, in its evaluation of the proposal, to consider all 

pertinent criteria whether or not such criteria are contained in the Request for Proposals. 

CITY PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM 
TOTAL POINTS  WEIGHT POINTS 

Qualifications, Expertise and Performance on Similar Projects    

Past ability to complete projects within timelines and budgets 10 10 100 

Stability and reputation of firm 5 10 50 

Qualifications of senior staff / management 5 10 50 

20%    

Proposed Supplier Contact / Manager and Support Team    

Past experience in directing / involvement with similar design-builds 10 10 100 

Specialized expertise 5 10 50 

15%    

Understanding of Project    

Detail of understanding of the project scope and desired deliverables. 

Provision of a detailed plan of proposed approach, including major tasks 

and sub-tasks. 

15 10 150 

Include a proposed quality assurance plan your firm will conduct to 

ensure the performance of contract deliverables 
10 10 100 

25%    

Estimated Fees and Disbursements    

Cost estimates are evaluated for completeness and lowest is scored 10 
points, next 8 points, etc.  If more than 5 proposals, then only 5 lowest 
Bids are to receive points, and the remaining higher prices will be given 
0.25 points.  Prices within a small differential will be scored as equal. 

40 10 400 

40%    

9.0 RFP Schedule 

The RFP process will be governed according to the following schedule. Although every attempt will be made 
to meet all dates, the City reserves the right to modify any or all dates at its sole discretion: 

• Release of RFP:     February 17, 2021 

• RFP Proposal Submission deadline:  April 8, 2021 

• Final Selection and Notification (Estimated): April 21, 2021 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 7 

10.0 Project Authority 

The Project Authority for issuance of the Request for Proposal is the Director of Recreation for the City of 
Temiskaming Shores, reporting to the City Manager. 

The awarding of the contract may be subject to the approval of City Council. 

All inquiries shall be directed in writing via email to the person identified in Part 5.0 - Questions. 

12.0 Project Schedule and Fees 

Project timelines are important to the City. Accordingly, a detailed project schedule with key milestones 
should be included in the proposal. 

13.0 Commitment to Negotiate 

The successful respondent shall execute any documentation, drafted in accordance with the terms of the 
successful respondent’s proposal and any subsequent negotiations, within thirty (30) days of the date of 
notification of the successful respondent’s selection.   

Respondents not initially selected as the successful respondent hereby commit themselves, subject to 
notification by the City to execute documentation as aforesaid up to sixty (60) days following the date of 
submission of their proposals. 

14.0 Preparation of Proposals 

All costs and expenses incurred by the respondent relating to its proposal will be borne by the respondent. 
The City is not liable to pay for such costs and expenses, or to reimburse or to compensate the respondent 
in any manner whatsoever for such costs and expenses under any circumstances, including the rejection of 
any or all proposals or the cancellation of this RFP. 

All five (5) pages of Form of Quotation are required to be submitted and signed as necessary.  In addition, 
please provide the proposed layout in detail with professional drawings (not stamped at this time) and any 
other information as necessary. 

15.0 Nature of Request for Proposal 

This RFP does not constitute an offer of any nature or kind whatsoever by the City to the respondent. 

16.0 Amendments 

The City may modify, amend or revise any provision of this RFP or issue any addenda at any time.  Any 
modification, amendment, revision or addenda will be in writing and will be provided to all respondents. 

Proponents finding discrepancies or omissions in the draft Contract or RFP, or having doubts as to the 
meaning or intent of any provision, should immediately notify the City. If the City determines that an 
amendment is required to this RFP, the City will issue an addendum. No oral conversation will affect or 
modify the terms of this RFP or may be relied upon by any Proponent. 

The City reserves the right to vary the scope of work prior to the award of the contract. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 8 

17.0 Revisions to Request for Proposal 

If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP or, if the respondents require additional data to 
interpret any of its provisions, the revisions or additional data will be provided to all respondents 
participating in the RFP process at that stage.  

If revisions or additional data are necessary after the closing date for proposals, revisions or additional data 
will be provided only to those respondents who have submitted responses and met the basic requirements. 
Such respondents will then have the opportunity to modify their proposal. 

18.0 Right to Accept or Reject Submissions 

The City does not bind itself to accept any proposal and may proceed as it, in its sole discretion, determines, 
following receipt of the proposals. The City reserves the right to accept any proposal in whole or in part or 
to discuss with any respondent different or additional terms to those envisaged in this RFP or in such 
respondent’s proposal. 

The City reserves the right to: 

i. Accept or reject any or all of the proposals;      

ii. If only one proposal is received, elect to reject it; or 

iii. Reject as informal any proposal that is received late or is incomplete or otherwise fails to comply 
with the requirements of the RFP; 

iv. Elect not to proceed with the projects as it so determines in its sole and absolute discretion; 

v. To waive irregularities and formalities at its sole and absolute discretion. 

19.0 Clarifications of Proposal 

vi. The City reserves the right to request the clarification of the contents of any proposal. 

vii. The City may choose to meet with some or all of the respondents to discuss aspects of their 
respective proposals.   

viii. The City may require respondents to submit supplementary documentation clarifying any matters 
contained in their proposals and seek the respective respondent’s acknowledgment of that 
interpretation. The supplementary documentation accepted by the City and written interpretations 
which have been acknowledged by the affected respondent shall be considered to form part of the 
proposals of that respondent. After the time and date set for receipt of proposals, only the 
supplementary documentation specifically requested by the City for the purpose of clarification shall 
be considered as part of a proposal.   

ix. The City is not obliged to seek clarification of any aspect of a proposal. 

20.0 Finalizing Terms 

This RFP will not constitute a binding agreement, but will only form the basis for the finalization of the terms 
upon which the City and the successful respondent will enter into the contract documentation, and does not 
mean that the successful respondent’s proposal is necessarily totally acceptable in the form submitted. After 
the selection of the successful respondent’s proposal, the City has the right to negotiate with the successful 
respondent and, as part of that process, to negotiate changes, amendments or modifications to the 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 9 

successful respondent’s proposal without offering the other respondents, the right to amend their 
proposals. 

21.0 Evaluation is Final and binding 

By responding to this Request for Proposal the respondents agree that the decision of the Evaluation Team 

is final and binding. 

22.0 Publication of Names of Respondents 

i. The City may, at any time, make public the names of all respondents.   

ii. Additional information may be released in accordance with the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.F.31, as amended.   

iii. Any proprietary or confidential information contained in the proposal should be clearly identified. 

23.0 Conflict Resolution 

This Agreement is based upon mutual obligation of good faith and fair dealing between the parties in its 

performance and enforcement. Accordingly, both parties, with a commitment to honesty and integrity, 

agree to the following: 

i. That each will function within the laws and statutes that apply to its duties and responsibilities; 
that each will assist in the other’s performance; that each will avoid hindering the other’s 
performance; that each will work diligently to fulfil its obligations; and that each will cooperate in 
the common endeavour of the contract; 

ii. Both parties to this Agreement shall attempt to resolve all claims, disputes and other matters in 
question arising out of or relating to this Agreement or breach thereof first through negotiations 
between the Engineer or representative and the City or representative by means of discussions 
built around mutual understanding and respect; 

iii. Failing resolution by negotiations, all claims, disputes and other matters in question shall attempt 
to be resolved through mediation, under the guidance of a qualified mediator; 

iv. Failing resolution by mediation, all claims, disputes and other matters in question shall be 
referred to arbitration; 

v. No person shall be appointed to act as mediator or arbitrator who is in any way interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the conduct of the work on the Project or in the business or other 
affairs of either the City or the Engineer; 

vi. The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties; 

vii. The provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1991 S.O. 1991, Chapter 17 shall apply. 

24.0 Sub-Contractors  

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work outlined 

in this Proposal must be included in the documents submitted.  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 10 

The Contractor shall not show “Own Forces” in their list of proposed Subcontractors, except where the 

Bidder’s intent is to employ the Bidder’s own qualified on-staff personnel to perform such work. 

The Contractor shall not indicate “TBD” (To Be Determined) or “TBA” (To Be Announced) or similar 

wording and shall not indicate multiple choices of Subcontractor names 

One Subcontractor name shall be indicated for each Subcontractor category. 

No names, either of Subcontractors or “Own Forces” may be changed after submission of the list of 

proposed Subcontractors unless prior written approval is received from the City 

Should the Bidder indicate “N/A” (not applicable), “None”, “Own Forces” or imply by either non 

completion or omission of this form, that no Sub-Contractor will be used in the execution of this 

agreement, it is then understood that the City will make no allowance for, nor shall any Sub-Contractors 

shall be allowed to perform any part of this agreement.    

25.0 Insurance  

The Contractor shall provide proof of general liability insurance having limits of not less than $5,000,000 

inclusive per occurrence for bodily injury, death and damage to property and including the City as an 

additional insured and containing a cross liability clause. 

  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 11 

Form of Quotation 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

Each Submission should contain the legal name under which the Proponent carries on business, telephone 

number and email address, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel which the City 

may consult regarding the Quotation.  

We, the undersigned, understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described 

herein, and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all documentation, materials and labour as are required 

to satisfy this Request for Proposal.  

Description Amount 

Lump sum price for completion of required work as 

outlined in RFP (Exclusive of HST) 
$ .00 

  

Optional Pricing Items (Exclusive of HST) 

Natural Gas, in-floor heating $ .00 

Asphalt Apron $ .00 

Mid-Span Brick Cladding on Front Wall $ .00 

 

We/I,            

(Registered Company Name/Individuals Name) 

 

Of,           

 (Registered Address and Postal Code) 

Business: 

Phone Number (  ) -        

Email Address           

 

Submission Page 1/5 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 12 

 

Bidder’s Authorized Official:         

 

Title:         

 

Signature:         

 

Date:         

 

  

Submission Page 2/5 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 13 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

List of Proposed Sub-Contractors    

 Name Address Component 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
I / We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified, 

experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Quotation document.  

Signed by Company Official  

______________________________    _________________________________ 
Printed       Signed 
  

Submission Page 3/5 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 14 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

 

I/ We ______________________________________ the undersigned am fully informed respecting 

the preparation and contents of the attached quotation and of all pertinent circumstances respecting 

such bid.  

Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid. 

Neither the bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or 

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed 

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham bid in 

connection with the work for which the attached bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner, 

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any 

other bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other Bidder, or to 

fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price or the price of any bidder, or to secure 

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the 

City of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed bid. 

The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion, 

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, 

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant. 

The bid, quotation or proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does 

attempt to influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and 

the person, company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.  

 

Signed ________________________________________ 

 

Company Name ________________________________________ 

 

Title ________________________________________ 

  

Submission Page 4/5 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021   
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 15 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 

Conflict of Interest Declaration 

 

Please check appropriate response: 

 I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual, or perceived conflict of interest 

in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the 

Agreement. 

 The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as 

potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual 

obligations under the Agreement. 

List Situations: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In making this quotation submission, our Company has /  has no  (strike out inapplicable portion) knowledge 

of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than confidential information 

which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the quotation process) and the confidential 

information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing or quotation evaluation process. 

 

Dated at __________________________ this _______day of _______________, 2021. 

 

FIRM NAME:         

 

BIDDER’S AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL:         

 

TITLE:         

 

SIGNATURE:         

  

Submission Page 5/5 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021    
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 16 

Appendix 1 

Conceptual layout for the Haileybury Fire Station. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
RS-RFP-002-2021    
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 17 

Appendix 2  

Proposed site for the Haileybury Fire Station. 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Haileybury Fire Station – Design Build 
  RS-RFP-002-2021    
  

 

City of Temiskaming Shores // RS-RFP-002-2021 // PAGE 18 

Appendix 3 

Site Geo Technical Report 

 



















































































Addendum 01 RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 18, 2021 Page 1/4 

 

 

RFP: RS-RFP-002-2021 
 
Addendum No.: 01 – Clarifications to RFP Documents 

 
Date Issued: March 18, 2021 

 

All proponents shall acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this Addendum No. 01 by 
signing within the space provided and submitting the signed Addendum with the final 
submission. Submissions without this addendum may be considered incomplete. 

 
 
Clarifications: 

 
1. Proposal Validity Timeline 

 
The City of Temiskaming Shores, recognizing the volatility of the building 
material market, will accept submissions with a 30-day pricing guarantee. As 
such, the following wording within section “4.0 Submission”: 

 

➢ The proposals shall be valid for 60 (sixty) days from submission date. 

 
Shall be replaced with the following: 

 

➢ The proposals shall be valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date. 

 
 

2. Sub-Contractors (wording within Section 24.0) 
 

Understanding that changes to sub-contractors may be necessary between 
proposal submission and construction, the City of Temiskaming Shores is 
replacing section “24.0 Sub-Contractors” with the following wording: 

 
24.0 Sub-Contractors 

 
A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in 
completing the required work outlined in this Proposal shall be included in the 
documents submitted. 

 
The Contractor shall not show “Own Forces” in their list of proposed 
Subcontractors, except where the Bidder’s intent is to employ the Bidder’s 
own qualified on-staff personnel to perform such work. 

 
  



Addendum 01 RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 18, 2021 Page 2/4 

 

3. Bid Deposit 
 
Section 26.0 shall be added to RS-RFP-002-2021 with the following wording: 
 

26.0 Bid Deposit 

Each Bidder shall include a Bid Deposit in the form of a Bid Bond, Certified 
Cheque, Money Order or Line of Credit made payable to the City of 
Temiskaming Shores and drawn on a Canadian Chartered Bank, Trust 
Company or Credit Union in the amount of: Ten Percent (10%) Of Total Bid 
Excluding Taxes 

i. Bidders shall scan a copy of the Paper bid bond, certified cheque, money 
order or letter of credit (pdf format), and provide with the bid submission, 
in accordance with Section 4.0. If an alternative bid bond is used, Bidders 
should request either an Ink seal from their Surety or trace over the 
embossed seal prior to scanning to allow for the seal to be visible to the 
City. The Bid Deposit must be irrevocable and open for Bid acceptance 
for at least thirty (30) days from the date of Bid closing. 

ii. Upon request by the City, the Successful Proponent shall provide the 
original paper bid bond, certified cheque, money order or letter of credit.  
The bid deposit shall be forfeited should the Successful Bidder fail to 
return to the Corporation, within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of 
the acceptance of the award, the General Liability Insurance, and, WSIB 
certificate of clearance. 

iii. The City does not pay interest on bid deposits. 

 
 

4. Building Permit  
 
Q - We suggest to shorten the overall project timeline, that the municipality 
confirm that on acceptance of a preliminary floor plan layout and preliminary site 
plan layout, a “Foundation Permit” will be issued well ahead of the full 
construction building permit, thus “Fast Tracking” the build so we can start the 
foundation as soon as possible.  That will help avoid the risk of winter heat and 
hoarding costs, and again reduce the overall cost of the project. 

 
A - The City of Temiskaming Shores will not be issuing “Foundation Permit” 
ahead of issuing the full construction building permit for this project. 
 

Section 27.0 shall be added with the following wording: 
 
Section 27.0 Building Permit 
 
The successful bidder will be required to complete a modified building permit 
process with the City. The application fee and security deposits normally 



Addendum 01 RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 18, 2021 Page 3/4 

 

associated with the building permit will be waived for this project, but the 
successful bidder will be responsible to complete all other aspects and 
requirements of the permit and its process. 
 
 

5. Site Plan Control  
 
Section 28.0 shall be added to RS-RFP-002-2021 with the following wording: 
 

28.0 Site Plan Control Agreement 
 
The successful bidder will be required to complete a modified site plan control 
process with the City. The submission and approval of site plans and 
drawings, as set out in the Planning Act, the City’s Site Plan Control By-law, 
and the City’s Site Plan Control application form will be required. The 
application fee and security deposits normally associated with Site Plan 
Control will be waived for this project, but the successful bidder will be 
responsible for the provision of all plans and any revisions that may be 
necessary. A survey of the property, completed at the City’s expense, will be 
provided to the successful proponent.  Appendix 4 provides the lot sizing, 
approximate elevation and site grading for use in proposal submission. 
 
 

6. RFP Submission Deadline 
 
To allow for ample time for bidders to submit proposals, the City will be extending 
the deadline for submission from 2:00 pm local time on Thursday April 8, 2021 
to 2:00 pm local time on Thursday April 15, 2021. 
 
Wording within section “4.0 Submission” shall be updated to reflect this change. 
 
Section “9.0 RFP Schedule” shall be replaced with the following: 
 

The RFP process will be governed according to the following schedule. 
Although every attempt will be made to meet all dates, the City reserves the 
right to modify any or all dates at its sole discretion: 

• Release of RFP: February 17, 2021 

• RFP Proposal Submission deadline: April 15, 2021 

• Final Selection and Notification (Estimated): May 5, 2021 
 
  



Addendum 01 RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 18, 2021 Page 4/4 

 

 
7. Appendix 4 

 
A layout of the proposed lot with approximate elevation, grading and sizing shall 
be added to RS-RFP-002-2021 as Appendix 4 and included at the end of this 
addendum. 

 

End of Addendum 01 
 

 

Declaration: We hereby acknowledge receipt of the above referenced Addendum and 
it shall be incorporated into our Request for Proposal submission. 

Company: 

Signature of Authorized Representative: 

 
Name/Title [print]: 

 



119.4m

5
0
.
7
m

123m

5
0
.
5
m

Lot 25

6130.5m²Lot 25

Approximate Elevation:

Approximate Grade Change for Entire Property (excluding ditch's):

Appendix 4

237m

1m

Elev. 237.5m

Elev. 237.5m

Elev. 237.5m

Elev. 237m

Elev. 237m

Elev. 237m

Elev. 238m

Elev. 238m

Elev. 236.5m

Elev. 236.5m

Elev. 236.5m

Bottom of Ditch Elev. 236m



Addendum 02 

 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 29, 2021 Page 1/4 

 

 

RFP: RS-RFP-002-2021 
 
Addendum No.: 02 - Questions Regarding RFP 

 
Date Issued: March 29, 2021  

 

All proponents shall acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this Addendum No. 02 by 
signing within the space provided and submitting the signed Addendum with the final 
submission. Submissions without this addendum may be considered incomplete. 

 
 
Clarifications: 

 
1. Question -  

 
With reference to the proposed floor plan shown in Appendix 1 of the RFP, can 
you elaborate on what the white rectangle in front of the rear overhead door 
entrance represents?  In addition, can you identify all other furniture and fixtures 
that are shown on the plan, for example the items shown along the rear wall of 
the apparatus room.   
 
Answer - The white triangle in-front of the rear overhead door is the current 
forestry unit used by the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department.  The two 
rectangle fixtures on the rear wall are proposed shelving units and the square 
fixture on the rear wall next to the overhead door is a proposed hose reel.  
 
A high-resolution layout has been added on page 3 of this addendum which 
provides greater clarity for those using it as a guide for their proposals. 

 
 

2. Question -  
 

Other than what is currently shown on the proposed floor plan provided in 
Appendix 1, can you provide a list of other equipment and/or other vehicles that 
is anticipated to be stored within the main apparatus room, complete with 
dimensions? 
 
Answer - There are four (4) vehicles which will be stored within the main 
apparatus room (dimensions provided in feet and inches): 

• Truck 1 Pumper - Length 28’, Width 8’ 10”, Height 9’ 2”  

• Truck 2 Pumper/Tanker - Length 33’ 11”, Width 10’ 2”, Height 10’ 4”  

• Truck 3 Rescue - Length 31’ 4”, Width 9’ 8”, Height 10’ 5”  

• Forestry Trailer - Length 14’, Width 6’ 8”, Height 5’ 6”  

 



Addendum 02 

 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 29, 2021 Page 2/4 

 

There are no other noteworthy pieces of equipment to be stored in the main 
apparatus room. 

 
3. Question -  

 
Will the Town provide the successful proponent with a legal survey of the 
property showing the property line? 
 
Answer - Yes, the City of Temiskaming Shores will provide the successful 
proponent with a legal survey of the property showing the property line. 

 
 

4. Storm Water Management  
 
The City of Temiskaming Shores has received various questions regarding the 
storm water management plan requirements.  The successful proponent will be 
required to provide a proper plan which takes into account the size of the building 
being proposed.  The property is bisected by a north-south ditch of approximately 
1 metre in depth which flows from north to south.  Near the southern edge of the 
property line the ditch turns to flow west to east along the southern edge of the 
property line. At Rorke Ave. the water enters a 300mm ditch inlet which runs for 
approximately 3 metres to a catch basin with a 500mm outlet. 
 

 
  



BUNKER GEAR 
STORAGE

PPE LOCKERS

10ft 0.00in X 15ft 0.00in

10ft 0.00in X 10ft 0.00in

10ft 0.00in X 10ft 0.00in

10ft 0.00in X 10ft 0.00in

26ft 4.50in X 35ft 5.54in

TRAINING SPACE / MEETING ROOM

62ft 4.67in X 80ft 0.00in

10ft 0.00in X 53ft 5.00in

SHOWER 
WASHROOM

SHOWER
WASHROOM

MAINTENANCE
WORK ROOM

RADIO ROOM
IT / COMMS

UNISEX 
WASHROOM

KITCHETTE 
& LOUNGE

DISTRICT CHIEF 
OFFICE

TRAINING / 
DEBRIEFING RM

UTILITY &
 ELECTRICAL RM

U P

UTILITY RM

STORAGE

OPEN SPACE

GYM

MULTI PURPOSE

SCBA 
RM

167 sq ft
161 sq ft 161 sq ft

20 U

120v REEL 120v REEL 120v REEL 120v REEL

176 sq ft

ANCHOR POINT
FALL ARREST



Addendum 02 

 
RS-RFP-002-2021 

 

March 29, 2021 Page 4/4 

 

 

End of Addendum 02 
 
 

Declaration: We hereby acknowledge receipt of the above referenced Addendum and 
it shall be incorporated into our Request for Proposal submission. 

Company: 

Signature of Authorized Representative: 

 
Name/Title [print]: 

 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2021-081 

Being a by-law to confirm certain proceedings of Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its Regular 

meeting held on May 4, 2021 
 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 
considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; and 

Whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, a 
municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 
purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; and 

Whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality considers 
necessary or desirable for the public; and 

Whereas it is the desire of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores to confirm proceedings and By-laws. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the actions of the Council at its Regular meeting held on May 4, 2021, with 
respect to each recommendation, by-law and resolution and other action passed and 
taken or direction given by Council at its said meeting, is, except where the prior 
approval of the Ontario Municipal Board is required, hereby adopted, ratified and 
confirmed. 

2. That the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer of Council, and the proper 
officials of the municipality are hereby authorized and directed to do all things 
necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where required, and 
except where otherwise provided, the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer, 
and the Clerk are hereby directed to execute all documents required by statute to be 
executed by them, as may be necessary in that behalf and to affix the corporate seal 
of the municipality to all such documents. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 4th day of May, 2021. 

 
Mayor 

 
Clerk 

 


	4a) 21 05 04 Agenda
	6 a) 21 04 20 Minutes
	6 b) 21 04 15 Spl Minutes
	9 a)City of Temiskaming Shores-compressed
	10 a) Land Request MacKewn1
	10 a) Land Request MacKewn.PDF
	Sketch.pdf

	10 b) Laurentian University
	10 c) zacks crib ~ menard revised
	10 d) MTO Change
	10 e) Cambridge Support
	10 f) Covid-19 Checkpoints
	10 g) ECA Grant Drive
	10 h) Water Protection Legislation
	10 i) Withdraw Prohibition of Golf
	10 j)  Great Fire Centennial Request
	10 k)  Support for Fire Departments
	11 a) 2021-02-17 DTSSAB
	11 b) 2021-03-24 Library
	11 c) 2021 04 13-  Transit
	11 d) 2021 04 19 - PSB Minutes
	12 a) 21 04 12 RS Minutes
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. ROLL CALL
	3. REVIEW OF REVISIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	6. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES
	7. CORRESPONDENCE
	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	None
	9. NEW BUSINESS
	a) Programming Update (Verbal)
	The Committee was provided with an update in regards to current COVID restrictions   in place and how they impact the City’s recreational program, parks and facilities.  In   the lockdown, the Pool Fitness Centre is closed to the public, and all gro...
	b) Parks and Facilities Update (Verbal)
	c) Directors Update (Verbal)
	The Committee was provided with an update in regards to a variety of items within the   Recreation Department.  Projects such as the Rotary Splash Pad, Arena Accessibility   upgrades, and the Active Transportation Plan are or will be underway shortl...
	d) Memo: Stay at Home Order
	The Committee was provided with a memo outlining the difference between the     restrictions in the most recent covid framework versus the Stay-at-Home order.
	e) 2021 Farmer Market Lease Agreement
	CARRIED
	f) Facility Waiver Request:  Temiskaming Water Walk (meeting)
	10. CLOSED SESSION
	11. NEXT MEETING
	The next Recreation Committee Meetings are will be scheduled as follows:
	o Monday, May 10, 2021
	o Monday, June 14, 2021
	12. ADJOURNMENT

	15 c) 018-21-CS CBO Services
	15 d) 019-21-CS Sponsorship Golf
	019-21-CS Sponsorship Golf.pdf
	Appendix 01- Letter to City.pdf

	15 e) 20-21-CS Am FedNor PDAC
	20-21-CS Am 21-005 FedNor PDAC.pdf
	Schedule 01 PDAC amendment.pdf

	15 f) CS-019-2021 - Outdoor Patios
	CS-019-2021 - Outdoor Patios.pdf
	Appendix 2 - Deck Design.pdf

	15 g) CS-020-2021 - Beach Gardens PLC
	CS-020-21 - Beach Gardens PLC.pdf
	App 01 Reference Plan.PDF

	15 h) PW-012-21 - ICI Water Meter
	PW-012-2021 - ICI Water Meter Program.pdf
	Appendix 02 - Initial Stakeholder Communication Letter.pdf

	15 i) CS-021-2021 Water-Sewer Rates
	15 j) 012-21-PW - National PW Week
	012-2021-PW - National Public Works Week.pdf
	Appendix 1.pdf
	Appendix 2.pdf

	15 k) PW-011-21Water Main Relocation
	PW-011-2021 - Water Main Relocation - Hwy 11.pdf
	Appendix 01 - Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. Proposal.pdf
	Appendix 02 - Single Source Justification.pdf

	15 l) RS-010-21 Fire Hall Design-Build
	16 a) 2021-073 Am 19-018
	16 b) 2021-074 Agt Timmins
	16 b) 21-073 Agt Timmins.pdf
	Schedule A - Timmins Agreement.pdf

	16 c) 2021-075 PDAC
	2021-075 A 21-005 FedNo 2021 PDAC.pdf
	Schedule 01 PDAC amendment.pdf

	16 d) 2021-076 Patio Policy
	16 e) 2021-077 PLCl Beach Gardens
	16 f) 21-078 Agt Neptune
	16 g) 2021-079 Agt Pedersen
	2021-079 Agt Pedersen Water Main.pdf
	Form of Agreement.pdf

	16 h) 2021-080 Agt CGV Builders
	2021-080 Agt Hlby Fire Hall.pdf
	Form of Agreement 01 - Redacted.pdf
	RS-RFP-002-2021 - Haileybury Fire Station Design Build.pdf
	RS-RFP-002-2021 - Addendum 01.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	RS-RFP-002-2021 - Addendum 02.pdf

	20 a) 2021-081 Confirm

